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AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

Securit ies and Exchange Com m ission Form  1 7 - Q

Part  I - FI NANCI AL  I NFORMATI ON

I tem  1 .  Financial Statem ents

The inter im  consolidated financial statements of AgriNurture, I nc. and subsidiar ies (collect ively
referred to as the “Group” )  as of and for the period ended June 30, 2019 and with com parat ive
figures as of June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 - are filed as part  of this Form  17-Q  as
Exhibit  A.

I tem  2 . Managem ent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condit ion and Results of

Operat ions.

The following Management  Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunct ion with the
at tached inter im  consolidated financial statements of AgriNurture, I nc. and subsidiar ies as of
and for the six m onths ended June 30, 2019.

Business Overview

I ncorporated on 04 February 1997, Agrinurture, I nc. ( the “Com pany”  or “ANI ” )  started it s

business operat ions in the sam e year as an im porter, t rader and fabricator of post -harvest

agricultural machineries intended to im prove the product iv ity as well as increase the incom e of

Filipino farm ers. Formerly known as Mabuhay 2000 Enterprises, I nc.,  ANI  was the first  to br ing

into the Philippine m arket  the Mega-Sun brand of grain dryers and thereafter established it self

as one of the m ore reliable local supplier and manufacturer of conveyor system s and other r ice

m ill equipm ent .

ANI  eventually diversif ied into other various agro-com m ercial businesses, specif ically focusing

on the export  t rading of fresh Philippine Carabao Mangoes as it s main revenue st ream. Since

then, ANI  has becom e one of the Philippines’ top fresh m ango exporters to the world m arket .  At

present ,  ANI  also supplies other hom e-grown fruit s such as banana and pineapple to customers

in Hong Kong, Mainland China, the Middle East  and to the different  European regions.

The following are the recent  developments as regards cont inuous business expansion:

• With the passage of the Rice I m port  Liberalizat ion Law, which opened the count ry ’s

doors to unim peded im portat ion of r ice, the Group is ex pect ing to earn as m uch as P= 6.0

billion annually after it  secured an exclusive deal to im port  r ice from  Vietnam’s largest

grains exporter.  On Septem ber 17, 2018 the Group confirm s that  it  has an agreement

with Vietnam  Southern Food Corporat ion - Joint  Stock Com pany (VI NAFOOD I I ) ,  for the

exclusive supply of up to two m illion m et r ics tons of long grain r ice per year.   The Group

is current ly coordinat ing with VI NAFOOD I I  for the init ial shipm ent . The Group already

began it s r ice dist r ibut ion to local custom ers start ing June 2019 and it ’s expected to

increase it s volum e sales in the next  last  two (2)  quarters of 2019.

• On October 13, 2018, the Group entered into a joint  venture agreement  for a

developm ent  of the property,  located in Rizal.   The joint  venture shall include but  not

lim ited to the format ion of the following:  Phase 1 – Transportat ion Hub, Phase 2 – Food

Term inal and Phase 3 – Property Development  Corporat ion.
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• On November 8, 2018 the Group has signed a P= 1.9 billion deal with SinoChem  Group

(SinoChem )  for the purchase of various agricultural produce part icular ly t ropical fruits.

SinoChem  is a Beij ing based conglomerate engaged in the product ion and t rading of

chem icals, fert ilizers and other agricultural products.  Under th e agreem ent ,  SinoChem

will buy t ropical fruit s from  the Group’s cont ract  growers in the Philippines in the next

three years.  SinoChem  will also provide support  through the supply of affordable

fert ilizers.  The deal aim s to provide support  to local farm er s and boost  count ry’s m arket

access to China.

• Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd. (Fucang) , a subsidiary, acquired 70%  ownership of

Guangzhou Lexian Fruit  I ndust ry Co.,  Ltd. (Lexian) ,  a foreign ent ity incorporated in

China engaged in wholesale t rade.

• On October 25, 2018 and the Board of Directors of the Parent  Com pany authorizes the

expansion of business operat ions in Aust ralia through acquisit ion of exist ing com panies.

Accordingly,  in Decem ber 28, 2018, the Parent  Company made a deposit  amount ing to

AU$172,000 or P= 6.3 m illion to BSK PTY LTD. Addit ional deposits made during the first

quarter of 2019 am ount ing to AU$310,000 or P= 11.7 m illion. The main act iv ity of the

Aust ralian operat ions is pr im arily processing of fruit  and vegetables for dist r ibut ion to

food processors, schools, restaurants, m ining sites and air lines.

• On Decem ber 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the

Parent  Com pany from one billion ( P= 1,000,000,000)  div ided into one billion

(1,000,000,000)  com m on shares to two billion ( P= 2,000,000,000)  div ided into two billion

(2,000,000,000)  com m on shares both with a par value of one peso ( P= 1)  per share.

Hence, this has given effect  to the subscript ion of Earthr ight Holdings, I nc. to two

hundred fifty m illion com m on shares (250,000,000) , increasing the total subscribed

shares from  668,003,686 in 2017 to 1,018,274,088 in 2018 and total issued and

outstanding shares from  668,003,686 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018.  Subscript ion

receivable at  par value amounted to P= 187,500,000 in 2018.

The Com pany operates it s agro-com mercial businesses through operat ing div isions and wholly -
owned or majorit y -owned subsidiar ies that  are organized into business segm ents.

REVENUE

( Philippine Pesos) June 3 0 , 2 0 1 9 June 30, 2018

Philippine Operat ions

Export 1 ,0 0 5 ,7 9 5 ,4 7 3 58,785,423

Local Dist r ibut ion and Others 6 2 ,1 5 3 ,2 4 7 48,012,594

Retail & Franchising 5 5 ,5 5 4 ,2 7 5 50,758,329

Sub- total 1 ,1 2 3 ,5 0 2 ,9 9 5 157,556,436

Foreign Operat ions

Hong Kong /  China 1 ,2 7 7 ,0 3 4 ,3 0 7 688,756,566

Total 2 ,4 0 0 ,5 3 7 ,3 0 2 846,312,912
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Results of Operat ions

Six Months ended June 30, 2019 versus June 30, 2018

Net  Sales

The ANI  Group generated a consolidated sale of goods and services of Php 2.4 billion for the six
m onths ended June 30, 2019, 183.64%  increase over the same period last  year.  For the first six
m onths of 2019, Philippine operat ions cont r ibuted 47%  while sales from Foreign operat ions
accounted for 53%  of consolidated sales. Sale of goods and services by business segm ent  are
as follows:

• Due to the stable selling prices of Banana and coco juice in the internat ional m arket ,
constant  supply of raw materials and increase in custom ers especially in China market ,
the Group’s export  sales resulted to Php1.005 billion, 1,610.96%  higher compared to
the sam e period in 2018. The group is expected to cont inue increasing its sales volum e
of banana in the succeeding quarters, on top of increased volum e in shipm ents for
m ango and beverage products such as canned coconut  water because of big potent ial of
client  in the United States of Am erica.

• Local dist r ibut ion sales posted an increase of 29.45%  to Php 62.15 m illion for the six
m onths ended June 30, 2019 from  Php 48.01 m illion for the sam e period in 2018,
m ainly due to im provem ent in operat ions. With the approval of Rice Liberalizat ion Law,
ANI  entered into a Mem orandum of Agreement  (MOA) with Vietnam Southern Food
Corporat ion – VinaFood I I  ( “VinaFood” ) , a state owned corporat ion duly designated and
assigned by the Government  of Vietnam to export  r ice and to help achieve food security
in South East  Asia. Under the MOA, VinaFood agrees to exclusively supply ANI  up to
Two Million (2,000,000)  met r ic tons of long grain r ice per year. The Group already has
cont inued its r ice dist r ibut ion to local customers start ing June 2019 and it ’s expected to
increase it s sales volumes in the next last  two (2)  quarters of 2019. Also, its
dist r ibut ion channel cont inues to gain profit s from vegetable dist r ibut ion operat ion in
supermarket  out lets during the period.

• Retail and franchising sales registered an increase of 9.45% am ount ing to Php55.55
m illion for the second quarter of 2019 from Php50.76 m illion for sam e period in 2018
despite closing of som e sub perform ing out lets in the third and last  quarter of 2018.
The management is cont inuously im proving the qualit y of products sold to different
out lets, thus the increase in num ber of customers and franchisee during the period.
Beginning 3 rd quarter, the Group will cont inue to open 10-15 Company owned and
franchise stores unt il the end of 2019.

• Com bined Foreign t rading operat ions posted an increase in sales am ount ing to Php1.28
billion for the second quarter of 2019 from  Php688.76 m illion for sam e period in the
previous year due to increase in sales of resident ial and com m ercial units as com pared
last  year. The increase is also due to the consolidat ion of another subsidiary in China
since the last  quarter of 2018.

Cost  of Sales

Cost  of sales consists of:
• Cost  of purchasing fruit s and vegetables and raw m aterials from growers and other

t raders and suppliers including freight  in charges;
• Cost  of real estate includes development  cost  for all propert ies to be sold, including

shops, off ice buildings and hotels located in China
• Personnel expenses, which include salary and wages, em ployee benefit s and ret irem ent

costs for employees involved in the product ion process;
• Repairs/ maintenance costs, depreciat ion costs relat ing to product ion equipm ent ,

vehicles, facilit ies and buildings;
• Fuel and oil costs relat ing to the product ion and dist r ibut ion process

For the six months ended June 30, 2019, ANI  Group’s cost  of sales amounted to Php1.99 billion
up by 237.74%  from  Php590.60 m illion for the sam e period in 2018, due to increase in
purchases of materials relat ive to the increase in sales during the quarter.
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Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit  up by Php150.11 m illion or 59%  to Php405.83 m illion for the six
m onths ended June 30, 2019 from  Php 255.72 m illion for sam e period last  year.  The increase
was due to the increase in sales in exports, retail and dist r ibut ion as well as the consolidat ion of
Fucang’s operat ions from sale of com m odit ies and real estate propert ies.

Operat ing Expenses

The Group’s operat ing expenses consist  of selling expenses and adm inist rat ive expenses;  which
include the following major item s:

• Taxes and licenses
• Salaries, wages and other em ployee benefit s
• Advert ising
• Rental
• Depreciat ion and amort izat ion
• Freight  out  and handling cost

Consolidated operat ing expenses for the second quarter of 2019 amounted to Php 284.59
m illion up from Php210.93 m illion for the sam e period last  year, due mainly to the consolidat ion
of one of China’s subsidiary ’s expenses and increase in taxes and licenses, advert ising, personal
costs, depreciat ion and representat ion and entertainm ent during the quarter.

Finance Costs

Finance Costs for the second quarter of 2019 amounted to Php 27.41 m illion in 2019 while
Php 22.97 m illion for the previous year.

Financial Condit ion

Assets

ANI  Group’s consolidated total assets as of June 30, 2019 amounted to P4.93 billion a slight
increase of 0.003%  from P 4.93 billion at  December 31, 2018.  The following explain the
m ovements in the asset  accounts:

• The Group’s cash balance decreased by P13.13 m illion from P 61.04 m illion in 2018 to
P47.91 m illion in 2019 prim arily due to payment  of payables and loans and purchases
of equipm ent  needed in the operat ions during the quarter .

• Receivables increased by P119.81 m illion during the quarter from P525.08 m illion in
2018 to P644.89 m illion in 2019 mainly due to increase in sales.

• Advances to related part ies decreased by P2.88 m illion due to collect ion of advances
m ade from various subsidiar ies during the quarter while advances to stockholder
decreased by P156.70 m illion from P453.98 m illion in 2018 to P307.27 m illion in 2019
due to liquidat ion and collect ions during the quarter .

• I nventory balance increased from  a year end 2018 balance of P946.05 m illion to
P999.24 m illion due to reclassif icat ion of const ruct ion in progress into a resident ial and
com m ercial inventory units at  the same t im e increase in purchases of raw m aterials
during the period due to growth in demand especially on banana and coco juice.

• Deposits for future investm ents include deposits m ade by Fucang to acquire 60%
ownership of the subscript ions to Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Developm ent  Co.,
Ltd and 30%  of Lushan Supply Chain Management  (Shanghai)  Co., Ltd., a com pany
engaged in banana t rading in China.

• Property,  plant and equipm ent  including intangibles decreased from P1.34 billion in
Decem ber 31, 2018 to P1.25 billion in June 30, 2019 due to am ort izat ion during the
period and reclassif icat ion of const ruct ion in progress to an inventory account .
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Liabilit ies

Consolidated liabilit ies amounted to P2.14 billion as of June 30, 2019.

Total current  liabilit ies am ounted to P1.83 billion and P 1.90 billion as of June 30, 2019 and
Decem ber 31, 2018, respect ively.  The decrease is m ainly due to paym ents of loans and
borrowings and t rade payables.

Equity

Consolidated stockholders’ equity amounted to P2.80 billion as of June 30, 2019. The increase
is due to the im provements of results of operat ions during the period at  the sam e t im e the
consolidat ion of one subsidiary since the last  quarter of 2018.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net  cash provided by operat ing act iv it ies for the first six (6)  months of 2019 was P18.27 m illion
due to increase in sales.

Net  cash flow provided by invest ing act iv it ies is P83.94 m illion due to collect ions and liquidat ion
of advances including the reclassif icat ion from CI P to inventories during the period .

Net  cash used in financing act iv it ies is P86.10 m illion, which is due to payments of loans, leases
and advances from  related part ies during the period.

Discussion and Analysis of Materia l Events and Uncertaint ies

The com pany has no knowledge and not  aware of any m aterial event / s and uncertaint ies known
to the management  that  would address the past  and would have an im pact  on the future
operat ions of the following:

a) Any known t rends, demands, com m itments, events or uncertaint ies that  will have a
m aterial im pact  on our liquidit y
b) Any events that  will t r igger direct  or cont ingent  f inancial obligat ion that  is
m aterial to the com pany, including any default  or accelerat ion of obligat ion.
c) All m aterial off-balance sheet  t ransact ions, arrangem ents, obligat ions and other
relat ionships of the com pany with unconsolidated ent it ies or other persons created
during the period.
d) Any material com m itments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
com m itm ents and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.
e) Any known t rends, events or uncertaint ies that  have had or that  are reasonably
expected to have a m aterial favorable or unfavorable im pact  on net
sales/ revenues/ income from  cont inuing operat ions.
f) Any signif icant  elem ents of incom e/ loss did not  ar ise from our cont inuing operat ion.
g) Any seasonal aspects that  had a material effect  on financial condit ion or results of
operat ion.
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AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF FI NANCI AL POSI TI ON

JUNE 3 0 , 2 0 1 9  AND DECEMBER 3 1 , 2 0 1 8

( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

Note 2 0 1 9 2018

ASSETS

Current  Assets

Cash 6 ₱ 47,908,876 ₱ 61,042,651

Trade and other receivables – net 7 6 4 4 ,8 8 9 ,8 6 3 525,075,594

Due from  related part ies 20 2 5 5 ,8 9 8 ,2 8 8 258,781,766

Due from  a stockholder 20 2 9 7 ,2 7 4 ,9 7 6 453,975,621

Advances to suppliers and cont ractors 10 3 9 9 ,7 9 9 ,7 5 6 413,657,530

I nventories 8 9 9 9 ,2 3 9 ,8 2 9 946,046,631

Prepayments and other current  assets 9 1 1 7 ,8 3 3 ,5 0 1 122,434,604

Total Current  Assets 2 ,7 6 2 ,8 4 5 ,0 8 9 2,781,014,397

Noncurrent  Assets

Deposit  for future investm ents 11 2 5 5 ,6 2 7 ,6 8 2 252,538,757

Property and equipment  – net 12 1 ,0 0 3 ,9 6 1 ,4 1 1 1,086,944,321

I ntangible assets – net 13 2 4 8 ,9 5 9 ,2 9 0 254,482,687

Biological assets 2 ,2 0 0 ,7 5 0 –

Other noncurrent  assets 14 6 6 1 ,0 6 7 ,9 0 0 558,322,994

Total Noncurrent  Assets 2 ,1 7 1 ,8 1 7 ,0 3 3 2,152,288,759

₱ 4,934,662,122 ₱ 4,933,303,156

LI ABI LI TI ES AND EQUI TY

Current  Liabilit ies

Trade and other payables 15 ₱ 1,041,059,186 ₱ 1,036,419,067

Short - term  loans 16 5 4 0 ,4 1 7 ,5 6 9 553,665,640

Current  port ion of:

Loans payable 16 1 4 1 ,9 8 2 ,1 3 2 193,469,697

Lease payable 26 1 3 ,6 0 1 ,5 5 4 29,793,085

Due to related part ies 20 6 0 ,0 1 8 ,9 0 8 67,357,588

I ncome tax payable 3 0 ,8 4 9 ,2 2 3 16,922,339

Total Current  Liabilit ies 1 ,8 2 7 ,9 2 8 ,5 7 2 1,897,627,416

(Forward)



(Carryforward)

Note 2 0 1 9 2018

Noncurrent  Liabilit ies

Deposit  for future stock subscript ions 23 ₱ – ₱ –

Noncurrent  port ion of:

Loans payable 16 3 0 4 ,4 7 7 ,9 4 4 325,124,380

Lease payable 26 – -

Ret irement  liabilit y 24 5 ,8 8 3 ,0 5 5 5,883,055

Total Noncurrent  Liabilit ies 3 1 0 ,3 6 0 ,9 9 9 331,007,435

Total Liabilit ies 2 ,1 3 8 ,2 8 9 ,5 7 1 2,228,634,851

Equity

Capital stock – P1 par value 18 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 830,774,088

Authorized – 2,000,000,000 shares in 2019 and 2018

Subscribed – 1,018,274,088 shares in 2019 and 2018

(net  of subscript ions receivable

of P187,500,000 in 2019 and 2018)

Addit ional paid- in capital 3 ,5 6 7 ,0 7 1 ,7 6 1 3,516,841,761

Accumulated losses ( 2 ,3 2 6 ,5 3 0 ,7 7 8 ) (2,358,811,263)

Foreign currency t ranslat ion reserve 8 ,6 6 9 ,7 2 4 23,056,049

Net  cumulat ive remeasurem ent  gain

on ret irement  benefits 24 6 ,9 3 1 ,4 8 0 6,931,480

Noncont rolling interest 7 0 9 ,4 5 6 ,2 7 6 685,876,190

Total Equity 2 ,7 9 6 ,3 7 2 ,5 5 1 2,704,668,305

₱ 4,934,662,122 ₱ 4,933,303,156

See accom panying Consolidated Notes to Financial Statem ents.

-  2 -



AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSI VE I NCOME
FOR THE SI X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 3 0 , 2 0 1 9  AND 2 0 1 8

( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2 0 1 9 2018 2 0 1 9 2018

NET REVENUE 17 ₱ 1,201,286,311 ₱ 409,402,224 ₱ 2,400,537,302 ₱ 846,312,912

COST OF SALES 21 1 ,0 0 9 ,0 2 2 ,6 7 1 272,896,082 1 ,9 9 4 ,7 0 7 ,5 2 0 590,597,816

GROSS PROFI T 1 9 2 ,2 6 3 ,6 4 0 136,506,142 4 0 5 ,8 2 9 ,7 8 2 255,715,096

GENERAL AND ADMI NI STRATI VE

EXPENSES 22 1 4 3 ,0 3 4 ,4 4 7 113,210,076 2 8 4 ,5 8 7 ,5 3 5 210,932,767

OPERATI NG PROFI T 4 9 ,2 2 9 ,1 9 3 23,296,066 1 2 1 ,2 4 2 ,2 4 7 44,782,329

OTHER I NCOME ( CHARGES)

Finance costs 16, 26 ( 1 3 ,5 7 6 ,1 4 9 ) (15,008,158) ( 2 7 ,4 1 2 ,7 4 0 ) (22,971,745)

I nterest  income 6 5 ,3 2 9 138,578 1 5 ,4 3 9 142,149

Other income

(expense)  –  net 1 2 7 ,0 8 7 23,108,039 1 2 2 ,4 0 8 44,097,908

( 1 3 ,4 4 3 ,7 3 3 ) 8,238,459 ( 2 7 ,2 7 4 ,8 9 3 ) 21,268,312

I NCOME BEFORE I NCOME TAX 3 5 ,7 8 5 ,4 6 0 31,534,525 9 3 ,9 6 7 ,3 5 4 66,050,641

I NCOME TAX EXPENSE 25

Current 1 0 ,0 3 8 ,7 2 6 8,191,690 2 3 ,2 4 8 ,1 8 3 17,062,878

Deferred – – – –

1 0 ,0 3 8 ,7 2 6 8,191,690 2 3 ,2 4 8 ,1 8 3 17,062,878

NET PROFI T FROM

CONTI NUI NG OPERATI ONS 2 5 ,7 4 6 ,7 3 4 23,342,835 7 0 ,7 1 9 ,1 7 1 48,987,763

DI SCONTI NUED OPERATI ONS

Gain from  discont inued

operat ions – –

NET PROFI T ₱ 25,746,734 ₱ 23,342,835 ₱ 70,719,171 ₱ 48,987,763

For the Quarter  ended June 3 0  For the Six Months ended June 3 0



AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSI VE I NCOME
FOR THE SI X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 3 0 , 2 0 1 9  AND 2 0 1 8

( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

Note 2 0 1 9 2018 2 0 1 9 2018

Net  profit  at t r ibutable to:

Equity holders of the Parent  Com pany ₱ 8,299,417 8,062,639 ₱ 32,280,485 ₱ 9,080,712

Noncont rolling interest 1 7 ,4 4 7 ,3 1 7 15,280,196 3 8 ,4 3 8 ,6 8 6 39,907,051

2 5 ,7 4 6 ,7 3 4 23,342,835 ₱ 70,719,171 ₱ 48,987,763

Basic and diluted earnings per

share at t r ibutable to equity holders

of the Parent  Com pany 18 ₱ 0.01 ₱ 0.01 ₱ 0.04 ₱ 0.01

See accom panying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem ents.

For the Quarter  ended June 3 0  For the Six Months ended June 3 0



AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES I N EQUI TY

FOR THE SI X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 3 0 , 2 0 1 9  AND 2 0 1 8

( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

Note 2 0 1 9 2018

CAPI TAL STOCK – P1 par value

Balance at  beginning of period ₱ 830,774,088 ₱ 668,003,586

Paid-up during the period − 100,270,500

Balance at  end of period 18 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 768,274,086

ADDI TI ONAL PAI D- I N  CAPI TAL

Balance at  beginning of period 3 ,5 1 6 ,8 4 1 ,7 6 1 2,504,341,712

Addit ions during the period 5 0 ,2 3 0 ,0 0 0 1,012,500,048

Balance at  end of period 18 3 ,5 6 7 ,0 7 1 ,7 6 1 3,516,841,760

ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Balance at  beginning of period ( 2 ,3 5 8 ,8 1 1 ,2 6 3 ) (2,184,825,884)

Net  income during the period 3 2 ,2 8 0 ,4 8 5 9,080,712

( 2 ,3 2 6 ,5 3 0 ,7 7 8 ) (2,175,745,172)

NET CUMULATI VE REMEASUREMENT

GAI N I N  RETI REMENT BENEFI TS COSTS

Balance at  beginning of period 6 ,9 3 1 ,4 8 0 4,435,187

Actuarial gain – –

Balance at  end of period 6 ,9 3 1 ,4 8 0 4,435,187

(Forward)



(Carryforward)

Note 2 0 1 9 2018

NET CUMULATI VE REMEASUREMENT

TRANSLATI ON RESERVE

Balance at  beginning of period ₱ 23,056,049 ₱ 9,893,147

Exchange differences during the period ( 1 4 ,3 8 6 ,3 2 5 ) 35,954,530

Balance at  end of period 8 ,6 6 9 ,7 2 4 45,847,677

NONCONTROLLI NG I NTEREST

Balance at  beginning of period 6 8 5 ,8 7 6 ,1 9 0 456,618,949

Share in:

Net  income during the period 3 8 ,4 3 8 ,6 8 6 39,907,051

Exchange difference on t ranslat ion

of foreign operat ions ( 1 4 ,8 5 8 ,6 0 0 ) 34,544,547

Balance at  end of period 7 0 9 ,4 5 6 ,2 7 6 5 3 1 ,0 7 0 ,5 4 7

TOTAL EQUI TY 18 ₱ 2,796,372,551 ₱ 2,690,724,086

See accom panying Consolidated Notes to Financial Statem ents.
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AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES
CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW S
FOR THE SI X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 3 0 , 2 0 1 9  AND 2 0 1 8

( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2 0 1 9 2018

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES

I ncome before income tax on:

Cont inuing operat ions ₱ 93,967,354 ₱ 66,050,641

Discont inued operat ions – –

I ncome ( loss)  before income tax 9 3 ,9 6 7 ,3 5 4 66,050,641

Adjustments for:

Depreciat ion and

amort izat ion 12, 13 5 8 ,3 1 7 ,2 9 1 32,461,462

Finance cost 16, 26 2 7 ,4 1 2 ,7 4 0 22,971,745

I nterest  income 6 ( 1 5 ,4 3 9 ) (142,149)

Operat ing income ( loss)  before

working capital changes 1 7 9 ,6 8 1 ,9 4 6 121,341,699

Decrease ( increase)  in:

Trade and other receivables 7 ( 1 1 9 ,8 1 4 ,2 6 9 ) 19,875,847

I nventories 8 ( 5 3 ,1 9 3 ,1 9 8 ) (124,358,203)

Prepayments and other

current  assets 9 4 ,6 0 1 ,1 0 3 (62,962,405)

Advances to suppliers

and cont ractors 10 1 3 ,8 5 7 ,7 7 4 –

Biological assets ( 2 ,2 0 0 ,7 5 0 ) –

t rade and other payables 15 4 ,6 4 0 ,1 1 9 (197,240,863)

Net  cash used in operat ions 2 7 ,5 7 2 ,7 2 5 (243,343,925)

I ncome taxes paid ( 9 ,3 2 1 ,2 9 9 ) (61,277,187)

I nterest  received 6 1 5 ,4 3 9 142,149

Net  cash flows (used in)

provided by operat ing act ivit ies 1 8 ,2 6 6 ,8 6 5 (304,478,963)

CASH FLOW S FROM I NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES

Collect ions received from : 20

Related part ies 2 ,8 8 3 ,4 7 8 (47,889,944)

Stockholder 1 5 6 ,7 0 0 ,6 4 5 21,446,402

(Forward)



(Carryforward)

Notes 2 0 1 9 2018

Changes in:

Other noncurrent  assets 14 (₱ 102,744,906) (₱ 17,740,170)

Deposit  for future

   investments 11 ( 3 ,0 8 8 ,9 2 5 ) (22,604,588)

Reclassificat ion (addit ions)  to:

Property and equipment 12 3 0 ,1 9 8 ,8 1 9 (104,125,484)

I ntangible assets 13 ( 9 ,8 0 3 ) –

Net  cash flows provided by

(used in)  invest ing act ivit ies 8 3 ,9 3 9 ,3 0 8 (170,913,784)

CASH FLOW S FROM FI NANCI NG ACTI VI TI ES

Proceeds from :

I ssuance of shares of stocks 18 5 0 ,2 3 0 ,0 0 0 1,112,770,548

Advances from

related part ies 20 ( 7 ,3 3 8 ,6 8 0 ) (25,299,033)

Deposit  for future stock

subscript ions 23 – (242,835,098)

Loans 16 ( 8 5 ,3 8 2 ,0 7 2 ) (315,805,313)

Lease 26 ( 1 6 ,1 9 1 ,5 3 1 ) (9,139,357)

I nterest  paid 16, 26 ( 2 7 ,4 1 2 ,7 4 0 ) (22,971,745)

Net  cash flows (used in)

provided by financing act ivit ies ( 8 6 ,0 9 5 ,0 2 3 ) 496,720,002

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES I N CASH ( 2 9 ,2 4 4 ,9 2 5 ) 70,499,078

NET DECREASE I N CASH 1 6 ,1 1 1 ,1 5 0 21,327,255

CASH AT BEGI NNI NG

OF YEAR 6 6 1 ,0 4 2 ,6 5 1 211,811,366

CASH AT END OF YEAR 6 ₱ 47,908,876 ₱ 303,637,699

See accom panying Consolidated Notes to Financial Statem ents.

-  2 -
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AGRI NURTURE, I NC. AND SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO CONSOLI DATED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS
( Am ounts in Philippine Pesos)

1. Corporate I nform at ion

AgriNurture, I nc. ( the Parent  Com pany or ANI ) was registered and incorporated with the

Philippine Securit ies and Exchange Com m ission (SEC)  on February 4, 1997 prim arily to

engage in manufacturing, producing, growing, buying, selling, dist r ibut ing, m arket ing at

wholesale only insofar as m ay be perm it ted by law, all k inds of goods, com modit ies, wares

and merchandise of every k ind and descript ion and to enter into all k inds of cont racts for

the export ,  im port ,  purchase, acquisit ion, sale at  wholesale only and other disposit ion for it s

own account  as principal or in representat ive capacity as manufacturer’s representat ive, up

consignm ent  of all k inds of goods, wares, m erchandise or products, whether natural or

art if icial.

I n March 2009, the SEC approved the change in the Parent  Company’s pr im ary purpose to

engage in corporate farm ing, in all it s branches for the plant ing, growing , cult ivat ing and

producing of crops, plants and fruit  bearing t rees, of all k inds and in connect ion to engage

in agri- tourism  and other pleasurable pursuits for the enjoym ents and appreciat ion of

m other nature and ecology and to engage in the establishm ent ,  operat ion and m aintenance

of equipm ent ,  st ructures and facilit ies for the preservat ion, conservat ion and storage of

foods, grains  and supplies, like cold storage and refr igerat ion plants.

The Parent Com pany’s secondary purpose include, among others, to purchase, acquire,

lease, sell and convey real propert ies such as land, buildings, factories and warehouses and

m achines, equipm ent  and other personal propert ies as may be necessary or incidental to

the conduct  of the corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of capital stock,

debentures and other evidences of indebtedness, or other securit ies, as may be deemed

expedient  for any business or property acquired by the Parent  Com pany.

The Parent  Com pany and it s subsidiar ies (collect ively referred to as the Group)  are involved

in various agro-com m ercial businesses such as export  t rading and dist r ibut ion of fruit s and

vegetables, retail franchising and manufacturing.

The consolidated financial statem ents have been prepared on a going concern basis,  which

assumes that  the Group will be able to cont inue increasing revenues and im proving

operat ions despite losses from  operat ions in the past  years. The Group shall cont inue to

expand it s core business and increase the dist r ibut ion ( fruit s and vegetables and rice)  and

export  sales channels. I t s retail arm  is expanding the franchise network with steps to cover

not  only the Philippines on a nat ional basis but  overseas as well. The Group has started an

act ive cam paign to gain new and recover clients through m ark et ing and selling act iv it ies in

the Philippines and overseas. Part  of these act iv it ies include looking for more opportunit ies

in the greater Middle East ,  China and Asia market s. Also, with the addit ion of Zhongshan

Fucang Trading Co., to the Group, it  will cont inuously deliver except ional qualit y goods and

services and im prove it s present  business act iv it ies through com m odity t rading, real estate

developm ent ,  and set  up of new plat form s.

Moreover, m ost loans were already converted to term  loans in order to increase the

flexibilit y  of the Group’s capital and m inim ize the im m ediate im pact  on operat ional cash

flows. As at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group’s current  assets already

exceeded it s current  liabilit ies by P= 946.26 m illion and P= 883.3 m illion, respect ively.  Further,

the Group shall cont inue the rat ionalizat ion, consolidat ion and reorganizat ion of operat ions

it  has init iated last  2015 to im prove efficiency and lower cost  of sales and operat ing

expenses. These developm ents are expected to cont r ibute to a posit ive growth in the

future for the Group’s revenue and net  earnings.
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The following are the recent  developments in relat ion to cont inuous business expansion:

• With the passage of the Rice I m port  Liberalizat ion Law, which opened the count ry ’s

doors to unim peded im portat ion of r ice, the Group is expect ing to earn as m uch as P= 6.0

billion annually after it  secured an exclusive deal to im port  r ice from  Vietnam’s largest

grains exporter.  On Septem ber 17, 2018 the Group confirm s that  it  has an agreement

with Vietnam  Southern Food Corporat ion - Joint  Stock Com pany (VI NAFOOD I I ) ,  for the

exclusive supply of up to two m illion m et r ic tons of long grain r ice per year.   The Group

is f inalizing the documentat ions for the init ial shipm ent . As of June 30, 2019, the Group

begins to dist r ibute to local customers already and it ’s expected to increase it s volume

sales in the next  com ing last  two (2)  quarters of 2019.

• On October 13, 2018, the Group entered into a joint  venture agreement for a

developm ent  of the property,  located in Rizal. The joint  venture shall include but  not

lim ited to the format ion of the following:  Phase 1 – Transportat ion Hub, Phase 2 – Food

Term inal and Phase 3 – Property Development  Corporat ion.

• On November 8, 2018 the Group has signed a P= 1.9 billion deal with a Chinese Com pany

for the purchase of various agricultural produce part icular ly t ropical fruit s.   The cont ract

was signed with SinoChem Group (Sinochem ), a Beij ing based conglom erat e engaged in

the product ion and t rading of chem icals, fert ilizers and other agricultural products.

Under the agreem ent ,  Sinochem  will buy t ropical fruit s from  the Group’s cont ract

growers in the Philippines in the next  three years.  Sinochem  will also provide support

through the supply of affordable fert ilizers.  The deal aim s to provide support  to local

farm ers and boost  count ry ’s market  access to China.

• Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd. (Fucang) , a subsidiary, acquired 70%  ownership of

Guangzhou Lexian Fruit  I ndust ry Co.,  Ltd. (Lexian) ,  a foreign ent ity incorporated in

China engaged in wholesale t rade.

• On October 25, 2018 and the Board of Directors of the Parent  Com pany authorizes the

expansion of business operat ions in Aust ralia through acquisit ion of exist ing com panies.

Accordingly,  in Decem ber 28, 2018, the Parent  Company made a deposit  amount ing to

AU$172,000 or P= 6.3 m illion to BSK PTY LTD.  The m ain act iv ity of the Aust ralian

operat ions is pr imarily processing of fruit  and vegetables for d ist r ibut ion to food

processors, schools, restaurants, m ining sites and air lines.

• On Decem ber 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the

Parent  Com pany from one billion ( P= 1,000,000,000)  div ided into one billion

(1,000,000,000)  com m on shares to two billion ( P= 2,000,000,000)  div ided into two billion

(2,000,000,000)  com m on shares both with a par value of one peso ( P= 1)  per share.

Hence, this has given effect  to the subscript ion of Earthr ight  Holdings, I nc. to two

hundred fifty m illion com m on shares (250,000,000) , increasing the total subscribed

shares from  668,003,686 in 2017 to 1,018,274,088 in 2018 and total issued and

outstanding shares from  668,003,686 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018.  Subscript ion

receivable at  par value amounted to P= 187,500,000 in 2018.

The Group’s registered principal off ice address is at No. 54 Nat ional Road, Dam pol I I -A,

Pulilan, Bulacan.
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The consolidated financial statem ents as at and for the period ended June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018 were authorized for issuance by the Audit  Com m it tee on August  13,

2019 pursuant  to delegated authorit y from the Board.

2. Basis of Preparat ion

Basis of Preparat ion of Consolidated Financial Statem ents

The consolidated financial statem ents of the Group have been prepared using the histor ical

cost  basis. The Group presents all item s of incom e and expense in a single statem ent  of

com prehensive incom e. These consolidated financial statem ents are presented in Philippine

Pesos, which is the Group’s funct ional and report ing currency under Philippine Financial

Report ing Standards (PFRS) . All values are rounded to the nearest  peso, except  when

otherwise indicated.

The Group presents a consolidated statem ent  of f inancial posit ion as at the beginning of the

preceding period when it  applies an account ing policy ret rospect ively,  or makes a

ret rospect ive restatem ent  or reclassif icat ion of item s that  has a material effect  on the

informat ion in the consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion at  the beginning of the

preceding period.  The related notes to the third statem ent s of f inancial posit ion are not

required to be disclosed.

Statem ent  of Com pliance

The consolidated financial statem ents of the Group have been prepared in compliance with

PFRS.  PFRS includes statem ents nam ed PFRS and Philippine Account ing Standards (PAS),

and interpretat ions of the Philippine I nterpretat ions Com m it tee (PI C) , Standing

I nterpretat ions Com m it tee (SI C) and I nternat ional Financial Report ing I nterpretat ion s

Com m it tee ( I FRI C)  which have been approved by the Financial Report ing Standards Council

(FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

Principles of Consolidat ion

The consolidated financial statem ents of the Group com prise the accounts of the Parent

Com pany and it s subsidiar ies where the Parent  Com pany has cont rol.

Specif ically,  the Parent  cont rols an investee if it  has:

• power over the investee ( i.e. , exist ing r ights that  give it  the current  abilit y  to direct  the

relevant  act iv it ies of the investee) ;

• exposure, or r ight s, to variable returns from it s involvem ent  with the investee;  and

• the abilit y  to use it s power over the investee to affect  it s returns.

When the Parent  has less than a majority of the vot ing or sim ilar r ights of an investee, it

considers all relevant  facts and circum stances in assessing whether it  has power over an

investee, including:

• the cont ractual arrangement  with the other vote holders of the investee;

• r ights ar ising from other cont ractual arrangement ;  and

• the Group’s vot ing r ights and potent ial vot ing r ights.

The Parent Com pany re-assesses it s cont rol over an investee if facts and circum stances

indicate that  there are changes to one or more of the three elem ents of cont rol.
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The consolidated financial statem ents include the Parent  Com pany and the following

subsidiar ies (collect ively referred to as the Group) :

Count ry of Effect ive Ownership

incorporat ion Nature of Business 2 0 1 9 2018

First  Class Agriculture Corporat ion (FCAC) Philippines Trading (Agricultural goods) 1 0 0 % 100%

M2000 IMEX Company, I nc. ( IMEX) Philippines Toll and m anufacturing 1 0 0 % 100%

Best  Choice Harvest  Agricultural Corp. (BCHAC) Philippines Farm  management 1 0 0 % 100%

Fresh and Green Harvest  Agricultural Com pany,

I nc. (FGH* )

Philippines Trading (Agricultural goods) 1 0 0 % 100%

Lucky Fruit  & Vegetable Products, I nc. ( LFVPI ) * Philippines Trading (Agricultural goods) 1 0 0 % 100%

Fruit ilicious Company, I nc. (FCI ) Philippines Manufacturing/ processing

/ t rading frozen

agricultural products

1 0 0 % 100%

Farmville Farm ing Co., I nc. (FFCI ) Philippines Trading (Agricultural goods) 5 1 % 51%

Fresh and Green Palawan Agriventures, I nc. (FGP) * Philippines Farm  management 5 1 % 51%

The Big Chill,  I nc. (TBC) Philippines Food and beverage retailing

and franchising

8 0 % 80%

Heppy Corporat ion (HC) * Philippines Food and beverage retailing 8 0 % 80%

Goods and Nut rit ion for All, I nc. (GANA) * Philippines Retail and wholesale 1 0 0 % 100%

Agrinurture HK Holdings Ltd.  (ANI  HK) Hong Kong Holding Com pany 1 0 0 % 100%

Agrinurture I nt ’l Ltd. (ANI  I L) * Hong Kong Trading and retail 1 0 0 % 100%

Joyful Fairy (Fruits)  Lim ited ( JFF) * Brit ish Virgin

I slands

Trading (Agricultural goods) 5 1 % 51%

Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd.  (Fucang) China Trading and real estate 5 1 % 51%

* Direct  and indirect  ownership

Subsidiar ies are fully  consolidated from  the date of acquisit ion, being the date on which the

Group obtains cont rol,  and cont inue to be consolidated unt il the date that  such cont rol

ceases.  The financial statem ents of the subsidiar ies are prepared for the sam e report ing

year as the Group, using uniform  account ing policies for like t ransact ions and other events

in sim ilar circum stances.

All int ra-group balances, t ransact ions, income and expenses and profits and losses result ing

from int ra-group t ransact ions are elim inated in full.

A change in the ownership interest  of a subsidiary, without  a change of cont rol,  is

accounted for as an equity t ransact ion.

I f the Group loses cont rol over a subsidiary, it :

• Derecognizes the assets ( including goodwill)  and liabilit ies of the subsidiary at  their

carry ing amounts;

• Derecognizes the carry ing am ount  of any noncont rolling interest including any

com ponents of other com prehensive incom e at t r ibutable to them ;

• Derecognizes the cumulat ive t ranslat ion differences, recorded in equity;

• Recognizes the fair  value of the considerat ion received;

• Recognizes the fair  value of any investment  retained in the subsidiary ;

• Recognizes any surplus or deficit  in profit  or loss;

• Accounts for all am ounts recognized in other com prehensive income in relat ion to the

subsidiary on the sam e basis as would be required if the parent  had direct ly disposed of

the related assets and liabilit ies;  and

• Recognizes any result ing difference as gain or loss in profit  or loss at t r ibutable to the

parent .
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The financial statements of the subsidiar ies are prepared for the sam e report ing year as the

Group using consistent  account ing policies. Where necessary, adjustments are m ade to the

financial statements of subsidiar ies to br ing their account ing policies in line with those used

by other m embers of the Group.

Noncont rolling interest

Noncontrolling interest  represents interest  in a subsidiary that  is not  owned, direct ly or

indirect ly, by the Group. Profit  or loss and each component of other comprehensive income

are att ributed to the equity holders of the Group and to the non-controlling interest . Total

comprehensive income is at t ributed to the equity holders of the Group and to the

non-controlling interests even if this results in the noncontrolling interest  having a deficit

balance.

Noncontrolling interest  represents the port ion of profit  or loss and the net  assets not  held by

the Group. Transact ions with noncontrolling interest  are accounted for using the ent ity

concept method, whereby the difference between the considerat ion and the book value of the

share of the net  assets acquired is recognized as an equity t ransact ion.

3. Changes in Account ing Policies

The account ing policies adopted by the Group are consistent  with those of the previous

financial years, except  for the following standards, am endments and im provements to PFRS

and PAS which became effect ive in 2018.

• PFRS 9, Financial I nst rum ents:  Classif icat ion and Measurem ent

PFRS 9 replaces PAS 39, Financial I nst rum ents:  Recognit ion and Measurement ,  and

supersedes the prev iously published versions of PFRS 9 that  int roduced new

classif icat ions and m easurem ent  requirem ents and new hedge account ing.  PFRS 9

includes revised guidance on the classif icat ion and measurem ent  of f inancial assets that

reflects the business m odel in which assets are m anaged and their cash flow

characterist ics, including a new forward- looking expected credit  loss for calculat ing

im pairm ent ,  and guidance on own credit  r isk on financial liabilit ies m easured at  fair

value.  PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge account ing requirem ents and represent  a major

overhaul of hedge account ing and int roduces signif icant  im provem ents by aligning the

account ing m ore closely with r isk management .

The Group adopted the said standard without  restat ing com parat ive informat ion as

perm it ted by PFRS 9. The reclassif icat ion and the adjustments ar ising from the new

classif icat ion and im pairment  rules are therefore not  reflected in the restated balance

sheet  as at  Decem ber 31, 2017, but  are recognized in the opening balance sheet  on

January 1, 2018.

a. Classif icat ion and m easurem ent

Presented below is the im pact  of adopt ion of PFRS 9 on classif icat ion and

m easurem ent  of f inancial assets as at  January 1, 2018 on the Group’s consolidated

financial statem ents.
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Note

Original Measurement

Category under

PAS 39

New Measurement

Category under

PFRS 9

Original Carrying

Amount under

PAS 39

New Carrying

amount under

PFRS 9

Financial assets:

Cash 6 Loans and receivables
at  amort ized cost

Financial assets at
amort ized cost

P= 211,811,366 P= 211,811,366

Receivables* 7 Loans and receivables
at  amort ized cost

Financial assets at
amort ized cost

350,655,354 307,167,118

Due from related
part ies 20

Loans and receivables
at  amort ized cost

Financial assets at
amort ized cost

447,596,478 462,265,980

Due from a
stockholder 20

Loans and receivables
at  amort ized cost

Financial assets at
amort ized cost

422,226,236 422,226,236

Total P= 1,432,289,434 P= 1,403,470,700

Financial liabilit ies:
Trade and other
payables* *

15 Other financial
liabilit ies at
amort ized cost

Financial liabilit ies
at  amort ized cost

P= 632,902,031 P= 632,902,031

Due to related
part ies

20 Other financial
liabilit ies at
amort ized cost

Financial liabilit ies
at  amort ized cost

72,402,905 72,402,905

Loans payable 16 Other financial
liabilit ies at
amort ized cost

Financial liabilit ies
at  amort ized cost

1,288,930,962 1,288,930,962

Lease payable 27 Other financial
liabilit ies at
amort ized cost

Financial liabilit ies
at  amort ized cost

50,748,241 50,748,241

Total P= 2,044,984,139 P= 2,044,984,139

* Excluding nonfinancial assets am ount ing to P= 34,464,106.

* * Excluding nonfinancial liabilit ies am ount ing to P= 149,881,364.

b. I mpairm ent

The total im pact  of adopt ion of PFRS 9 im pairm ent  rules on the Group’s retained

earnings as at  January 1, 2018 is as follows:

Opening retained earnings on January 1, 2018 – PAS 39 ( P= 2,199,398,057)

I ncrease in allowance for impairment  of receivables (Note 7) (43,448,236)

Opening retained earnings on January 1, 2018 – PFRS 9 ( P= 2,242,846,293)

The following table shows the adjustm ents recognized for each account  affected by

the change in im pairm ent  of f inancial asset  policy:

Receivables

Balance as at January 1, 2018, as previously reported P= 350,655,354

Effect  of PFRS 9 applicat ion (Note 7) (43,448,236)

Balance as restated as at  January 1, 2018 P= 307,207,118

* Excluding nonfinancial assets am ount ing to P= 34,464,106.

• PFRS 15, Revenue from Cont racts with Custom ers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step m odel that  will apply to revenue arising from

cont racts with custom ers.  Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at  an amount  that

reflects the considerat ion to which an ent ity expects to be ent it led in exchange for

t ransferr ing goods or services to a custom er.  The principles in PFRS 15 provide a m ore

st ructured approach to m easuring and recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all ent it ies and will supersede all current

revenue recognit ion requirem ents under PFRSs.  Either a full or m odified ret rospect ive

applicat ion is required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

The adopt ion of this new standard has no signif icant  im pact  on the Group’s consolidated

financial statem ents.
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• Am endm ents to PFRS 2, Share-based Paym ent ,  Classif icat ion and Measurem ent  of

Share-based Payment  Transact ions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three m ain areas:  the effects of vest ing condit ions

on the m easurement  of a cash-set t led share-based payment  t ransact ion;  the

classif icat ion of a share-based paym ent  t ransact ion with net  set t lem ent  features for

withholding tax obligat ions;  and the account ing where a m odificat ion to the term s and

condit ions of a share-based paym ent  t ransact ion changes it s classif icat ion from  cash

set t led to equity set t led.

On adopt ion, ent it ies are required to apply the am endments without  restat ing prior

periods, but  ret rospect ive applicat ion is perm it ted if elected for all three amendm ents

and if other cr iter ia are met .

The am endm ents are current ly not  applicable to the Group as it  has no share-based

paym ent  t ransact ions.

• Am endm ents to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint  Venture at  Fair Value

(Part  of Annual I mprovements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The am endments clar ify that  an ent it y that  is a venture capital organizat ion, or other

qualify ing ent it y,  may elect ,  at  init ial recognit ion on an investm ent -by- investment

basis, to m easure it s investm ents in associates and joint  ventures at  fair  value through

profit  or loss (FVPL) .  They also clar ify that  if an ent it y that  is not  it self an investment

ent ity has an interest  in an associate or joint  venture that  is an investm ent  ent it y,  the

ent ity may, when applying the equity m ethod, elect  to retain the fair  value

m easurem ent  applied by that  investm ent  ent it y associate or joint  venture to the

investment  ent it y associate’s or joint  venture’s interests in subsidiar ies.

This elect ion is m ade separately for each investm ent  ent ity associate or joint  venture,

at  the later of the date on which (a)  the investm ent  ent ity, associate or joint  venture is

init ially  recognized;  (b)  the associate or joint  venture becom es an investment  ent ity;

and (c)  the investm ent  ent it y associate, or joint  venture first  becom es a parent .

The am endments have no signif icant  im pact  on the Group’s consolidated financial

statem ents.

• Am endm ents to PAS 40, I nvestm ent  Property,  Transfers of I nvestm ent  Property

The amendments clar ify when an ent it y should t ransfer property,  including property

under const ruct ion or development  into, or out  of investm ent  property.   The

am endm ents state that  a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to

m eet ,  the definit ion of investm ent  property and there is evidence of the change in use.

A mere change in managem ent ’s intent ions for the use of a property does not  provide

evidence of a change in use.  The amendm ents should be applied prospect ively to

changes in use that  occur on or after the beginning of the annual report ing period in

which the ent it y f irst  applies the am endm ents.  Ret rospect ive applicat ion is only

perm it ted if this is possible without  the use of hindsight .

The am endm ents have no signif icant  im pact  on the Com pany’ consolidated financial

statem ents.

• Philippine I nterpretat ion I FRI C-22, Foreign Currency Transact ions and Advance

Considerat ion

The interpretat ion clar if ies that  in determ ining the spot  exchange rate to use on init ial

recognit ion of the related asset ,  expense or income (or part  of it )  on the derecognit ion

of a nonmonetary asset  or non-m onetary liabilit y  relat ing to advance considerat ion, the

date of the t ransact ion is the date on which an ent it y init ially  recognizes the

nonm onetary asset  or nonm onetary liabilit y  ar ising from  the advance considerat ion.  I f

there are m ult iple paym ents or receipts in advance, then the ent ity m ust  determ ine a

date of the t ransact ions for each paym ent  or receipt  of advance considerat ion.
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The interpretat ion may be applied on a fully  ret rospect ive basis.   Ent it ies may apply the

interpretat ion prospect ively to all assets, expenses and income in it s scope that  are

init ially  recognized on or after the beginning of the report ing period in which the ent ity

first  applies the interpretat ion or the beginning of a pr ior r eport ing period presented as

com parat ive informat ion in the consolidated financial statem ents of the report ing period

in which the ent ity f irst  applies the interpretat ion.

The interpretat ion has no signif icant  im pact  in the Group’s consolidated financial

statem ents.

New and Am ended Standards and I nterpretat ions I ssued but  not  yet  Effect ive

Standards issued but  not  yet  effect ive up to the date of the Group’s consolidated financial

statem ents are listed below.  Unless otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect  the

adopt ion of these new and amended PFRS and Philippine I nterpretat ions to have a

signif icant  im pact  on it s consolidated financial statements.  The Group intends to adopt  the

following pronouncem ents when they become effect ive.

Effect ive in 2019

• PFRS 16, Leases

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their lease as either operat ing or

finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather,  leases will apply the single-asset

m odel,  wherein lessees will recognize the assets and the relat ed liabilit ies for m ost

leases in their balance sheets and, subsequent ly,  will depreciate the lease assets and

recognize interest  on the lease liabilit ies in their profit  or loss. The new standard is

effect ive for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with an early

adopt ion.

Ent it ies may early adopt  PFRS 16 but  only if they have also adopted PFRS 15.  When

adopt ing PFRS 16, an ent it y is perm it ted to use either full ret rospect ive or a m odified

ret rospect ive approach, with opt ions to use cer tain t ransit ion reliefs.

The adopt ion of the new standard is not  expected to have signif icant  im pact  on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements.

• Am endm ents to PFRS 9, Prepayment  Features with Negat ive Compensat ion

Prepaym ent  Features with Negat ive Com pensat ion am ends the exist ing requirem ents in

PFRS 9 regarding term inat ion r ights in order to allow m easurem ent  at  am ort ized cost

(or,  depending on the business m odel,  at  fair  value through other comprehensive

incom e)  even in the case of negat ive compensat ion paym ents.  Under the am endm ents,

the sign of the prepayment  amount  is not  relevant ,  i.e.  depending on the interest  rate

prevailing at  the t im e of term inat ion, a paym ent  m ay also be made in favor of the

cont ract ing party effect ing the early repayment .   The calculat ion of this com pensat ion

paym ent  m ust  be the sam e for both the case of an early repaym ent  penalty and the

case of an early repaym ent  gain.

The amendm ents are to be applied ret rospect ively for f iscal years beginning on or after

January 1, 2019, i.e.  one year after the first  applicat ion of PFRS 9 in it s current  version.

Early applicat ion is perm it ted so ent it ies can apply the amendm ents together with

PFRS 9 if they wish so. Addit ional t ransit ional requirem ents and corresponding

disclosure requirem ents must  be observed when apply ing the am endm ents for the first

t im e.

The amendments are not  expected to have signif icant  im pact  on the Group’s

consolidated financial statem ents.
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• Am endm ents to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint  Ventures

The am endm ents to PAS 28 clar ify that  an ent it y applies PFRS 9, Financial I nst rum ents

including it s im pairm ent  requirem ents, to long- term interests in an associate or joint

venture that  form  part  of the net  investm ent  in the associate or joint  venture.

The am endm ents are effect ive for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with

early applicat ion perm it ted.  The am endm ents are to be applied ret rospect ively but  they

provide t ransit ion requirem ents sim ilar to those in PFRS 9 for ent it ies that  apply the

am endm ents after they first  apply PFRS 9.  They also include relief from  restat ing prior

periods for ent it ies elect ing, in accordance with PFRS 4 I nsurance Cont racts, to apply

the tem porary exem pt ion from  PFRS 9. Full ret rospect ive applicat ion is perm it ted if that

is possible without  the use of hindsight .

The adopt ion of this new standard in 2019 is not  expected to have signif icant  im pact  on

the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Am ended standards and interpretat ions effect ive in 2019 adopted by the FRSC but  not  yet

approved by the Board of Accountancy (BOA)

• Philippine I nterpretat ions IFRI C 23, Uncertainty over I ncome Tax Treatm ents

The I nterpretat ion clar if ies applicat ion of recognit ion and m easurem ent  requirem ents in

PAS 12, I ncom e Taxes when there is uncertainty over incom e tax t reatm ents.  The

I nterpretat ion specif ically addresses the following:  a)  whether an ent it y considers

uncertain tax t reatm ents separately;  b)  the assumpt ions an ent it y makes about  the

exam inat ion of tax t reatm ents by taxat ion authorit ies;  c)  how an ent ity determ ines

taxable profit  ( tax loss) ,  tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;

and d)  how an ent it y considers changes in facts and circum stances.

Philippine I FRI C 23 is effect ive for annual report ing periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2019. Earlier applicat ion is perm it ted.  The I nterpretat ion may be applied

ret rospect ively using PAS 8, only if the applicat ion is possible without  the use of

hindsight  or may be applied ret rospect ively with the cum ulat ive effect  of the init ial

applicat ion recognized as an adjustm ent  to equity on the date of init ial applicat ion.  I n

this approach, com parat ive informat ion is not  restated.  The date of init ial applicat ion is

the beginning of the annual report ing period in which an ent it y f irst  applies this

I nterpretat ion.

The interpretat ion was adopted by the FRSC on July 12, 2017 but  are st ill subject  to the

approval by the BOA.

• Am endm ent  to PAS 19, Plan Am endm ent , Curtailm ent  or Set t lem ent

The am endm ents clar ify the account ing when a plan am endm ent , curtailm ent  or

set t lem ent  occurs and specif ies how com panies determ ine pension expenses when

changes to a defined benefit  pension plan occur.  The amendments require the Group to

use the updated assum pt ions from this rem easurem ent  to determ ine current  service

cost  and net  interest  for the remainder of the report ing period after the change to the

plan.

The am endm ents are applied prospect ively to plan am endments, set t lem ents or

curtailm ents that  occur on or after the beginning of the annual period in which

am endm ents to PAS 19 are first  applied.  The am endm ents to PAS 19 must  be applied

to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, but  earlier applicat ion is

perm it ted.

The am endment  was adopted by the FRSC on March 14, 2018 but  st ill subject  to the

approval by the BOA.
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Annual I m provem ents to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The following amendm ents were adopted by the FRSC on March 14, 2018 but  are st ill

subject  to the approval by the BOA:

• Am endm ents to PFRS 3 Business Com binat ions and PFRS 11 Joint  Arrangem ents

The am endm ents clar ify how a Group accounts for obtaining cont rol (or j oint  cont rol)  of

a business that  is a joint  operat ion if the Group already holds an interest  in that

business. On PFRS 3, the Group remeasures it s previously held interest  in a joint

operat ion when it  obtains cont rol of the business. On PFRS 11, the Group does not

rem easure it s previously held interest  in a joint  operat ion when it  obtains joint  cont rol

of the business.

The am endments are effect ive for business com binat ions with acquisit ion date on or

after the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.  Earlier

applicat ion is perm it ted.

• Am endm ents to PAS 12, I ncome Tax Consequence of Paym ents on Financial

I nst rum ents Classif ied as Equity

The am endm ents clar ify that  the requirem ents in paragraph 52B of PAS 12 apply to all

incom e tax consequences of div idends. The Group accounts for all incom e tax

consequences of div idend paym ents in the sam e way.

The amendm ents are effect ive for t ransact ions result ing in obtaining joint  cont rol on or

after the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.  Earlier

applicat ion is perm it ted.

• Am endm ents to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalizat ion

The am endments to PAS 23 clar ify which borrowing costs are eligible for capitalizat ion

in part icular circum stances. The Group t reats as part  of general borrowings any

borrowing originally m ade to develop an asset  when the asset  is ready for it s intended

use or sale.

The am endm ents should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2019 to the incom e tax consequences of div idends recognized on or after

the beginning of the earliest  comparat ive period.  Earlier applicat ion is per m it ted.

New and am ended standards effect ive subsequent  to 2019 adopted by the FRSC but  not  yet

approved by the BOA

• Am endm ents to PFRS 3, Definit ion of Business

• PFRS 17, I nsurance Cont racts

• Am endm ents to PAS 1 and PAS 8, Definit ion of Material

Deferred

• Philippine I nterpretat ion I FRI C 15, "Agreem ents for the Const ruct ion of Real Estate"

This interpretat ion covers account ing for revenue and associated expenses by ent it ies

that  undertake the const ruct ion of real estate direct ly or through subcont ractors. The

Philippine SEC and the Financial Report ing Standards Council (FRSC)  have deferred the

effect iv ity of this interpretat ion unt il the final Revenue standard is issued by the

I nternat ional Account ing Standards Board ( I ASB)  and an evaluat ion of the requirem ents

of the final Revenue standard against  the pract ices of the Philippine real estate indust ry

is com pleted.

Managem ent  will cont inuously assess the im pact  of this interpretat ion. Current ly,  the

Group has no act iv it ies to which this interpretat ion will apply.
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• PFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statem ents” and PAS 28, “ I nvestments in Associates

and Joint  Ventures” :  Sale or Cont r ibut ion of Assets between an I nvestor and it s

Associate or Joint  Venture

These am endm ents address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirem ents

in PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011)  in dealing with the sale or cont r ibut ion of assets

between an investor and it s associate or joint  venture. The am endm ents require that

full gain or loss is recognized when a t ransact ion involves a business (whether it  is a

housed in a subsidiary or not ) . A part ial gain or loss is recognized when a t ransact ion

involves assets that  do not  const itute a business, even if these assets are housed in a

subsidiary.

The Group will cont inue to assess the relevance and im pact  of the above standards,

am endm ents to standards and interpretat ions. The revised disclosures on the consolidated

financial statements required by the above standards and interpretat ions will be included in

the Group’s consolidated financial statements when these are adopted.

4. Sum m ary of Significant Account ing and Financial Report ing Policies

The principal account ing policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statem ents

of the Group are sum marized below and in the succeeding pages.  The policies have been

consistent ly applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated:

Current  versus Noncurrent  Classif icat ion

The Group presents assets and liabilit ies in the Group consolidated statem ents of f inancial

posit ion based on whether it  is current  and noncurrent .

An asset  is current  when it  is:

• expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operat ing

cycle;

• held primarily for the purpose of t rading;

• expected to be realized within twelve m onths after the report ing period;

• expected to be set t led on demand;  or

• cash or a cash equivalent  unless the asset  is rest r icted from  being exchanged or used

to set t le a liabilit y  for at  least  twelve months after the report ing period.

All other assets are classif ied as noncurrent . Deferred tax assets are classif ied as

noncurrent  assets.

A liabilit y  is current  when it  is:

• expected to be set t led in the norm al operat ing cycle;

• held primarily for the purpose of t rading;

• due to be set t led within twelve months after the report ing period;

• expected to be set t led on demand; or

• there is no uncondit ional r ight  to defer the set t lem ent  of the liabilit y  for at  least  twelve

m onths after the report ing period.

All other liabilit ies are classif ied as noncurrent . Deferred tax liabilit ies are classif ied as

noncurrent  liabilit ies.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that  would be received to sell an asset  or paid to t ransfer a liabilit y  in

an orderly t ransact ion between market  part icipants at  the m easurem ent  date. The fair

value m easurem ent  is based on the presum pt ion that  the t ransact ion to sell the asset  or

t ransfer the liabilit y  takes place either:

• I n the principal market  for the asset or liabilit y , or



- 20 -

• I n the absence of a principal market , in the m ost advantageous market for the asset or

liabilit y .

The principal or the most  advantageous market  m ust  be accessible to the Group.

The fair  value of an asset  or a liabilit y  is m easured using the assumpt ions that  market

part icipants would use when pricing the asset  or liabilit y , assum ing that  market  part icipants

act  in their econom ic best  interest . A fair  value m easurem ent  of a nonfinancial asset  takes

into account  a market  part icipant ’s abilit y  to generate econom ic benefit s by using the asset

in it s highest  and best  use or by selling it  to another m arket  part icipant  that  would use the

asset  in it s highest  and best  use.

The Group uses valuat ion techniques that  are appropriate in the circum stances and for

which sufficient  data are available to m easure fair  value, m axim izing the u se of relevant

observable inputs and m inim izing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilit ies for which fair  value is m easured or disclosed in the consolidated

financial statem ents are categorized within the fair  value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest  level input  that  is signif icant  to the fair  value m easurem ent  as a whole:

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)  market  pr ices in act ive m arkets for ident ical assets or

liabilit ies

• Level 2 - Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest  level input  that  is signif icant  to the

fair  value m easurement  is direct ly or indirect ly observable

• Level 3 - Valuat ion techniques for which the lowest  level input  that  is signif icant  to the

fair  value m easurement  is unobservable

For assets and liabilit ies that  are recognized in the consolidated financial statem ents on a

recurr ing basis,  the Group determ ines whether t ransfers have occurred between Levels in

the hierarchy by re-assessing categorizat ion (based on the lowest  level input  that  is

signif icant  to the fair  value m easurem ent  as a whole)  at  the end of each report ing period.

For the purpose of fair  value disclosures, the Group has determ ined classes of assets and

liabilit ies on the basis of the nature, characterist ics and r isks of the assets or liabili t ies and

the level of the fair  value hierarchy.

Financial Assets and Liabilit ies

Date of recognit ion

The Group recognizes a financial asset  or liabilit y  in the consolidated statements of f inancial

posit ion when it  becom es a party to the cont ractual provisions of the inst rument . I n the

case of a regular way to purchase or sale of f inancial asset ,  recognit ion and derecognit ion,

as applicable is done using the set t lem ent  date account ing.

I nit ial recognit ion

At  init ial recognit ion, the Group m easures a financial asset  at  it s fair  value plus or m inus, in

the case of a f inancial asset  not  at  FVPL, t ransact ion costs that  are direct ly at t r ibutable to

the acquisit ion of the financial asset .   Transact ion costs of f inancial assets carr ied at  FVPL, if

any, are expensed in profit  or loss.

Determ inat ion of fair  value

Fair value is determ ined by preference to the t ransact ion price or other market  pr ices.  I f

such market  pr ices are not  reliably determ inable, the fair  value is determ ined by using

appropriate valuat ion techniques.  Valuat ion techniques include net  present  value m odel

where the fair  value of the considerat ion is est im ated as the sum  of all future cash

paym ents or receipts, discounted using the prevailing m arket  rates of interest  for sim ilar

inst rum ents with sim ilar m aturit ies.  Other valuat ion techniques include com paring to

sim ilar inst rum ents for which m arket  observable prices exist ;  recent  arm ’s length market

t ransact ion;  opt ion pricing m odel and other relevant  valuat ion m odels.
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Classif icat ion of f inancial assets

From  January 1, 2018, the Group classif ies is f inancial assets in the following m easurem ent

categories:

• Those to be m easured subsequent ly at  fair  value (either through OCI  or through profit

or loss) , and

• Those to be measured at  am ort ized cost .

Financial assets at  fair  value through other com prehensive income (FVOCI )

Financial assets at  FVOCI  com prise:

• Equity inst ruments

Equity securit ies which are not  held for t rading, and which the Group has irrevocably

elected at  init ial recognit ion to be recogn ized in this category. These are st rategic

investments and the Group considers this classif icat ion to be more relevant .

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit  or loss.

Div idends are recognized as other incom e in the consolidated statem ents of profit  or

loss when the r ight  of paym ent  has been established, except  when the Group benefit s

from  such proceeds as a recovery of part  of the cost  of the financial asset ,  in which

case, such gains are recorded in OCI . Equity inst rum ents designated at  fair  value

through OCI  are not  subject  to im pairm ent  assessm ent .

• Debt  inst rum ents

Debt  securit ies where the cont ractual cash flows are solely pr incipal and interest  and

the object ive of the Group’s business m odel is achieved both by collect ing cont ractual

cash flows and selling financial assets.

For debt  inst rum ents at FVOCI , interest  income, foreign exchange revaluat ion and

im pairm ent  losses or reversals are recognized in the consolidated statem ents of profit

or loss and com puted in the sam e manner as for f inancial assets m easured at

am ort ized cost . The rem aining fair  value changes are recognized in OCI . Upon

derecognit ion, the cum ulat ive fair  value change recognized in OCI  is recycled to profit

or loss.

The Group has no debt  inst rum ents at  FVOCI  as at  January 1, 2019 and

June 30, 2019.

Financial assets at  FVPL

The Group classif ies the following financial assets at  FVPL:

• debt  investments that  do not  qualify for m easurem ent  at  either amort ized cost  or

FVOCI

• equity investm ents that  are held for t rading, and

• equity investm ents for which the ent it y has not  elected to recognize fair  value gains and

losses through OCI .

Financial assets at  FVPL are carr ied in the consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion at

fair  value with net  changes in fair  value recognized in the consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e. This category includes derivat ive inst rum ents and listed equity

investments which the Group had not  irrevocably elected to classify at  FVOCI . Div idends on

listed equity investm ents are also recognized as other incom e in the consolidated

statem ents of profit  or loss when the r ight  of paym ent  has been established.

The Group has no financial assets at  FVPL as at January 1, 2019 and June 30, 2019.
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Financial assets at  am ort ized cost

The am ort ized cost  of a f inancial asset  or f inancial liabilit y  is the present  value of future

cash receipts (paym ents)  discounted at  the effect ive interest  rate. The amort ized cost  of a

financial asset  or liabilit y  is the amount  at  which the financial asset  or liabilit y  is m easured

at  init ial recognit ion m inus principal repayments, plus or m inus the cum ulat ive am ort izat ion

using the effect ive interest  m ethod of any difference between the init ial am ount  and the

m aturit y am ount  and m inus any reduct ion (direct ly or through the use of an allowance

account )  for im pairm ent  or uncollect ibilit y .

A financial asset  is m easured at  amort ized cost  if it  m eets both of the following condit ions

and is not  designated as FVPL:

• it  is held within a business m odel whose object ive is to hold assets to collect  cont ractual

cash flows;

• it s cont ractual term s give r ise on specif ied dates to cash flows that  are solely paym ents

of pr incipal and interest  on the principal amount  outstanding.

Classif ied under f inancial assets m easured at  amort ized cost  is the Group’s cash in banks,

t rade and other receivables and due from  related part ies and stockholder (Notes 6, 7 and

20) .

For assets m easured at  fair  value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit  or loss

or OCI .  For investm ents in equity inst ruments that  are not  held for t rading, this will depend

on whether the Group has m ade an irrevocable elect ion at  the t im e of init ial recognit ion to

account  for the equity investm ent  at  FVOCI .

The classif icat ion depends on the Group’s business m odel for managing the financial assets

and the cont ractual term s of the cash flows.

The Group reclassif ies debt  investm ents when and only when it s business m odel for

m anaging those assets changes.

Financial assets with em bedded derivat ives are considered in their ent irety when

determ ining whether their cash flows are solely payment  of pr incipal and interest .

Subsequent  m easurem ent  of f inancial assets

• Debt  inst rum ents

There are three m easurem ent  categories into which the Group classif ies it s debt

inst rum ents:

• Am ort ized cost : Assets that  are held for collect ion of cont ractual cash flows where

those cash flows represent  solely paym ents of pr incipal and interest  are measured

at  amort ized cost .   I nterest  incom e from  these financial asset s is included in f inance

incom e using the effect ive interest  rate method.  Any gain or loss arising on

derecognit ion is recognized direct ly in profit  or loss and presented in other gains

( losses)  together with foreign exchange gains and losses. I m pairm ent losses are

presented as separate line item  in the consolidated statements of profit  or loss.

Short - term  receivables with no stated interest  rate are m easured at  their invoice

am ounts or expected am ounts of set t lem ent  without  discount ing, when the effect of

not  discount ing is im material.
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• FVOCI : Assets that  are held for collect ion of cont ractual cash flows and for selling

the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent  solely paym ents of

principal and interest ,  are m easured at  FVOCI .  Movem ents in the carry ing amount

are taken through OCI , except  for the recognit ion of im pairm ent  gains or losses,

interest  income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in

profit  or loss.  When the financial asset  is derecognized, the cumulat ive gain or loss

previously recognized in OCI  is reclassif ied from equity to profit  or loss and

recognized in other gains ( losses) .   I nterest  incom e from  these financial assets is

included in f inance incom e using the effect ive interest  rate m ethod.  Foreign

exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains ( losses)  and im pairm ent

expenses are presented as separate line item  in the consolidated statem ents of

profit  or loss.

• FVPL: Assets that  do not  m eet  the cr iter ia for am ort ized cost  or FVOCI  are

m easured at  FVPL.  A gain or loss on a debt  investment  that  is subsequent ly

m easured at  FVPL is recognized in profit  or loss and presented net  within other

gains ( losses)  in the period in which it  ar ises.

• Equity inst ruments

The Group subsequent ly m easures all equity investm ents at  fair  value.  Where the

Group’s managem ent  has elected to present  fair  value gains and losses on equity

investments in OCI , there is no subsequent  reclassif icat ion of fair  value gains and losses

to profit  or loss following the derecognit ion of the investm ent .   Div idends from  such

investments cont inue to be recognized in profit  or loss as other income when the

Group’s r ight  to receive paym ents is established.

I m pairm ent  of f inancial assets

From  January 1, 2018, the Group recognizes an expected credit  loss (ECL)  for all debt

inst rum ents not  held at  FVPL. ECLs are based in the difference between the cont ractual

cash flows due in accordance with the cont ract  and all the cash flows of that  the Group

expects to receive, discounted at an approxim at ion of the original effect ive interest

rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from  the sale of collateral held or

other credit  enhancem ents that  are integral to the cont ractual term s.

I n m easuring ECL, the Group must  reflect :

• An unbiased evaluat ion of a range of possible outcomes and their probabilit ies of

occurrence;

• Discount ing for the t im e value of m oney;  and

• Reasonable and supportable informat ion that  is available without  undue cost  or effort  at

the report ing date about  past  events, current  condit ions and forecasts of future

econom ic condit ions.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit  exposures for which there has not  been a

signif icant  increase in credit  r isk since init ial recognit ion, ECLs are provided for credit losses

that  result  from  default  events that  are possible within the next  12 -m onths (a 12-month

ECL). For those credit  exposures for which there has been a signif icant  increase in credit

r isk since init ial recognit ion, a loss allowance is required for credi t  losses expected over the

rem aining life of the exposure, irrespect ive of the t im ing of the default  (a lifet ime ECL).

For cash in banks, nont rade receivables and due from  related part ies and a stockholder,  the

Group applies the general approach in calculat ing ECLs. The Group recognizes a loss

allowance based on either 12-m onth ECL or lifet im e ECL, depending on whether there has

been a signif icant  increase in credit  r isk on it s cash in banks, nont rade receivables and due

from related part ies since init ial recognit ion.
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For t rade receivables, the Group applies the sim plif ied approach in calculat ing ECLs.

Therefore, the Group does not  t rack changes in credit  r isk, but  instead recognizes a loss

allowance based on lifet im e ECLs at  each report ing date. The Group has established a

provision mat r ix that  is based on it s histor ical credit  loss experience, adjusted for forward -

looking factors specif ic to the debtors and the econom ic environm ent .

The Group considers a f inancial asset  in default  when cont ractual paym ents are 90 days

past  due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a f inancial asset  to be in

default  when internal or external informat ion indicates that  the Group is unlikely to receive

the outstanding cont ractual amounts in full before taking into account  any credit

enhancem ents held by the Group. A financial asset  is writ ten off when there is no

reasonable expectat ion of recovering the cont ractual cash flows.

As at  January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018, the Group recognized addit ional im pairm ent
losses on t rade receivables am ount ing to P= 43.5 m illion and P= 9.1 m illion, respect ively
(see Note 7) .

Classif icat ion and subsequent  m easurem ent  of f inancial liabilit ies

The Group classif ies it s f inancial liabilit ies in t he following categories:

• Financial Liabilit ies at  FVPL

Financial liabilit ies are classif ied in this category if these result  from  t rading act iv it ies or

derivat ives t ransact ions that  are not  accounted for as account ing hedges, or the Group

elects to designate a financial liabilit y  under this category. Financial liabilit ies at  FVPL

are m easured at  fair  value and net  gains and losses, including interest  expense, are

recognized in profit  or loss.

As of June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group has no f inancial liabilit ies at

FVPL.

• Financial liabilit ies at  am ort ized cost

This category pertains to f inancial liabilit ies that  are not  held for t rading or not

designated as at  FVPL upon incept ion of the liabilit y .   These include liabilit ies ar ising

from  operat ions (e.g. payables excluding statutory regulated payables, accruals)  or

borrowing (e.g. long–term debt ) .   Other f inancial liabilit ies are subsequent ly m easured

at  amort ized cost  using effect ive interest  m ethod.

The financial liabilit ies are init ially  recorded at  fair  value less direct ly at t r ibutable

t ransact ion costs. After init ial recognit ion, other f inancial liabilit ies are subsequent ly

m easured at  am ort ized cost  using effect ive interest  m ethod. These include liabilit ies

arising from  operat ions and borrowings.  I nterest  expense and foreign exchange gains

and losses are recognized in profit  or loss.  Any gains and losses on derecognit ion are

also recognized in profit  or loss.

As at June 30, 2019, this category includes the Group’s t rade and other payab les, due

to related part ies, loans payable and lease payable (see Notes 15, 20, 16 and 27) .

Short - term  payables with no stated interest  rate are m easured at  their invoice amounts or

expected amounts of set t lem ent  without  discount ing, when the effect  of not  discount ing is

im m aterial.

The classif icat ion depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilit ies are acquired and

whether they are quoted in an act ive market .   Managem ent  determ ines the classif icat ion at

init ial recognit ion and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates this classif icat ion at

every report ing date.
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Derecognit ion of Financial I nst rum ents

Financial assets

A financial asset  is derecognized when (1)  the r ights to receive cash flows from the

financial inst rum ents expire, (2)  the Group retains the r ight  to receive cash flows from  the

asset ,  but  has assumed an obligat ion to pay them  in full without  material delay to a third

party under a “pass- through”  arrangem ent , or (3)  the Group has t ransferred it s r ights to

receive cash flows from the asset  and either has t ransferred substant ially  all the r isks and

rewards of the asset ,  or has neither t ransferred nor retained substant ially  all the r isks and

rewards of the asset ,  but  has t ransferred cont rol of the asset .

Where the Group has t ransferred it s r ights to receive cash flows of an asset  or has entered

into a pass- through arrangem ent  and has neither t ransferred nor retained substant ially  all

the r isks and rewards of an asset  nor t ransferred cont rol of the assets, the asset  is

recognized to the extent  of the Group’s cont inuing involvem ent  in the asset .  Cont inuing

involvement  that  takes the form  of a guarantee over the t ransferred asset  is m easured at

the lower of the original carry ing am ount  of the asset  and the maxim um  am ount  of

considerat ion that  the Group could be required to repay.

On disposal of debt  investm ents, any related balance within the FVOCI  reserve is
reclassif ied to profit  or loss.

On disposal of equity investments, any related balance within the FVOCI  reserve is

reclassif ied to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilit ies

A financial liabilit y  is derecognized when the obligat ion under the liabilit y  is discharged,

cancelled or expired.  Where the exist ing financial liabilit y  is replaced by another from the

sam e lender on substant ially  different  term s, or the term s of an exist ing liabilit y  are

substant ially  m odified, such an exchange or modificat ion is t reated as a derecognit ion of

the original liabilit y  and the recognit ion of a new liabilit y , and the difference in the

respect ive carry ing am ounts is recognized in the consolidated statem ents of com prehensive

incom e.

Account ing policies on financial inst rum ents applied unt il Decem ber 31, 2017

The Group has applied PFRS 9 ret rospect ively,  but  has elected not  to restate com parat ive

informat ion.  As a result ,  the com parat ive informat ion provided cont inues to be accounted

for in accordance with the Group’s previous account ing policy m ent ioned in the succeeding

pages.

Recognit ion of Financial I nst rum ents

Financial inst ruments are recognized init ially  at  fair  value of the considerat ion given ( in

case of an asset )  or received ( in case of liabilit y) .   The init ial m easurem ent  of f inancial

inst rum ents, except  those categorized at  FVPL, includes t ransact ion cost .

The fair  value for f inancial inst rum ents t raded in act ive markets as at the report ing date is

based on their quoted market  pr ice or dealer quotat ions (bid pr ice for long posit ions and

ask price for short  posit ions) ,  without  any deduct ion for t ransact ion costs.  When current

bid and ask ing prices are not  available, the price of the m ost  recent  t ransact ion provides

evidence of the current  fair  value as long as there has not been a signif icant  change in

econom ic circum stances since the t im e of the t ransact ions.

For all other inst rum ents not  listed in an act ive m arket ,  the fair  value is determ ined by

using appropriate valuat ion techniques.  Valuat ion techniques include net  present  value

technique com parison to sim ilar inst rum ents for which m arket  observable prices exist  and

other relevant  valuat ion models.
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Subsequent  to init ial recognit ion, the Group classif ied it s f inancial inst ruments in the

following categories:   Financial assets and liabilit ies at  FVPL, loans and receivables, held - to-

m aturit y (HTM)  investm ents, available- for-sale (AFS)  investm ents and other f inancial

liabilit ies.  The classif icat ion depends on the purpose for which the inst rum ents are

acquired and whether they are quoted in an act ive m arket .   Managem ent  determ ines the

classif icat ion at  init ial recognit ion and, where al lowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

classif icat ion at  every report ing date.

Financial inst rum ents are classif ied as liabilit y  or equity in accordance with the substance of

the cont ractual arrangement .  I nterests, div idends, gains and losses relat in g to a f inancial

inst rum ent  or a com ponent  that  is a f inancial liabilit y ,  are reported as expense or income.

Dist r ibut ions to holders of f inancial inst rum ents classif ied as equity are charged direct ly to

equity, net  of any related incom e tax benefit s.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivat ive financial assets with f ixed or determ inable

paym ents and are not  quoted in an act ive market .  They arise when the Group provides

m oney, goods or services direct ly to a debtor with no intent ion of t rading the receivables.

After init ial recognit ion, loans and receivables are subsequent ly m easured at  am ort ized cost

less allowance for im pairm ent ,  if any.  The losses from  im pairm ent  is recognized as

“Provision for doubt ful accounts”  and charged to profit  or loss.

Am ort izat ion is determ ined using the effect ive interest  m ethod.  Am ort ized cost  is

calculated by taking into account  any discount  or prem ium  on acquisit ion and fees that  are

integral part  of the effect ive interest  rate.  The amort ized cost  of a f inancial asset  is the

am ount  at  which the financial asset  is m easured at  init ial recognit ion m inus principal

repayments, plus or m inus the cumulat ive amort izat ion using the effect ive interest  m ethod

of any difference between the init ial amount  and the maturit y am ount  and m inus any

reduct ion (direct ly or through the use of an allowance account )  for im pairm ent  or

uncollect ibilit y . Short - term  receivables with no stated interest  rate are m easured at  their

invoice am ounts or expected amounts of set t lem ent  w ithout  discount ing, when the effect  of

not  discount ing is im material.

Gains and losses are recognized in the profit  or loss when the loans and receivables are

derecognized or im paired, as well as through the am ort izat ion process.  Loans and

receivables are included in current  assets if m aturity is within 12 months from  the end of

financial report ing period or the normal operat ing cycle, whichever is longer.  Otherwise,

these are classif ied as noncurrent  assets.

This category includes the Group’s cash in banks (Note 6) ,  t rade and other receivables

(Note 7) , due from  related part ies and due from a stockholder (Note 20)  and refundable

deposit  (Note 14) .   The carry ing values of these loans and receivables are shown in Note

29 to the consolidated financial stat em ents.

The Group has no AFS investments, f inancial assets and financial liabilit ies at  FVPL and

HTM investments as at  Decem ber 31, 2017.  A financial asset  at  FVPL is acquired

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term  or upon init ial

recognit ion, it  is designated by the managem ent  as at  FVPL.  HTM investm ents are non -

derivat ive financial assets with f ixed or determ inable payments and fixed m aturit ies

wherein the Group has the posit ive intent ion and abilit y  to hold to maturit y .   AFS

investments are non-derivat ive financial assets that  are designated in this category or are

not  classif ied in any of the other categories.

Other Financial Liabilit ies

This category pertains to financial liabilit ies that  are not  held for t rading nor designated as

at  FVPL upon incept ion of the liabilit y .   These include liabilit ies ar ising from  operat ions and

borrowings.
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Other f inancial liabilit ies are recognized init ially  at  fair  value of the considerat ion received

less direct ly at t r ibutable t ransact ion costs, if any.  After init ial recognit ion, these are

subsequent ly carr ied at  am ort ized cost ,  taking into account  the im pact  of apply ing the

effect ive interest  method of amort izat ion (or accret ion)  from any related premium , discount

and any direct ly at t r ibutable t ransact ion costs.  Am ort ized cost  is calculated by taking into

account  any related issue costs, discount  or prem ium .  Short - term  payables with no stated

interest  rate are measured at  their invoice amounts or expected am ounts of set t lement

without  discount ing, when the effect  of not  discount ing is im m aterial.   Gains and losses are

recognized in profit  or loss when the liabilit ies are derecognized as well as through the

am ort izat ion process.

Financial liabilit ies are classif ied as current  liab ilit ies if these are expected to be paid or

set t led within twelve (12)  m onths after the balance sheet  date.   Otherwise, these are

classif ied as noncurrent  liabilit ies.

This category includes the Group’s t rade and other payables excluding government

regulated payables (Note 15) ,  due to related part ies (Note 20) , lease payable (Note 26)

and loans payable (Note 16) .

I m pairm ent  of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at  end of each financial report ing period whether a f inancial asset  or

group of f inancial assets is im paired.

• Assets carr ied at  am ort ized cost . I f there is object ive evidence that  an impairm ent

loss on loans and receivables carr ied at  amort ized cost  has been incurred, the am ount

of the loss is m easured as the difference between the asset ’s carry ing am ount  and the

present  value of est imated future cash flows (excluding future credit  losses that  have

not  been incurred)  discounted at  the financial asset ’s or iginal effect ive interest  rate

( i.e.,  the effect ive interest  rate computed at  init ial recognit ion) .  The carry ing am ount

of the asset  shall be reduced either direct ly or through use of an allowance account .

The amount  of the loss shall be recognized in the Group’s as part  of profit  or loss in the

consolidated statem ents of com prehensive income.

The Group first  assesses whether object ive evidence of im pairm ent  exists indiv idually

for f inancial assets that  are indiv idually signif icant , and indiv idually or collect ively for

financial assets that  are not  indiv idually signif icant .   I f it  is determ ined that  no

object ive evidence of im pairm ent  exists for an indiv idually assessed financial asset ,

whether signif icant  or not ,  the asset  is included in a group of f inancial assets with

sim ilar credit  r isk characterist ics and that  group of f inancial assets are collect ively

assessed for im pairm ent .   Assets that  are indiv idually assessed for im pairm ent  and for

which an im pairm ent  loss is or cont inues to be recognized are not  included in a

collect ive assessm ent  of im pairm ent .

I f,  in a subsequent  period, the amount of the im pairm ent  loss decrease can be related

object ively to an event  occurr ing after the im pairm ent  was recognized, the previously

recognized im pairm ent  loss is reversed.  Any subsequent  reversal of an im pairm ent

loss is recognized as part  of profit  or loss in the consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e to the extent  that  the carry ing value of the asset  does not

exceed it s am ort ized cost  at  the reversal date.

• Assets carr ied at  cost . I f there is object ive evidence that  an im pairm ent  loss has been

incurred in an unquoted equity inst rum ent  that  is not  carr ied at  fair  value because it s

fair  value cannot  be reliably m easured, or on a derivat ive asset  that  is linked to and

m ust  be set t led by delivery of such an unquoted equity inst rum ent ,  the am ount  of the

loss is m easured as the difference between the asset ’s carry ing am ount  and the present

value of est im ated future cash flows discounted at  the current  market  rate of return for

a sim ilar f inancial asset .
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• AFS financial asset . I f an AFS financial asset  is im paired, an am ount  com prising the

difference between it s cost  (net  of any principal paym ent  and amort izat ion)  and it s

current  fair  value, less any im pairm ent  loss previously recognized in the Group

consolidated statem ents of com prehensive income, is t ransferred from the Group

consolidated statem ents of changes in equity to the consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e.  Reversals in respect  of equity inst rum ents classif ied as AFS

financial assets are not  recognized in the Group consolidated statements of

com prehensive incom e.  For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at  each report ing

date whether there is object ive evidence that  an investm ent  or a group of investm ents

is im paired.  I n the case of equity investm ents classif ied as AFS financial assets,

object ive evidence would include a signif icant  or prolonged decline in the fair  value of

the investment  below it s cost .

Where there is evidence of im pairm ent , the cum ulat ive loss, m easured as the difference

between the acquisit ion cost  and the current  fair  value, less any im pairm ent  loss on

that  investm ent  is rem oved from the Group statem ents of changes in equity and

recognized in the Group consolidated statements of com prehensive incom e.

I mpairm ent  losses on equity investments are not  reversed through the Group

consolidated statem ents of comprehensive incom e;  increases in their fair  value after

im pairm ent  are recognized direct ly in the Group consolidated statem ents of changes in

equity.

Classif icat ion of Financial I nst rument  between Debt  and Equity

Financial inst rum ents are classif ied as liabilit ies or equity in accordance with the substance

of the cont ractual arrangem ent .  I nterest  relat ing to a f inancial inst rum ent  or a com ponent

that  is a f inancial liabilit y  is reported as expenses.

A financial inst rum ent  is classif ied as debt  if it  provides for a cont ractual obligat ion to:

(a)  deliver cash or another f inancial asset  to another ent ity;  or (b)  exchange financial

assets or f inancial liabilit ies with another ent ity under condit ions that  are potent ially

unfavorable to the Group;  or (c)  sat isfy the obligat ion other than by exchange of a f ixed

am ount  of cash or other f inancial asset  for a f ixed num ber of own equity shares.

I f the Group does not  have an uncondit ional r ight  to avoid delivering cash or another

financial asset  to set t le it s cont ractual obligat ion, the obligat ion m eets the definit ion of a

financial liabilit y .

Offset t ing Financial I nst rum ents

Financial assets and financial liabilit ies are offset  and the net  am ount  is reported in the

Group’s consolidated statem ents of f inancial posit ion if,  and only if,  there is a current ly

enforceable legal r ight  to offset  the recognized am ounts and there is an intent ion to set t le

on a net  basis,  or to realize the asset  and set t le the liabilit y  sim ultaneously.  This is not

generally the case with master net t ing agreements, and the related assets and liabilit ies are

presented gross in the Group’s consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash pertains to cash on hand and in banks.  Cash in banks generally earn interest  at  rates

based on daily bank rates. Cash equivalents are short - term , highly liquid inst rum ents that

are readily convert ible to known amounts of cash with or iginal m aturit ies of three m onths

or less from  dates of acquisit ion and that  are subject  to an insignif icant  r isk of change in

value.

Advances to Officers and Em ployees

Advances to em ployees for business expenses that  are yet  to be received such as

purchases of goods and services subject  to liquidat ion are recognized at  the actual cash

am ount  advanced to employees, less any im pairm ent .   These are init ially  recorded at

actual cash advances to em ployees and are subsequent ly applied to the related assets,

costs or expenses incurred.
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Advances to Suppliers and Cont ractors

Advances to suppliers and cont ractors represent  am ounts paid in advance for the

const ruct ion of an asset  or com binat ion of assets which future econom ic benefit s are

expected to f low to the Group within normal operat ing cycle or within twelve m onths from

the end of f inancial report ing period.  These are init ially  recorded at  actual cash advanced

to suppliers and cont ractors and are subsequent ly applied against  subsequent  render of

service.

I nventories

I nventories are init ially  recorded at  cost .  Subsequent  to init ial recognit ion, inventories are

stated at  lower of cost and net  realizable value (NRV) . Costs incurred in br inging each

product  to it s present  locat ion and condit ion is accounted for as follows:

Packaging materials and other

supplies

- at  purchase cost  on a first - in, f irst -out  (FI FO) m ethod

Agricultural produce - at  purchase price on a FIFO m ethod

Finished goods - at  manufacturing or purchase cost  on a FI FO m ethod

Property for sale - at const ruct ion cost

NRV of f inished goods is the est im ated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

est im ated costs of complet ion and the est im ated costs to sell.   For packaging materials and

other supplies, NRV is the current  replacement  cost . I nventories are classif ied as current

when they are expected to be realized within the norm al operat ing cycle.

Provision for inventory loss is established for est im ated losses on inventories which are

determ ined based on specif ic ident if icat ion of slow -m oving, damaged and obsolete

inventories and charged to operat ions.

Prepaym ents and Other Current  Assets

Prepaym ents are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset  before they are ut ilized.

This account  com prises the following:

• Prepaym ents are costs and expenses which are paid in advance of actually incurr ing

them and regularly recurr ing in the normal course of the business. Prepaid expenses

are init ially  recorded at  actual am ount  paid for expenses and are amort ized as the

benefit s of the paym ents are received by the Group and are charged to expense in the

applicable period of applicat ion or expirat ion.

• I nput  value added tax (VAT) represents VAT im posed on the Group by it s suppliers for

the acquisit ion of goods and services as required by the Philippine taxat ion laws and

regulat ions.  I nput VAT is presented as current  asset  and will be used to offset  against

the Group’s current  output  VAT liabilit ies, if any.  I nput  VAT is init ially  recognized at

actual amount  paid for and subsequent ly stated at  it s recoverable am ount  (cost  less

im pairm ent ) .

• Creditable withholding tax is recognized for incom e taxes withheld by customers.  The

balance at  the end of each of report ing period represents the unut ilized am ount  after

deduct ing any income tax payable.  Creditable withholding tax is init ially  recognized at

actual amount  withheld by the customers and subsequent ly stated at  such amount  less

any applicat ion against  incom e tax payable and im pairm ent  (net  recoverable am ount ) .

• Deposits to suppliers represent  am ount  paid in advance for goods or services that  are

yet  to be delivered and from  which future econom ic benefit s are expected to f low to the

Group within the normal operat ing cycle or within twelve (12)  m onths from the financial

report ing date.  These are init ially  recorded at  actual cash advanced and are

subsequent ly applied against  subsequent  asset  purchases, costs or expenses incurred.
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Prepaym ents and other assets that  are expected to be realized for no more than 12 months

after the report ing period are classif ied as current  asset .  Otherwise, these are classif ied as

other noncurrent  assets.

Property and Equipm ent

Property and equipm ent  are init ially  recorded at  cost .   Subsequent  to init ial recognit ion,

property and equipm ent  are carr ied at  cost  less accum ulated depreciat ion, amort izat ion and

any allowance for im pairm ent  in value except  for land.  Land is stated at  cost  less any

im pairm ent  in value.

I nit ial cost  of property and equipm ent  com prises it s const ruct ion cost  or purchase price and

any direct ly at t r ibutable cost  of br inging the assets to it s working condit ion and locat ion for

it s intended use.  Expenses incurred and paid after the property and equipm ent  have been

put  into operat ion, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally

charged to incom e when the costs are incurred.  I n situat ion where it  can be clearly

dem onst rated that  the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future econom ic

benefit s expected to be obtained from  the use of an item  of property and equipm ent

beyond it s or iginally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as

an addit ional cost  of property and equipm ent .

Each part  of an item  of property and equipm ent  with a cost  that  is signif icant  in relat ion to

the total cost  of an item  shall be depreciated separately.

Depreciat ion and am ort izat ion are computed using the st raight - line m ethod over the

following est im ated useful lives:

Category Num ber of Years

Building and im provem ents 15 to 20

Store and warehouse equipm ent 3 to 5

Delivery and t ransportat ion equipm ent 3 to 12

Machinery and equipm ent 3 to 12

Office furniture and fixtures 3 to 12

Leasehold im provement 5

Leasehold im provem ents are amort ized over the term  of the lease or est im ated useful lives

of the im provem ents, whichever is shorter.

The useful life,  residual value and depreciat ion and am ort izat ion m ethods are reviewed

periodically to ensure that  the m ethod and period of depreciat ion and am ort izat ion are

consistent  with the expected pat tern of econom ic benefit s from  item s of property and

equipm ent .

Property and equipm ent are writ ten-down to it s recoverable amount  if the carry ing amount

is greater than it s est im ated recoverable amount .

Depreciat ion of property and equipm ent  begins when it  becom es available for use and after

the r isks and rewards are t ransferred to the Group i.e.,  when it  is in the locat ion and

condit ion necessary for it  to be capable of operat ing in the manner intended by

m anagem ent .

When the assets are ret ired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost  and the related

accumulated depreciat ion and any im pairm ent  in value, are removed from the accounts and

any result ing gain or loss is recognized in the Group consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e.
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Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts unt il they are no longer in use and no

further depreciat ion is charged to Group consolidated statem ents of com prehensive incom e.

An item  of property and equipm ent  is derecognized upon disposal or when no future

econom ic benefit s are expected from  it s use or disposal.  Any gain or loss ar ising on

derecognit ion of the asset  (calculated as the difference between the net  disposal proceeds

and the carry ing am ount  of the asset )  is included in the Group consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive income in the year the asset  is derecognized. Transfers to or from  property

and equipm ent  are m easured at  carry ing value of the assets t ransferred.

Const ruct ion in progress included in property and equipm ent ,  is stated at  cost .  This includes

cost  of const ruct ion and other direct  costs. Borrowing costs that are direct ly at t r ibutable to

the const ruct ion in progress are capitalized during the const ruct ion period. Const ruct ion in

progress is not  depreciated unt il such t im e as the relevant  assets are completed and put

into operat ional use.

I ntangible Assets

I ntangible assets acquired separately are m easured on init ial recognit ion at  cost .   The cost

of intangible assets acquired in a business com binat ion is their fair  value at  the date of

acquisit ion. Following init ial recognit ion, intangible assets are carr ied at  cost  less any

accumulated amort izat ion and accum ulated im pairm ent  losses. I nternally generated

intangibles, excluding capitalized developm ent  costs, are not  capitalized and the related

expenditure is reflected in profit  or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either f inite or indefinite.

I ntangible assets with f inite lives are am ort ized over the useful econom ic life and assessed

for im pairm ent  whenever there is an indicat ion t hat  the intangible asset  may be im paired.

The am ort izat ion period and the amort izat ion method for an intangible asset  with a f inite

useful life are reviewed at  least  at  the end of each report ing period. Changes in the

expected useful life or the expected pat tern of consum pt ion of future econom ic benefits

em bodied in the asset  are considered to modify the amort izat ion period or m ethod, as

appropriate, and are t reated as changes in account ing est im ates.  The am ort izat ion

expense on intangible assets with f in ite lives is recognized in the consolidated statements of

incom e as the expense category that  is consistent  with the funct ion of the intangible assets.

I ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not  amort ized, but  are tested for

im pairm ent  annually, either indiv idually or at  the cash-generat ing unit  level.   The

assessm ent  of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determ ine whether the indefinite life

cont inues to be supportable.  I f not , the change in useful life from  indefinite to f inite is

m ade on a prospect ive basis.

Gains or losses arising from  de- recognit ion of an intangible asset  are m easured as the

difference between the net  disposal proceeds and the carry ing am ount  of the asset  and are

recognized in the consolidated statem ents of incom e when the asset  is derecognized.

Com puter software

Com puter software acquired separately are m easured on init ial recognit ion at  cost .   The

init ial cost  of com puter software consists of it s purchase price, including im port  dut ies,

taxes and any direct ly at t r ibutable cost  of br inging the assets to it s working condit ion and

locat ion for intended use. Subsequent ly,  com puter software are carr ied at  cost  less

accumulated am ort izat ion and any accumulated im pairm ent  loss.
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Acquired computer software is capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and

bring to use the specif ic software.  Computer software is am ort ized on a st raight - line basis

over it s est imated useful life of f ive (5)  years.  Costs associated with the developm ent  or

m aintenance of software cost  program s are recognized as expense when incurred in the

Group’s statem ents of incom e. Software cost  is derecognized upon disposal or when no

future econom ic benefit s are expected to ar ise from  the cont inued use of the asset .   Any

gain or loss arising on derecognit ion of the asset  is included in the Group’s consolidated

statem ents of incom e in the year of derecognit ion.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase considerat ion of an acquisit ion over the fair

value of the Group’s share of the net  ident if iable assets acquired at  the date of acquisit ion.

Goodwill is tested for im pairm ent  annually or m ore frequent ly if events or changes in

circum stances indicate that  m ight  be im paired, and is carr ied at  cost  less accumulated

im pairm ent  losses, if any. Any im pairm ent  losses recognized for goodwill are not

subsequent ly reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an ent ity include the carry ing

am ount  of goodwill relat ing to the ent it y sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generat ing units for t he purpose of im pairm ent  test ing. When

the recoverable amount  of cash-generat ing units is less than the carry ing am ount , an

im pairm ent  loss is recognized. The Group perform s it s im pairm ent  test ing at  the report ing

date using a value- in-use, discounted cash flow m ethodology.

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired separately are init ially recognized at  cost .   Following init ial

recognit ion, t rademarks are carr ied at  cost  less accum ulated amort izat ion and any

im pairm ent  losses. The Group assesses for im pairm ent  whenever there is an indicat ion

that  these assets may be im paired. The Group has assessed that  certain t rademark

acquired in a business com binat ion in the past  has indefinite useful lives, thus are not

am ort ized, but  tested for im pairm ent  annually,  either indiv idually or at  the cash-generat ing

unit  level. The assessm ent  of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determ ine whether the

indefinite life cont inues to be supportable. I f not ,  the change in useful life from indefinite to

finite is made on a prospect ive basis.

The remaining t rademark at  current  year has finite useful life and is am ort ized over st raight

line basis over it s est im ated useful life of twenty (20)  years. The amort izat ion period and

the am ort izat ion m ethod are reviewed at  least  at  each financial year-end.  Changes in the

expected useful life or the expected pat tern of consum pt ion of future econom ic benefit s

em bodied in the asset  is accounted for by changing the amort izat ion period or m ethod, as

appropriate, and are t reated as changes in accoun t ing est imates. The am ort izat ion expense

is recognized in the consolidated statem ent  of income under “Depreciat ion and

am ort izat ion”  account  in the expense category consistent  with the funct ion of the intangible

asset .

Franchise

The Group recognizes franchise as part  of it s intangible assets when the franchise produces

revenue to the Group and the cost  is m easurable.  At  init ial recognit ion, franchise is valued

at  cost  which is the amount  incurred in acquir ing the franchise.  Franchise whose life has

been determ ined to be finite is am ort ized over the years ident if ied.  I f the life of the

franchise is determ ined to be indefinite,  such franchise is not  am ort ized but  tested for

im pairm ent .   Franchise is derecognized upon sale or ret irem ent .   The difference between

the carry ing value and the proceeds shall be recognized in the profit  or loss. Franchise is

am ort ized on a st raight - line basis over it s est imated useful life of ten (10)  years.

Other Noncurrent  Assets

Other noncurrent  assets include long- term  deposit  and advances for land acquisit ion. Long-

term  deposit  and others are stated at  cost  and are classif ied as noncurrent  assets since the
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Group expects to ut ilize these beyond twelve (12)  m onths from the end of the report ing

period.

Deposit for land acquisit ion m ainly represents usufruct  r ights over a property and init ially

recognized at  actual am ount  paid and subsequent ly stated at  cost  less any im pairm ent in

value.

Biological Assets

Biological assets com prise of agricultural produce such as vegetables and crops.

Agricultural produce are init ially  recognized at  their fair  value less point  of sale costs.

Agricultural produce should be m easured at  the t im e of harvest .

Refundable deposits

Refundable deposits ar ising from  lease of off ice space from  a certain lessor is m easured at

cost .  The fair  value of the refundable deposits on lease cont racts cannot  be readily

determ ined and reliably m easured because the actual t im ing of receipt  cannot  be

reasonably predicted as these deposits are generally re-deposited every renewal of lease

cont ract ,  the new term s and condit ions thereof are not  yet  known. The am ount  of

refundable deposits that  will be actually received by the Group is also at tached to a

condit ional repaym ent  provision that  is,  the faithful performance by the Group of it s

obligat ions under the lease cont racts. Accordingly, the refundable deposits are carr ied at

costs less any im pairm ent .

Business Com binat ions and Goodwill

Business combinat ions, except  for business com binat ion between ent it ies under common

cont rol,  are accounted for using the acquisit ion m ethod. The cost  of an acquisit ion is

m easured as the aggregate of the considerat ion t ransferred, m easured at  acquisit ion date

fair  value and the am ount  of any NCI  in the acquiree. For each business combin at ion, the

acquirer m easures the NCI  in the acquiree either at  fair  value or at  the proport ionate share

of the acquiree’s ident if iable net  assets. Acquisit ion- related costs incurred are expensed and

included in general and adm inist rat ive expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it  assesses the financial assets and financial liabilit ies

assumed for appropriate classif icat ion and designat ion in accordance with the cont ractual

term s, econom ic circum stances and pert inent  condit ions as at  the acquisit ion date. This

includes the separat ion of em bedded derivat ives in host  cont racts by the acquiree.  I f the

business com binat ion is achieved in stages, the acquisit ion date fair  value of the acquirer ’s

previously held equity interest  in the acquiree is remeasured to fair  value at  the acquisit ion

date and any gain or loss on remeasurement  is recognized in the consolidated statem ent s

of incom e. I t  is then considered in the determ inat ion of goodwill .

Any cont ingent  considerat ion to be t ransferred by the acquirer wil l be recognized at  fair

value at  the acquisit ion date. Subsequent  changes to the fair  value of the cont ingent

considerat ion which is deem ed to be an asset  or liabilit y ,  will be recognized in accordance

with PFRS 9 either in the consolidated statem ent s of incom e, or in the consolidated

statem ents of com prehensive incom e. I f the cont ingent  considerat ion is classif ied as equity,

it  is not  rem easured unt il it  is f inally set t led within equity.

Goodwill is init ially  m easured at  cost  being the excess of the aggregate of the considerat ion

t ransferred and the am ount  recognized for NCI  over the net  ident if iable assets acquired and

liabilit ies assum ed. I f this considerat ion is lower than the fair  value of the net  assets of the

subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in the consolidated statem ents of income.

After init ial recognit ion, goodwill is m easured at  cost  less any accumulated im pairm ent

losses.  For the purpose of im pairm ent  test ing, goodwill acquired in a business com binat ion

is,  from the acquisit ion date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generat ing units (CGUs)

that  are expected to benefit  from  the com binat ion, irrespect ive of whether other assets or

liabilit ies of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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Where goodwill form s part  of a CGU and part  of the operat ion within that  unit  is disposed

of,  the goodwill associated with the operat ion disposed of is included in the carry ing amount

of the operat ion when determ ining the gain or loss on disposal of the operat ion. Goodwill

disposed of in this circum stance is m easured based on the relat ive values of the operat ion

disposed of and the port ion of the CGU retained.

Goodwill is reviewed for im pairm ent ,  annually or more frequent ly if events or changes in

circum stances indicate that  the carry ing value may be im paired.

I mpairm ent  is determ ined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable am ount  of the CGU or

group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable am ount  of the CGU or

group of CGUs is less than the carry ing am ount  of the CGU or g roup of CGUs to which

goodwill has been allocated, an im pairm ent  loss is recognized in the consolidated statem ent

of incom e. I m pairm ent  losses relat ing to goodwill cannot  be reversed in future periods. The

Group perform s it  im pairment  test  of goodwill annually every Decem ber 31.

I mpairm ent  of Nonfinancial Assets

The carry ing values of advances to em ployees, advances to cont ractors and suppliers,

inventories, prepaym ents and other current  assets, deposit  for future investment ,  property

and equipm ent ,  intangible assets and other noncurrent  assets are reviewed for im pairm ent

when events or changes in circum stances indicate that  the carry ing value m ay not  be

recoverable. I f any such indicat ion exists,  and where the carry ing values exceed the

est im ated recoverable amount ,  the assets or cash-generat ing units are writ ten down to

their recoverable amount  and im pairm ent  losses are recognized in the profit  or loss.  The

recoverable am ount  of advances to employees, advances to cont ractors and suppliers,

inventories, prepaym ents and other current  assets, deposit  for future investment ,  property

and equipment ,  intangible assets and other noncurrent  assets is the greater of net  selling

price ( fair  value less cost  to sell)  and value in use.  I n assessing value in use, the est imated

future cash flows are discounted to their present  value using a pre- tax discount  rate that

reflects current  market  assessm ents of t im e value of m oney and the r isks specif ic to the

asset .

For an asset  that  does not  generate largely independent  cash flows, the recoverable

am ount  is determ ined for the cash-generat ing unit  to which the asset  belongs.  An

im pairm ent  loss is charged to operat ions in the period in which it  ar ises unless the asset  is

carr ied at  a revalued am ount  in which case the im pairm ent  is charged to the revaluat ion

increm ent  of the said asset .

An assessm ent  is m ade at  each end of f inancial report ing period to determ ine whether

there is any indicat ion that  previously recognized im pairm ent  losses m ay no longer exist  or

m ay have decreased.  I f such indicat ion exists,  the recoverable am ount  is est im ated.  A

previously recognized im pairm ent  loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the

est im ates used to determ ine the asset ’s recoverable am ount  since the last  im pairm ent  loss

was recognized.  I f that  is the case, the carry ing am ount  of the asset  is increased to it s

recoverable amount .   That  increased am ount  cannot  exceed the carry ing am ount  that

would have been determ ined, net  of depreciat ion, had no im pairm ent  loss been recognized

for the asset  in pr ior years.  Such reversal is recognized in the profit  and loss unless the

asset  is carr ied at  revalued am ount , in which case the reversal is t reated as revaluat ion

increase.  After such reversal the depreciat ion charge is adjusted in fut ure periods to

allocate the asset ’s revised carry ing amount ,  less any residual value, on system at ic basis

over it s remaining useful life.

Deposits for Future Subscript ions

Deposit for future stock subscript ions which are received in v iew of call for futur e

subscript ions are stated at  actual amount  of cash received.

These are classif ied as part  of equity if all of the following are present  as of end of the

report ing period:
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a. The unissued authorized capital stock of the ent it y is insufficient  to cover the am ount  of

shares indicated in the cont ract ;

b. There is BOD’s approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock ( for which

a deposit  was received by the Group) ;

c. There is a stockholders’ approval of said proposed increase;  and

d. The applicat ion for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

Custom ers’ Deposit

Custom ers’ deposits are noninterest -bearing cash reservat ion fees received from  the

Group’s customers for sales that  do not  m eet  the revenue recognit ion cr iter ia ( i.e. , t ransfer

of r isk and rewards to custom ers through actual delivery of m erchandise or services) as of

report ing date. Custom ers’ deposits will be applied against  future rendit ion of services

which are generally completed within the next  twelve m onths or will be returned to

customers in case of cancellat ion of reservat ion.

Related Party Transact ions and Relat ionships

Related party t ransact ions are t ransfers of resources, services or obligat ions between the

Group and it s related part ies, regardless whether a pr ice is charged. Part ies are considered

to be related if one party has the abilit y  to cont rol the other party or exercise signif icant

influence over the other party in making financial and operat ing decisions. These part ies

include:  (a)  indiv iduals owning, direct ly or indirect ly through one or more interm ediaries,

cont rol or are cont rolled by, or under com m on cont rol with the Group; (b)  associates;  (c)

indiv iduals owning, direct ly or indirect ly,  an interest  in the vot ing power of the Group that

gives them signif icant  influence over the Group and close m em bers of the fam ily of any

such indiv idual;  and (d)  other related part ies such as directors, off icers, and stockholders.

I n considering each possible related party relat ionship, at tent ion is directed to the

substance of the relat ionship and not  m erely on the legal form .

Dividends

Dividend dist r ibut ion to the Group’s stockholders is recognized as a liabilit y  in the

consolidated financial statem ents in the period in which the div idends are approved or

declared by the Group’s BOD. Dividends are recognized as a liabilit y  and deducted from

equity when they are approved by the stockholders of the Group. Dividends for the year

that  are approved after the report ing period are dealt  with as an event  after the repor t ing

period.

Equity

• Capital stock pertains to ordinary stock which are classif ied as equity.   The proceeds

from  issuance of the ordinary stock are presented in equity as capital stock to the

extent  of the par value of issued shares.

• Addit ional paid- in capital includes any prem ium s received on the init ial issuance of

capital stock. Any t ransact ion costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted

from addit ional paid- in capital, net  of any related incom e tax benefit s.

• Retained earnings (Deficit ) include all current  and prior period net  incom e as disclosed

in the consolidated statements of com prehensive incom e, div idend dist r ibut ions, effects

of changes in account ing policy and other capital adjustm ents.

• Other comprehensive incom e ( loss) com prises item s of incom e and expense ( including

item s previously presented under the consolidated statem ents of changes in equity)

that  are not  recognized in the profit  or loss in the Group’s consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e for the year in accordance with PFRS.

• Net  cum ulat ive rem easurem ent gain ( loss) represents the cum ulat ive balance of

rem easurement gain ( loss)  on ret irem ent  benefit  obligat ion.

Foreign Currency Transact ions

Transact ions in foreign currencies are init ially  recorded using the funct ional currency

exchange rates prevailing at  the date of the t ransact ion. Outstanding monetary assets and

liabilit ies denom inated in foreign currencies are restated using the closing funct ional

currency exchange rate at  the end of f inancial report ing date. All differences are taken to
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the consolidated statem ents of comprehensive incom e. Non-monetary item s that  are

m easured in term s of histor ical cost  in a foreign currency are t ranslated using the exchange

rates at  the dates of the init ial t ransact ion.

Foreign Currency Translat ion of Foreign Operat ions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesos, which is the

Group’s funct ional and presentat ion currency.

Each subsidiary in the Group determ ines it s own funct ional currency and it em s included in

the consolidated financial statem ent s of each subsidiary are m easured using that  funct ional

currency.  Transact ions in foreign currencies are init ially  recorded in the funct ional currency

rate on the date of the t ransact ion.  Outstanding m onetary assets and liabilit ies

denom inated in foreign currencies are ret ranslated at  the funct ional currency rate of

exchange at  consolidated statem ent s of f inancial posit ion date.  All exchange differences

are recognized in consolidated statem ents of incom e.

Non-m onetary item s that  are measured in term s of histor ical cost  in a foreign currency are

t ranslated using the exchange rates as at  the dates of the init ial t ransact ions.  Non -

m onetary item s m easured at  fair  value in a foreign currency are t ranslated using the

exchange rates at  the date when the fair  value was determ ined.

For purposes of consolidat ion, the financial statem ents of ANI  HK, ANI  I L, and JFF which are

expressed in Hong Kong dollar (HKD)  am ounts and financial statem ents of Fucang which

are expressed in Renm inbi (RMB)  amounts, have been t ranslated to Peso amounts as

follows:

a. assets and liabilit ies for each statem ent  of f inancial posit ion presented ( i.e.,  including

com parat ives)  are t ranslated at  the closing rate at  the date of the consolidated

statem ents of f inancial posit ion;

b. incom e and expenses for each statem ent  of incom e ( i.e.,  including com parat ives)  are

t ranslated at  exchange rates at  the average m onthly prevailing rates for the year;  and

c. all result ing exchange differences are taken in the consolidated statem ent s of other

com prehensive incom e.

Any goodwill ar ising on the acquisit ion of a foreign operat ion and any fair  value

adjustments to the carry ing amounts of assets and liabilit ies ar ising on the acquisit ion are

t reated as assets and liabilit ies of the foreign operat ion and t ranslated at  the closing rate.

Cumulat ive Translat ion Adjustm ents

This ar ises from  exchange differences arising on a m onetary item  that  forms part  of the

Group’s net  investm ent  in a foreign operat ion. I n the consolidated financial statem ents,

such exchange differences shall be recognized init ially  in OCI . On the disposal of a foreign

operat ion, the cumulat ive am ount  of the exchange differences relat ing to that  foreign

operat ion, recognized in OCI and accumulated in the separate com ponent  of equity,  shall

be reclassif ied from equity to profit  or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

Revenue Recognit ion

The Group recognizes revenue to depict  the t ransfer of prom ised goods or services to the

customer in an am ount  that  reflects the considerat ion to which the ent ity expects to be

ent it led in exchange for those goods or services.  The Group applies the following five

steps:

1. I dent ify the cont ract (s)  with a custom er ;

2. I dent ify the performance obligat ions in the cont ract .   Performance obligat ions are

prom ises in a cont ract  to t ransfer to a customer goods or services that  are dist inct ;

3. Determ ine the t ransact ion price.  The t ransact ion price is the amount  of considerat ion

to which an ent ity expects t o be ent it led in exchange for t ransferr ing prom ised goods or

services to a custom er.  I f the considerat ion prom ised in a cont ract  includes a variable

am ount ,  an ent ity m ust  est im ate the am ount  of considerat ion to which it  expects to be

ent it led in exchange for t ransferr ing the prom ised goods or services to a custom er;
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4. Allocate the t ransact ion price to each performance obligat ion on the basis of the relat ive

stand-alone selling prices of each dist inct  good or service prom ised in the cont ract ;

5. Recognize revenue when a performance obligat ion is sat isfied by t ransferr ing a

prom ised good or service to a custom er (which is when the customer obtains cont rol of

that  good or service) .  A performance obligat ion m ay be sat isfied at  a point  in t im e

( typically for prom ises to t ransfer goods to a custom er)  or over t im e ( typically for

prom ises to t ransfer services to a customer) .   For a performance obligat ion sat isfied

over t im e, an ent ity would select  an appropriate m easure of progress to determ ine how

m uch revenue should be recognized as the performance obligat ion is sat isfied.

Revenue is recognized to the extent  that  is probable that  the econom ic benefit s will f low to

the Group and the revenue, related cost  incurred or to be incurred/ cost  to com plete the

t ransact ions can be reliably m easured.  The Group assesses it s revenue arrangem ents

against  specif ic cr iter ia in order to determ ine if it  is act ing as a principal in all of it s revenue

arrangem ents.  Revenue is m easured at  the fair  value of the considerat ion received or

receivable taking into account  any t rade discounts, prom pt  set t lem ent  of discounts and

volum e rebates allowed by the Group, if any.  Revenue excludes any value added tax.

The following specif ic recognit ion cr iter ia m ust  also be m et  before revenue is recognized:

• Sale of goods

Revenue from  the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business is m easured at  the

fair  value of the considerat ion received or receivable, net  of returns, t rade discounts

and volume rebates.

• Sale of real estate property

Sale of real estate property at  pre-complet ion stage is recognized over t im e based on

percentage of com plet ion.

Sale of com pleted real property is recognized in full at  a point  in t im e upon t ransfer of

cont rol of the asset  to the customer.

Pending recognit ion of sale when condit ions for recording a sale are not  m et ,  cash

received from  buyers are presented under “Customers’ Deposit ”  in the liabilit y  sect ion

of the consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion. Any excess of collect ions over the

recognized receivables are also included in the said account .

• Service income

Service incom e is recognized to the extent  of actual services delivered during the

period.

• Rental incom e

Rental incom e is recognized based on accrual in accordance with the terms in the

agreem ent .

• Sale of property and equipm ent

Realized gains and losses are recognized when the sale t ransact ion occurs.

• Other income

Other incom e is recognized when the related income is earned on an accrual basis in

accordance with the relevant  st ructure of t ransact ion or agreem ents.

• I nterest income

I nterest  income is recognized using the effect ive interest  method on a t im e proport ion

basis that  reflects the effect ive y ield on the assets.

Cost  and Expense Recognit ion

Cost  and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statem ents of com prehensive income

when decrease in future econom ic benefit s related to a decrease in an asset  or an increase
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of a liabilit y  has arisen that  can be measured reliably.   Except  for borrowing costs

at t r ibutable to qualify ing assets, all f inance costs are recognized in the consolidated

statem ents of com prehensive income.

• Costs of sales and services

Costs of sales consist  of costs direct ly associated with the Group’s operat ions.  These are
generally recognized when the cost  is incurred.

• General and adm inist rat ive expenses

General and adm inist rat ive expenses consist  of costs associated with the direct ion and
general adm inist rat ion of day- to-day operat ion of the Group.  These are generally
recognized when the expense is incurred.

• Other charges

Other charges include other expenses which are incidental to the Group’s business

operat ions and are not  recognized in the Group consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e ( loss) .

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs direct ly at t r ibutable to the acquisit ion, const ruct ion or product ion of an

asset  that  necessarily  takes a substant ial period of t im e to get  ready for it s intended use or

sale are capitalized as part  of the cost  of the asset .

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred.  Borrowing costs incurred during the

const ruct ion period on loans and advances used to f inance const ruct ion and property

developm ent  are capitalized as part  of Const ruct ion in progress included under “Property

and equipm ent”  account  in the consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion.  Capitalizat ion

of borrowing costs com m ences when the act iv it ies to prepare the asset  are in progress and

expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred.  Capitalizat ion of borrowing costs

ceases when substant ially  all the act iv it ies necessary to prepare the asset  for it s intended

use are com plete.  I f the carry ing am ount  of the asset  exceeds it s recoverable amount , an

im pairm ent  loss is recorded.  Capitalized borrowing cost  is based on applicable weighted

average borrowing rate.

All other borrowing costs are charged to operat ions in the period in which they are incurred.

Discont inued Operat ions

A discont inued operat ion is a com ponent  of an ent ity that  either has been disposed of,  or is

classif ied as held for sale, and (a) represents a separate major line of business or

geographical area of operat ions, (b)  is a part  of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a

m ajor line of business of geographical area of operat ions or (c)  is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a v iew to resale.

The related results of operat ions and cash flows of the disposal group that  qualify as

discont inued operat ions are separated from  the results of those that  would be recovered

principally through cont inuing use, and the prior years’ consolidated statement  of income

and consolidated statement  of cash flows are re-presented. Results of operat ions and cash

flows of the disposal group that  qualify as discont inued operat ions are presented in

consolidated statem ents of income and statem ent s of cash flows as item s associated with

discont inued operat ions.

Em ployee benefit s

• Short - term benefit s

Short - term  em ployee benefit s are recognized as expense in the period when the

econom ic benefit s are given.  Unpaid benefit s at  the end of the financial report ing

period are recognized as accrued expense while benefit s paid in advance are recognized

as prepayment  to the extent  that  it  will lead to a reduct ion in future paym ents.  Short -

term  benefit s given by the Group to it s em ployees include salar ies and wages, social

securit y cont r ibut ions, short - term  compensated absences, bonuses and non-m onetary

benefit s.
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• Ret irem ent  benefit s

Ret irem ent  benefit s liabilit y ,  as presented in the consolidated statem ents of financial

posit ion, is the aggregate of the present  value of the defined benefit  obligat ion at  the

end of the report ing period reduced by the fair  value of plan assets, adjusted for the

effect  of lim it ing a net  defined benefit  asset  to the asset  ceiling.  The asset  ceiling is

the present  value of any econom ic benefit s available in the form of refunds from  the

plan or reduct ions in future cont r ibut ions to the plan.

The cost  of providing benefit s under the defined benefit  plan is actuarially  determ ined

using the projected unit  credit  m ethod. The ret irement  benefit  costs com prise of the

service cost ,  net  interest  on the net  defined benefit  liabilit y  or asset  and

rem easurements of net  defined benefit  liabilit y  or asset .

Service costs which include current  service costs, past  service costs and gains or

losses on non- rout ine set t lem ents are recognized as expense in profit  or loss.  Past

service costs are recognized when plan am endm ent  or curtailm ent  occurs. These

am ounts are calculated periodically by independent  qualif ied actuaries.

Net  interest  on the net  defined benefit  liabilit y  or asset  is the change during the period

in the net  defined benefit  liabilit y  or asset  that  ar ises from  the passage of t im e which is

determ ined by apply ing the discount  rate based on government  bonds to the net

defined benefit  liabilit y  or asset .   Net  interest  on the net  defined benefit  liabilit y  or

asset  is recognized as expense or income in profit  or loss.

Rem easurements com prising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any

change in the effect  of the asset  ceiling (excluding net  in terest  on defined benefit

liabilit y)  are recognized im m ediately in other comprehensive incom e in the period in

which they arise. Rem easurem ents are not  reclassified to profit  or loss in subsequent

periods.

The Group’s r ight  to be reim bursed of som e or all of the expenditure required to

set t led a defined benefit  obligat ion is recognized as a separate asset  at  fair  value when

and only when reim bursem ent  is init ially  certain.

• Em ployee Leave Ent it lem ent

Em ployee ent it lem ents to annual leave are recognized as a liabilit y  when they are

accrued to the em ployees. The undiscounted liabilit y  for leave expected to be set t led

wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual report ing period is recognized

for services rendered by em ployees up to the end of the report ing period.

• Term inat ion Benefit s

Term inat ion benefit s are em ployee benefit s provided in exchange for the term inat ion of

an em ployee’s em ploym ent  as a result  of either an ent ity ’s decision to term inate an

em ployee’s em ploym ent  before the normal ret ir em ent  date or an em ployee’s decision

to accept  an offer of benefit s in exchange for the term inat ion of em ployment .

A liabilit y  and expense for a term inat ion benefit  is recognized at  the earlier of when the

ent ity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefit s and when the ent it y

recognizes related rest ructuring costs.  I nit ial recognit ion and subsequent  changes to

term inat ion benefit s are m easured in accordance with the nature of the em ployee

benefit ,  as either post -em ploym ent  benefit s,  short - term  em ployee benefit s, or other

long- term employee benefit s.
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• Com pensated absences

The Group recognizes the expected cost  of accumulat ing com pensated absences when

the em ployees render service that  increases their ent it lem ent  to future com pensated

absences.  The Group measures cost  of accumulat ing the com pensated absences at  the

undiscounted addit ional am ount  that  the ent it y expects to pay as a result  of the unused

ent it lem ent  that  has accum ulated at  the end of report ing period.

A liabilit y  and expense for a term inat ion benefit  is recognized at  the earlier of when the

ent ity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefit s and when the ent it y

recognizes related rest ructuring costs.  I nit ial recognit ion and subsequent  changes to

term inat ion benefit s are m easured in accordance with the nature of the em ployee

benefit ,  as either post -em ploym ent  benefit s,  short - term  em ployee benefit s, or other

long- term employee benefit s.

Leases

The Group determ ines whether an arrangement  is,  or contains a lease based on the

substance of the arrangem ent . I t  m akes an assessm ent  of whether the fulf illm ent  of the

arrangem ent  is dependent  on the use of a specif ic asset  or assets and the arrangement

conveys a r ight  to use the asset .

Leases are classif ied as finance leases whenever the t erm  of the lease t ransfer substant ially

all the r isks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other leases are classif ied as

operat ing leases. Rental expenses under operat ing leases are recognized as expense in the

consolidated statements of com prehensive income on a st raight - line basis over the term  of

the lease.

A reassessm ent  is made after incept ion of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in cont ractual term s, other than a renewal or extension of the

arrangem ent ;

b. a renewal opt ion is exercised or extension granted, unless that  term  of the renewal or

extension was init ially  included in the lease term ;

c. there is a change in the determ inat ion of whether fulfillm ent  is dependent  on a specif ied

asset ;  or

d. there is a substant ial change to the asset .

Where a reassessm ent  is m ade, lease account ing shall com m ence or cease from  the date

when the change in circum stances gave r ise to the reassessm ent  for scenarios (a) ,  (c)  or

(d)  above, and at  the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b) .

Finance lease

A lease is classif ied as a finance lease if it  t ransfers substant ially  all the r isks and rewards

incident  to ownership. All other leases are classif ied as operat ing leases. Classif icat ion is

m ade at  the incept ion of the lease. Situat ions that  would normally lead to a lease being

classif ied as a finance lease include the following:

a. the lease t ransfers ownership of the asset  to the lessee by the end of the lease term ;

b. the lessee has the opt ion to purchase the asset  at  a pr ice which is expected to be

sufficient ly lower than fair  value at  the date the opt ion becomes exercisable that ,  at  the

incept ion of the lease, it  is reasonably certain that  the opt ion will be exercised ;

c. the lease term  is for the m ajor part  of the econom ic li fe of the asset ,  even if t it le is not

t ransferred;

d. at  the incept ion of the lease, the present  value of the m inim um  lease paym ents

am ounts to at  least  substant ially  all of the fair  value of the leased asset ;

e. the lease assets are of a specialized nature such that  only the lessee can use them

without  major modificat ions being made;
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f. if the lessee is ent it led to cancel the lease, the lessor’s losses associated with the

cancellat ion are borne by the lessee;

g. if there is a secondary rental period at  below market  rates;  and

h. if the residual value r isk is borne by the lessee.

Finance Lease Com m itm ents – Group as a Lessee

The Group has entered into com mercial leases of t ransportat ion and warehousing

equipm ent .   The Group has determ ined that  it  acquires all the signif icant  r isks and rewards

of ownership on these equipm ent  and therefore accounts for these under f inance lease.

Operat ing Lease – Group as a Lessee

Lease of assets under which the lessor effect ively retains all r isks and reward of ownership

are classif ied as operat ing lease.  Operat ing lease paym ents are recognized as expense in

profit  or loss as these accrue on a monthly basis in accordance with the substance of

cont ractual agreement .   Associated costs such as repairs and maintenance and business

taxes are expensed when incurred.

Operat ing Lease – Group as a Lessor

Leases where the Group retains substant ially  all the r isks and benefit s of ownership of the

asset  are classif ied as operat ing leases.  I nit ial direct  costs incurred in negot iat ing an

operat ing lease are added to the carry ing am ount  of the leased asset  and recognized over

the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Basic/ Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by div iding the net  incom e ( loss) at t r ibutable to ordinary

equity holders of the parent  by the weighted average num ber of ordinary shares

outstanding, after giv ing ret roact ive effect  for any stock div idends, stock splits or reverse

stock split s during the year.

Diluted EPS

Diluted EPS am ounts are calculated by div iding the net  incom e at t r ibutable to ordinary

equity holders of the Group by the weighted average num ber of ordinary shares

outstanding, adjusted for any stock div idends declared during the year plus weighted

average number of ordinary shares that  would be issued on the conversion of all the

dilut ive ordinary shares into ordinary shares, excluding t reasury shares.

I ncome Tax

I ncome tax expense consists of current  and deferred incom e tax.

Current  income tax

The tax current ly due is based on taxable incom e for the year.   Taxable income differs from

incom e as reported in the consolidated statem ents of com prehensive income because it

excludes item s of incom e or expenses that  are taxable or deduct ible in other years and it

further excludes item s that  are never taxable or deduct ible.  The Group’s liabilit y  for current

incom e tax is calculated using tax rates that  have been enacted or substant ively enacted at

the end of f inancial report ing period.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liabilit y  m ethod, on all tem porary differences at  the end

of f inancial report ing period between the tax bases of assets and liabilit ies and their

carry ing am ounts for f inancial report ing purposes.  Deferred tax assets are recognized for

all deduct ible tem porary differences to the extent  that  it  is probable that  taxable profit  will

be available against  which the deduct ible tem porary difference can be ut ilized.  Deferred

tax liabilit ies are recognized for all taxable tem porary differences. Deferred tax assets and

liabilit ies are m easured using the tax rate that  is expected to apply to the period when the

asset  is realized or the liabilit y  is set t led.
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The carry ing am ount  of deferred tax assets is reviewed at  end of each fin ancial report ing

period and reduced to the extent  that  it  is not  probable that  sufficient  taxable profit  will be

available to allow all or part  of the deferred tax assets to be ut ilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilit ies are offset  when there is a legal ly enforceable r ight  to

offset  current  tax assets against  current  tax liabilit ies.

I ncome tax relat ing to item s recognized direct ly in equity is recognized in equity and in

other com prehensive incom e in the consolidated statem ents of com prehensive incom e.

Segment Report ing

For managem ent  purposes, the Group is organized into operat ing segm ents according to

the nature of the sales and the services provided, with each segment  represent ing a

st rategic business unit  that  offers different  products and serves d ifferent  markets. Financial

informat ion on business segm ents is presented in Note 33 to the consolidated financial

statem ents.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized only when the following condit ions are met :  a)  there exists a

present  obligat ion ( legal or const ruct ive)  as a result  of past  event ;  b)  it  is probable ( i.e.

m ore likely than not )  that  an out flow of resources em bodying econom ic benefit s will be

required to set t le the obligat ion;  and c)  reliable est im ate can be made of the am ount  of the

obligat ion.  Provisions are reviewed at end of each financial report ing period and adjusted

to reflect  the current  best  est im ate.

Cont ingencies

Cont ingent  liabilit ies are not  recognized in the consolidated financial statem ents.  These are

disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibilit y  of an

out flow of resources em bodying econom ic benefit s is rem ote.  Cont ingent  assets are not

recognized in the consolidated financial statem ents but  disclosed when an inflow of

econom ic benefit s is probable.

Events after the Report ing Period

Post  year-end events that  provide addit ional informat ion about  the Group’s posit ion at  the

end of report ing period (adjust ing events)  are reflected in the consolidated financial

statem ents.  Post  year-end events that  are not  adjust ing events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statem ents when material.

Restatements of Account  Balances

When a new or change in account ing policy is applied ret rospect ively in accordance with the

t ransit ional provision, guidance or requirem ent  of such new or amended account ing policy,

the Group adjusts the opening balance of each affected component  of equity for the earliest

pr ior period presented and the other comparat ive am ounts disclosed for each prior period

presented as if the new or am ended account ing policy had always been applied.

When an error is discovered in subsequent  period, the prior periods errors are corrected

ret rospect ively in the first  set  of consolidated financial statements authorized for issue after

their discovery by restat ing the com parat ive amounts of pr ior periods which the error

occurred;  or if the error occurred before the earliest  period presented, restat ing the

opening balances of assets, liabilit ies and equity for the earliest  pr ior period presented.
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5. Significant  Account ing Judgm ents, Est im ates and Assum ptions

The preparat ion of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires managem ent  to

m ake est im ates and assum pt ions that  affect  the am ounts reported in the consolidated

financial statem ents and accom panying notes. The est im ates and assumpt ions used in the

accompanying consolidated financial statements are based upon managem ent ’s evaluat ion

of relevant  facts and circum stances as of the date of the consolidated financial statem ents.

Actual results could differ from such est im ates. The effect  of any changes in est im ates will

be recorded in the Group’s consolidated financial statem ents when determ inable.

Est im ates and judgm ents are cont inually evaluated and are based on histor ical experience

and other factors, including expectat ions of future events that  are believed to be

reasonable under the circum stances.

Judgm ents

I n the process of apply ing the Group’s account ing policies, m anagement  has made the

following judgments, apart  from  those involv ing est im at ions, which has the most  signif icant

effect  on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statem ents:

• Assessing Going Concern

The managem ent  has made an assessm ent  at  the Group’s abilit y  to cont inue as a going

concern and as is sat isfied that  the Group has the resources to cont inue the business

for the foreseeable future. As at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group’s

current  assets already exceeded it s current  liabilit ies. Therefore, the consolidated

financial statem ents cont inue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

• Determ inat ion of Cont rol.

The Group determ ines cont rol when it  is exposed, or has r ights, to variable returns

from  it s involvem ent  with an ent it y and has the abilit y  to affect  those returns through

its power over the equity. The Group cont rols an ent it y if and only if the Group has all

of the following:

Power over the ent ity;

Exposure, or r ights, to variable returns from it s involvem ent  with the ent it y;  and

The abilit y  to use it s power over the ent it y to affect  the amount  of the Group’s

returns.

The Group regularly reassesses whether it  cont rols an investee if facts and

circum stances indicate that  there are changes to one or more of the three elem ents of

cont rol listed above. The Group determ ined that  it  exercises cont rol on all of it s

subsidiar ies as it  has all the elem ents of cont rol listed above.

• Determ inat ion of Funct ional Currency

Based on the econom ic substance of the underlying circum stances relevant  to the

Group, the funct ional currency of the Group has been determ ined to be the Philippine

Peso.  The Philippine Pesos is the currency of the prim ary econom ic environm ent  in

which the Group operates.  I t  is the currency that  m ainly influences the sale of real

propert ies, services, and investm ents and the costs of providing the services and of the

sold investm ents.

• Assessing Whether an Agreem ent  is a Finance or Operat ing Lease

Managem ent  assesses at  the incept ion of the lease whether arrangem ent  is f inance or

operat ing lease based on who bears substant ially  all the r isks and benefit s incidental to

ownership of the leased item .

The Group as a lessee has entered into a lease cont ract  for it s off ice spaces where it

has determ ined that  the r isks and rewards related to the property are ret ained by the

lessor.  As such, the agreem ent  is accounted for as operat ing lease.
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The Group as a lessor has determ ined, based on an evaluat ion of the term s and

condit ions of the arrangem ents, that  it  retains all signif icant  r isks and rewards of

ownership of the propert ies and, thus accounts for the cont racts as operat ing leases.

Rent  incom e recognized is shown in Note 26.

The Group as a lessee has determ ined that  the r isks and rewards related to the various

m achineries and t ransportat ion equipm ent are t ransferred to the Group, thus, are

classif ied as finance lease.

• Classif icat ion of Financial I nst ruments and Measurement  Criter ia

Under PFRS 9, the Group classif ies f inancial assets at  init ial recognit ion depends on the

financial assets cont ractual cash flows characterist ics of the Group’s business m odel for

m anaging them. The adopt ion of PFRS 9, has not  had a signif icant  effect  on the

Group’s policy related to f inancial liabilit ies.

Prior to the adopt ion of PFRS 9, the Group classif ies a f inancial inst rum ent ,  or it s

com ponent  parts, on init ial recognit ion as a financial asset ,  a f inancial liabilit y  or an

equity inst rum ent  in accordance with the substance of the cont ractual agreem ent  and

the definit ions of a f inancial asset ,  a f inancial liabilit y  or an equit y inst rum ent . The

substance of a f inancial inst rum ent ,  rather than it s legal form , governs it s classif icat ion

in the consolidated statements of f inancial posit ion.

The Group determ ines the classif icat ion at  init ial recognit ion and reevaluates this

designat ion at  every report ing date.

• I dent if icat ion of Cont ract  with Custom ers under PFRS 15

The Group applied PFRS 15 guidance to a port folio of exports and local dist r ibut ion

groups with sim ilar characterist ics as the Group reasonably expects that  the effects on

the consolidated financial statem ents of apply ing this guidance to the port folio would

not  differ materially  from apply ing this guidance to the indiv idual cont racts with the

sam e cont ract  provisions.

• I dent ify ing Performance Obligat ion

The Group ident if ies perform ance obligat ions by considering whether the prom ised

goods or services in the cont ract  are dist inct  goods or services.  A good or service is

dist inct  when the custom er can benefit  from  the good or service on it s own or together

with other resources that  are readily available to the custom er and the Group’s

prom ise to t ransfer the good or service to the custom er is separately ident if iable from

the other prom ises in the cont ract .  The Group delivers the best  qualit y produce by

export ing and locally dist r ibut ing all k inds of fruits and vegetables and other agro

products but  it s main products are bananas, mangoes, and coconut  water.   The Group

determ ined that  the delivered various agro products are capable of being dist inct  and

therefore considered as separate performance obligat ions.

• Determ inat ion of Fair Value of Financial I nst ruments

The Group carr ies certain inst rum ents at  fair  value and discloses also the fair  values of

financial inst ruments, which requires extensive use of account ing est im ates and

judgment .  While signif icant  components of fair  value m easurem ent  were determ ined

using verif iable object ive evidence, the amount  of changes in fair  value would differ if

the Group ut ilized different  valuat ion m ethodologies and assum pt ions.  Any changes in

fair  value of these financial assets and liabilit ies would affect  profit  or loss and equity.

The sum mary of the carry ing values and fair  values of the Group’s f inancial inst rum ents
as at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 is shown in Note 28.

• Measurem ent  of Refundable Deposits

The future cash flows of refundable deposits from  the leases cannot  be readily

determ ined nor reliably m easured because the actual t im ing of paym ent  cannot  be

reasonably predicted as these deposits are generally redeposited every renewal of
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lease cont ract ,  the new term s and condit ions thereof are not  yet  known. Further,  the

deposit  that  will actually be repaid to the Group is also at tached to a condit ional

repayment  provision that  is the faithful performance by the Group as a lessee of it s

obligat ions under the lease cont racts. Accordingly, refundable deposits are carr ied at

cost  less any im pairm ent .

Est im ates

The key est imates and assumpt ions concerning the future and other key sources of

est im at ion uncertainty as at  the end of the report ing period, that  have the most  signif icant

r isk of causing a material adjustment  to the carry ing am ounts of assets and liabilit ies within

the next  f inancial year are discussed below:

• Est im at ing Allowance for Im pairm ent  Losses on Financial Assets

The Group applies general approach for determ ining the expected credit  losses of cash

in banks, nont rade receivables and due from  related part ies.  A credit  loss is the

difference between the cash flows that  are expected to be received discounted at  the

original effect ive interest  rate and cont ractual cash flows in accordance with the

cont ract . The loss allowance for f inancial assets are based on the assum pt ions about

r isk of default  and expected loss rates.  I n addit ion, managem ent ’s assessm ent  of the

credit  r isk on the financial assets as at  the report ing date is low as cash in banks are

deposited in top local banks, nont rade receivables are insignif icant  in am ount  and the

Group have not  yet  demanded the paym ent  of advances as at  report ing date. No

addit ional allowance for im pairm ent  of cash in banks, nont rade receivables and due

from related part ies and a stockholder was recognized as at  December 31, 2018.

The Company applies the PFRS 9 sim plif ied approach in t rade receivables to m easure

expected credit  losses which uses a lifet im e expected loss allowance for all receivables

and financial asset  at  amort ized costs. Detailed inform at ion regarding the Com pany’s

im pairm ent  of f inancial assets are discussed in Note 28.

As at  January 1, 2018 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group recognized provision for

im pairm ent  of t rade receivables amount ing to P= 43.5 m illion and P= 9.1 million,

respect ively.

Prior to adopt ion of PFRS 9, the Group provides an allowance for im pairm ent  losses on

t rade receivable and due from  related part ies at  a level considered adequate for

potent ial uncollect ible amounts or are doubt ful of collect ion. The level of allowance is

evaluated by the managem ent  based on best  available facts and circum stances, the

length of the Group’s relat ionship with it s customers and debtors, the custom ers or

debtors’ payment  behavior and known market  factors.  These specif ic reserves are re-

evaluated and adjusted as addit ional informat ion received affects the am ount  est im ated

to be uncollect ible. Any increase in allowance would increase operat ing expenses and

decrease related accounts.

Provision for im pairm ent  losses on t rade and other receivables am ounted to P= 4.1

m illion in 2018.

Allowance for im pairm ent  losses on t rade and other receivables as at June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018 am ounted to P= 106.8 m illion. The carry ing values of t rade and

other receivables are shown in Note 7.
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• Est im at ing I m pairm ent  Losses on Property and Equipm ent

The Group assesses im pairm ent  on property and equipm ent  whenever events or

changes in circum stances indicate that  the carry ing am ount  of an asset  may not  be

recoverable. The factors that  the Group considers im portant  which could t r igger an

im pairm ent  review include the following:

signif icant  underperformance relat ive to expected histor ical or projected future

operat ing results;

signif icant  changes in the m anner of use of the acquired assets or the st rategy for

overall business;  and

signif icant  negat ive indust ry or econom ic t rends.

These assets are reviewed for im pairm ent  whenever events or changes in

circum stances indicate that  the carry ing amount  m ay not  be recoverable.  An

im pairm ent  loss would be recognized whenever evidence exists that  the carry ing value

is not  recoverable.  For purposes of assessing im pairm ent , assets are grouped at  the

lowest  levels for which there are separately ident if iable cash flows.

I n determ ining the present  value of est imated future cash flows expected to be

generated from  the cont inued use of the assets, the Group is required to make

est im ates and assum pt ions that  can materially  affect  the consolidated financial

statem ents.

An im pairm ent  loss is recognized and charged to earnings if the discounted expected

future cash flows are less than the carry ing am ount .  Fair value is est im ated by

discount ing the expected future cash flows using a discount  factor that  reflects the

m arket  rate for a term consistent  with the period of expected cash flows.

No im pairm ent  loss on property and equipm ent  were recognized in 2019 and 2018.

• Est im at ion of I m pairm ent  of Goodwill and Certain Trademarks

The Group reviews the carry ing values of goodwill and certain t radem arks for

im pairm ent  annually or more frequent ly,  if events or changes in circum stances indicate

that  the carry ing value m ay be im paired.  I m pairm ent  is determ ined for other

intangible assets by assessing the recoverable amount  of the CGU or group of CGUs to

which the t rademarks relate. Assessm ents require the use of est im ates and

assumpt ions such as market  evaluat ion and t rends, discount  rates, future capital

requirem ents and operat ing performance.

I f the recoverable am ount  of the unit  exceeds the carry ing am ount  of the CGU, the CGU

and the goodwill and t rademarks allocated to that  CGU shall be regarded as not

im paired. Where the recoverable am ount  of the CGU or group of CGUs is less than the

carry ing am ount  of the CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill and t radem arks has

been allocated, an im pairm ent  loss is recognized.

No provision for im pairm ent  of goodwill was recognized in the consolidated statem ents

of com prehensive income as at  2019 and 2018.

• I m pairm ent  of Other Nonfinancial Assets

I mpairm ent  review is perform ed on prepaid expenses and other current  assets when

certain im pairm ent  indicators are present .   Determ ining the value of the assets requires

est im at ion of future cash flows expected to be generated from  the cont inued use and

ult im ate disposit ion of such assets and requires the Group to make est imates and

assumpt ions that  can materially  affect  the Group’s consolidated financial statem ents.

Future events could cause the Group to conclude that  the assets are im paired.  Any

result ing im pairm ent  loss could have a material adverse im pact  on the Group’s f inancial

condit ion and results of operat ions.  Any increase in allowance for im pairm ent  would

increase the Group’s operat ing expense and decrease the related asset .
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The preparat ion of est imated future cash flows involves signif icant  judgment  and

est im at ions.  While the Group believes that  it s assumpt ions are appropriate and

reasonable, signif icant  changes in these assum pt ions m ay materially  affect  the Group’s

assessm ent  of recoverable values and may lead to future addit ional im pairm ent

charges.

No allowance for im pairment  is provided as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018

as managem ent  has not  ident if ied any indicators of im pairm ent .

• Est im at ion of Net  Realizable Value of I nventories

The Group determ ines the net  realizable value of inventories annually in accordance

with the account ing policy stated herein. I n determ ining the net  realizable value, the

Group considers the current  selling price of the product  and the est im ated cost  to sell.

The carry ing value of inventories as at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is shown

in Note 8.

• Est im at ion of Allowance for I nventory Obsolescence

Provision is established based on specif ic ident if icat ion of slow -m oving, damaged and

obsolete inventories and charged to operat ions. I n case there is write-off or disposal of

slow-m oving item s during the year,  a reduct ion in the allowance for obsolescence is

m ade. Any increase in allowance for obsolescence would increase operat ing expenses

and decrease inventory. An item  that  is determ ined to have zero recoverable value is

writ ten-off to expense.

No allowance for inventory obsolescence is provided in the consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e as at  June 30, 2019 and 2018.

• Est im at ion on Useful Lives of Property and Equipm ent

Useful lives of property and equipm ent  are est imated based on the period over which

these assets are expected to be available for use.  Such est imat ion is based on a

collect ive assessm ent  of indust ry pract ice, internal technical evaluat ion and experience

with sim ilar assets.  The est im ated useful life of each asset  is reviewed periodically and

updated if expectat ions differ from  previous est im ates due to physical wear and tear,

technical or com m ercial obsolescence and legal or other lim its on the use of the asset .

I t  is possible, however, that  future results of operat ions could be material ly  affected by

changes in the amounts and t im ing of recorded expenses brought  about  by changes in

the factors m ent ioned above.  Any reduct ion in the est im ated useful lives of property

and equipm ent  would increase the Group’s recorded operat ing expenses and decrease

on the related asset  accounts.

Based on managem ent ’s assessm ent , there were no changes in the useful lives of the

Group’s property and equipm ent .

The carry ing value of depreciable property and equipm ent is shown in Note 12.

• Est im at ion on Useful Lives of I ntangible Assets

The Group est imates the useful lives of it s com puter software, franchise and certain

t rademark based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for

use.  The Group reviews only when there is an indicator of change in the est im ated

residual values and useful lives of intangible assets based on factors that  include asset

ut ilizat ion, internal technical evaluat ion, technological changes, environm ental and

ant icipated use of the assets tem pered by related indust ry benchmark informat ion.  I t

is possible that  future results of operat ions could be m aterially  affected by changes in

the Group’s est im ates brought  about  by changes in the factors m ent ioned.  A reduct ion

in the est imated residual values and useful lives of intangible assets would increase the

recorded amort izat ion expense and decrease intangible assets.



- 48 -

I t  is possible, however, that  future results of operat ions could be materially  affected by

changes in the amounts and t im ing of recorded expenses brought about  by changes in

the factors m ent ioned above.  Any reduct ion in the est im ated useful lives of property

and equipm ent  would increase the Group’s recorded operat ing expenses and decrease

on the related asset  accounts.

Based on managem ent ’s assessm ent , t here were no changes in the useful lives of the

Group’s intangible assets.

The carry ing value of the Group’s intangible assets is shown in Note 13.

• Est im at ing Ret irem ent and Other Benefit s

The determ inat ion of the Group’s obligat ion and cost  for pension and other ret irem ent

benefit s is dependent  on m anagem ent ’s select ion of certain assumpt ions used by

actuaries in calculat ing such amounts.

The assum pt ions for pension costs and other ret irem ent  benefit s are described in

Note 25, and include am ong others, discount  and salary increase rates.  I n accordance

with PFRS, actual results that  differ from  the assum pt ions are accum ulated and

am ort ized over future periods and therefore, generally affect  the Group’s recognized

expense and recorded obligat ion in such future periods.  While m anagement  believes

that  the assumpt ions are reasonable and appropriate, signif icant  differences in actual

experience or signif icant  changes in management  assumpt ions may materially  affect

the Group’s pension and other ret irem ent  obligat ions.

The Group also est im ates other em ployee benefit s obligat ion and expense, including

the cost  of paid leaves based on histor ical leave availm ents of em ployees, subject  to

the Group’s policy.  These est imates may vary depending on the future changes in

salar ies and actual experiences during the year.

Ret irem ent liabilit y as at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 is shown in Note 24.

• Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilit ies

Deferred incom e tax assets are recognized for all deduct ible differ ences to the extent

that  it  is probable that  sufficient  taxable profit  will be available against  which the

deduct ible tem porary differences can be ut ilized. Signif icant  managem ent  judgm ent  is

required to determ ine the am ount  of deferred income tax asset  t hat  can be recognized,

based upon the likely t im ing and level of future taxable profit  together with future tax

planning st rategies. Deferred tax liabilit y  is also reviewed at  end of f inancial report ing

period to determ ine if this will eventually result  t o actual liabilit y . Any changes in

est im ate would increase or decrease the amount  recognized as deferred tax assets or

liabilit ies and amount  recognized in profit  or loss.

No deferred tax asset  and liabilit y  was recognized in the Parent  Com pany’s f inancial

statem ents as management  believes that  these could not  be ut ilized prior to its

expirat ion.

• Est im at ing Cont ingencies

The Group has no cont ingent  liabilit ies which are either pending decision by the courts

or being contested, the outcom e of which is not  present ly determ inable.  I n the opinion

of management  and it s legal counsel,  the eventual liabilit y  under these claim s, if any,

will not  have material or adverse effect  on the consolidated financial statem ents.  The

informat ion usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Cont ingent  Liabilit ies and

Cont ingent  Assets, is not  disclosed on the grounds that  it  can be expected to prejudice

the outcom e or the Group’s posit ion with respect  to these mat ters.

The Group did not  recognize any provision in the consolidated statem ents of

com prehensive incom e in 2019 and 2018.
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6. Cash

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

Cash on hand P= 1 ,3 0 2 ,2 5 0 P= 2,919,500

Cash in banks 4 6 ,6 0 6 ,6 2 6 58,123,151

P= 4 7 ,9 0 8 ,8 7 6 P= 61,042,651

Cash in banks earn interest  at  the prevailing bank deposit  rates of less than 0.3%  to 1.0%

annually .   I nterest  income earned from  cash in banks, net  of f inal taxes withheld, am ounted

to P= 15,439 in 2019 and P= 142,149 in 2018.

The Group has cash in banks denom inated in foreign currency such as USD, HKD and RMB.

These cash in banks were t ranslated as at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 at closing

rates (see Note 28) .   Unrealized foreign exchange gain ( loss) recognized am ounted to

( P= 491,683) in 2019 and P= 74,668 in 2018 (see Note 27) .

7. Trade and Other Receivables

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

Trade P= 5 1 7 ,1 1 1 ,5 5 9 P= 366,994,154

Others 234 ,5 68 ,45 0 264,871,586

7 5 1 ,6 8 0 ,0 0 9 631,865,740

Less allowance for im pairm ent  losses 1 0 6 ,7 9 0 ,1 4 6 106,790,146

P= 6 4 4 ,8 8 9 ,8 6 3 P= 525,075,594

Trade receivables are noninterest -bearing and are generally due and demandable while

others are collect ible within 1-12 m onths. These are generally set t led through cash

paym ent  or applicat ion of customers’ deposit .

Other receivables include noninterest -bearing receivables from  sales of scraps and first

class rejects, which are sold to local wet  market  at  a lower pr ice.  This is generally

collect ible on 15 to 30-day term s.

Other receivables also include nont rade receivables from third part ies which are collect ible

on demand and advances to em ployees which are noninterest -bearing and subject  to

liquidat ion.

Movements in allowance for im pairm ent  losses pertaining to t rade receivables follows:

Note 2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 1 0 6 ,7 9 0 ,1 4 6 P= 65,563,654

Effect  of PFRS 9 applicat ion 3 ‒ 43,488,236

Balance at  beginning of year as adjusted 1 0 6 ,7 9 0 ,1 4 6 109,051,890

Provision for im pairm ent  during the year 22 ‒ 9,143,256

Write-off during the year ‒ (11,405,000)

Balance at  end of year P= 1 0 6 ,7 9 0 ,1 4 6 P= 106,790,146

None of the Group’s receivables were pledged to any of it s liabilit ies.
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8. I nventories

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

At  cost :

Property for sale P= 8 8 8 ,6 0 6 ,6 4 8 P= 800,291,372

Vegetables and fruit s 9 7 ,7 0 7 ,3 8 8 131,307,936

Packaging materials and other supplies 1 2 ,9 2 5 ,7 9 3 14,447,323

P= 9 9 9 ,2 3 9 ,8 2 9 P= 946,046,631

Property for sale represent s developm ent  costs and const ruct ion materials for resident ial

and com mercial units of Shengm ei Century Plaza Development  Project  located in Jiawang

Dist r ict , Xuzhou, China.

The cost  of inventories recognized as part  of “Cost  of Sales”  in the consolidated statem ents

of com prehensive incom e am ounted to P= 1.99 billion in 2019 and P= .590 m illion in 2018 (see

Note 21) .

The carry ing am ounts of the total inventories as of June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018

are lower than their NRVs. There were no purchase com m itm ents and accrued net  losses

on inventories in 2019 and 2018.

No provision for inventory obsolescence or im pairm ent was recognized in 2019 and 2018.

I nventories are not  pledged as security for any of the Group’s liabilit ies.

9. Prepaym ents and Other Current  Assets

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

I nput  VAT P= 1 0 3 ,5 9 3 ,3 2 0 P= 95,120,187

Deposits 1 2 ,0 9 8 ,6 2 8 12,221,651

Prepaid expense 6 ,2 1 9 ,1 6 7 20,974,712

Creditable withholding taxes (CWTs) 1 ,4 4 0 ,5 0 1 1,041,610

Deferred input  VAT 1 ,4 7 0 ,2 1 3 64,774

Materials and supplies 5 1 ,1 5 9 51,157

1 2 4 ,8 7 2 ,9 8 8 129,474,091

Less allowance for im pairm ent  for deposits 7 ,0 3 9 ,4 8 7 7,039,487

P= 1 1 7 ,8 3 3 ,5 0 1 P= 122,434,604

Prepaid expense includes insurance, under lease rental and I T services. Prepaid insurance

refers to insurances of vehicles, equipment and const ruct ion in progress.

Deposits include short - term  advances to suppliers and rental deposits.  Deposit  to suppliers

pertains to deposits for project  which pertains to advance paym ent  for the Group’s several

local const ruct ion projects and future delivery of goods and perform ance of services.

Rental deposits are made for store- leased spaces of the Group.  These deposits will be

applied on the last  payment  of rentals.

Creditable withholding tax is considered prepaym ents which are claim ed for the tax to be

paid during the year and are carr ied over in the succeeding period for the sam e purpose.

No addit ional provision for im pairm ent  of deposits was recognized in 2019 and 2018.
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10. Advances to Suppliers and Contractors

This account represents noninterest -bearing advanced paym ents to third party foreign

suppliers and contactors for various product ion materials for real estate projects which

am ounted to P= 399.80 m illion and P= 413.7 m illion as at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31,

2018, respect ively.

11. Deposit for Future I nvestm ents

The Group entered into a purchase agreem ent  with a third party in Septem ber 2016

involv ing the purchase of 49%  equity interest  in Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd. (Fucang) ,

a com pany registered in China. Fucang is engaged in agri com m odity t rading and with

investments in real estate developm ent  and agri t rading. I n 2016, ANI  made a deposit  for

the acquisit ion of 49%  equity investment  in Fucang am ount ing to RMB42.63 m illion or

P= 308.2 m illion, subject  to the fulf ilm ent  of condit ions precedent  as set  forth in the

agreem ent  of the part ies.

I n 2017, the Group purchased an addit ional 2%  of the total registered capital of Fucang

am ount ing to RMB4.09 m illion or P= 30.6 m illion which resulted to an increase in equity

interest  in Fucang. As at Decem ber 31, 2017, the deposit  for future investm ent totaling

P= 338.8 m illion is reclassif ied to investment in subsidiary in the Group’s consolidated

statem ents of f inancial posit ion.

I n February 2018, Lexian, a subsidiary of Fucang, m ade a deposit am ount ing to P= 62.9

m illion to acquire 30%  ownership of the stockholdings of Lushan Supply Chain Management

(Shanghai)  Co., Ltd., a com pany engaged in banana t rading in China.

I n 2017, Fucang m ade a deposit am ount ing to P= 194.7 m illion to acquire 60%  ownership of

the stockholdings of Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Developm ent  Co.,  Ltd, a real estat e

com pany in China
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12. Property and Equipm ent

Rollforward analysis of the Group’s property and equipment as at  June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 follows:

2 0 1 9

Land

Building and

improvements

Store and

warehouse

equipment

Delivery and

t ransportat ion

equipment

Machinery and

equipment

Office furniture

and fix tures

Leasehold

improvement

Const ruct ion in

progress Total

Cost :

Balance at  beginning of year 149,152,330 207,109,501 123,887,490 98,709,950 494,811,091 115,357,626 108,655,394 413,154,770 1,710,838,152

Addit ions – 20,337,728 780,756 660,945 ‒ 452,679 1,378,901 71,031,094 94,642,103

Reclassificat ion to inventory ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ( 124,840,922) (124,840,922)

Balances at  end of year 149,152,330 227,447,229 124,668,246 99,370,895 494,811,091 115,810,305 110,034,295 359,344,942 1,680,639,333

Accumulated depreciat ion:

Balances at  beginning of year – 53,708,044 88,471,838 51,646,153 267,574,604 65,176,284 97,316,908 – 623,893,831

Depreciat ion and amort izat ion – 7,300,065 2,907,428 11,903,780 18,183,708 11,227,654 1,261,456 – 52,784,091

Balances at  end of year – 61,008,109 91,379,266 63,549,933 285,758,312 76,403,938 98,578,364 – 676,677,922

Net  book values P= 149,152,330 P= 166,439,120 P= 33,288,980 P= 35,820,962 P= 209,052,779 P= 39,406,367 P= 11,455,931 P= 359,344,942 P= 1,003,961,411

2018

Land

Building and

improvements

Store and

warehouse

equipment

Delivery and

t ransportat ion

equipment

Machinery and

equipment

Office furniture

and fix tures

Leasehold

improvement

Const ruct ion in

progress Total

Cost :

Balance at  beginning of year P= 149,152,330 P= 159,636,976 P= 120,117,565 P= 66,096,432 P= 493,610,466 P= 80,947,461 P= 104,430,221 P= 303,969,386 P= 1,477,960,837

Addit ions – 47,472,525 3,769,925 26,871,512 1,200,625 36,929,544 7,693,106 109,185,384 233,122,621

Disposals – – – ‒ – (4,678,233) (3,467,933) – (8,146,166)

Increase due to consolidat ion ‒ ‒ ‒ 5,742,006 ‒ 2,158,854 ‒ 7,900,860

Balances at  end of year 149,152,330 207,109,501 123,887,490 98,709,950 494,811,091 115,357,626 108,655,394 413,154,770 1,710,838,152

Accumulated depreciat ion:

Balances at  beginning of year – 35,943,435 82,656,984 25,043,805 227,607,190 40,421,752 95,259,369 – 506,932,535

Depreciat ion and amort izat ion – 17,764,609 5,814,854 26,602,348 39,967,414 26,640,353 2,557,986 – 119,347,564

Disposals – – – – – (1,885,821) (500,447) – (2,386,268)

Balances at  end of year – 53,708,044 88,471,838 51,646,153 267,574,604 65,176,284 97,316,908 – 623,893,831

Net  book values P= 149,152,330 P= 153,401,457 P= 35,415,652 P= 47,063,797 P= 227,236,487 P= 50,181,342 P= 11,338,486 P= 413,154,770 P= 1,086,944,321
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Fully depreciated property and equipm ent  are retained in the accounts unt il they are no

longer in use.  The cost  of fully  depreciated property and equipm ent  st ill being used in

operat ions am ounted to P= 177.0 m illion and P= 170.4 m illion as at June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018, respect ively. Certain assets such as delivery and t ransportat ion

equipm ent , buildings and m achinery equipm ent are covered by insurance.

Land and building located in Pulilan, Bulacan with carry ing value of P= 177.4 m illion and

P= 179.8 m illion as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, respect ively, are used as

collaterals for the long- term  liabilit ies (see Note 16) .

I n 2018, three delivery t rucks under t ransportat ion and equipm ent with a carrying value of

P= 3.4 m illion as at  Decem ber 31, 2018 are under chat tel m ortgage for it s own

t ransportat ion equipm ent (see Note 16) .

The carry ing value of vehicles and machineries under f inance lease am ounted to

P= 134.1 m illion and P= 138.8 m illion as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018,

respect ively (see Note 27) .

Real property under const ruct ion in progress am ount ing to P= 359.34 m illion as at

June 30, 2019 serves as collateral for the Group’s long- term liabilit y  from  a foreign bank

(see Note 16) .

The Group’s com m itment  to acquire property is discussed in Note 14. The Group’s

m anagem ent  had reviewed the carry ing values of property and equipm ent  as of

June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 for any possible im pairm ent .  Based on the

evaluat ion, there are no indicat ions that  the property and equipm ent are im paired.

13. I ntangible Assets

This account  consists of the following, net  of any accum ulated amort izat ion and

im pairm ent :

2 0 1 9

Trademark Goodwill Franchise

Computer

software Total

Cost :

Balance at  beginning of year P= 200,000,000 P= 95,014,063 P= 9,049,750 P= 7,535,159 P= 311,598,972

Addit ions during the year – – – 9,803 9,803

Balance at  end of year 200,000,000 95,014,063 9,049,750 7,544,962 311,608,775

Accumulated amort izat ion and

impairment

Balance at  beginning of year 42,500,000 – 7,239,800 7,386,288 57,126,088

Amort izat ion and impairment

during the year 5,000,000 – 452,486 70,911 5,523,397

Balance at  end of year 47,500,000 – 7,692,286 7,457,199 62,649,485

Net  carry ing value P= 152,500,000 P= 95,014,063 P= 1,357,464 P= 87,763 P= 248,959,290
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2018

Trademark Goodwill Franchise

Computer

software Total

Cost :

Balance at  beginning of year P= 200,000,000 P= 95,014,063 P= 9,049,750 P= 7,535,159 P= 311,598,972

Addit ions during the year – – – 9,803 9,803

Balance at  end of year 200,000,000 95,014,063 9,049,750 7,544,962 311,608,775

Accumulated amort izat ion and

impairment

Balance at  beginning of year 32,500,000 – 6,334,825 7,208,192 46,043,017

Amort izat ion and impairment

during the year 10,000,000 – 904,975 178,096 11,083,071

Balance at  end of year 42,500,000 7,239,800 7,386,288 57,126,088

Net  carry ing value P= 157,500,000 P= 95,014,063 P= 1,809,950 P= 158,674 P= 254,482,687

Trademark

The t rademark includes that  related to the acquisit ion of TBC in 2011.  During the

acquisit ion of TBC, net  assets acquired includes t radem ark for the use of “Big Chill”  brand,

am ount ing to P= 200.0 m illion which was included in the purchase price.

Goodwill

The goodwill of the Group is at t r ibutable mainly to the business acquisit ions m ade in 2017

to expand the Group’s operat ions.

Franchise

On January 7, 2011, the Group entered into a Master Licensing Agreem ent  with Tully ’s

Coffee I nternat ional Pte. Ltd. for the operat ion of coffee shops and sale of co ffee products

under the brand “Tully ’s” .  The term  of the license is for a period of ten years but  maybe

extended for another 10 years.  Under the agreement ,  the Group paid $200,000 equivalent

to P= 9.05 m illion as a sign–up fee.

Com puter software

The com puter software pertains to the account ing software used by the Group. The

carry ing value of computer software is reviewed for im pairm ent  when events or changes in

circum stances indicate that  the carry ing value may not  be recoverable. No im pairm en t  loss

is recognized as at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

14. Other Noncurrent  Assets

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

Advances and deposits P= 5 7 6 ,0 0 4 ,6 7 6 P= 469,947,222

Advances for land acquisit ion 6 4 ,7 1 9 ,1 2 1 64,719,121

Advances to suppliers and cont ractors 1 1 ,4 0 6 ,7 5 4 14,898,120

Rental deposits and others 8 ,9 3 7 ,3 4 9 8,758,531

P= 6 6 1 ,0 6 7 ,9 0 0 P= 558,322,994
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Advances and deposits include the following:

• Advance paym ent  to Tet ra Pak for future acquisit ion of equipm ent  necessary for pre–

processing, ster ilizat ion, asept ic storage and clean in place stat ion for coconut  water

am ount ing to P= 30.6 m illion.

• Deposit m ade in 2018 am ount ing to P= 300,000,000 to acquire a port ion of the 859

hectares, or a cor responding port ion thereof,  of t it led and unt it led parcels of land.  As

of report ing date, the third party is com plet ing the t it ling of the whole port ion of the

property to fully  execute the t ransact ions. Addit ional deposits made am ount ing to

P= 60 m illion during the quarter. The deposit  shall be recognized as property upon the

determ inat ion of the final am ount  and upon taking cont rol of the related property (see

Note 1) .

• Deposit amount ing to P= 17,997,880 (482,000AUD)  to acquire an exist ing business in

Aust ralia to expand business operat ions.

• Deposit  amount ing to P= 6,250,000 to a local rural bank to acquire 2,500,000 com m on

shares represent ing 12.5%  ownership.  The said investment  is st ill for approval of SEC

and Bangko Sent ral ng Pilipinas (BSP) .

• Advances to project am ount ing to P= 157,347,785 and P= 152,914,982 as at

June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, respect ively, which represents advances for

land acquisit ions intended for future business prospects. These advances are

noninterest -bearing and will be realized for m ore than 12 m onths after the end of the

report ing period.

Advances for land acquisit ions are paym ents made for future t ransfer of ownership of land

acquired, the final pr ice of is not  yet  f inalized.

Rental and other deposits include rental and refundable deposits m ade by the Group on the

operat ing and finance leased propert ies which can be refunded or applied as rental

paym ents at  the end of the leased term .

Advances to suppliers and cont ractors represent  noninterest -bearing down-paym ents to

third party foreign suppliers of product ion materials and paym ents made in advance for real

estate projects.

15. Trade and Other Payables

This account  consists of:

2 0 1 9 2018

Trade payables P= 3 4 5 ,0 8 4 ,1 2 6 P= 323,768,162

Nont rade payables 3 6 0 ,8 2 6 ,3 4 7 405,834,186

Custom ers’ deposits 3 1 2 ,3 1 2 ,5 1 1 295,844,735

Governm ent  payables 1 5 ,2 6 5 ,2 2 2 4,600,638

Accrued expenses 7 ,5 4 0 ,9 8 0 6,341,346

Accrued interest 3 0 ,0 0 0 30,000

P= 1 ,0 4 1 ,0 5 9 ,1 8 6 P= 1,036,419,067

Trade payables are noninterest -bearing and are generally set t led within one m onth to one

year.

Nont rade payables mainly pertain to outstanding liabilit ies to suppliers, lessors, pr int ing

and t ransportat ion service prov iders.

Custom ers’ deposit  pertains to advanced collect ions from custom ers for goods to be

delivered.
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Accrued expenses are obligat ions on the basis of normal credit  term s and do not  bear

interest .  These pertain to accruals m ade for ut ilit ies, associat ion dues, securit y services,

salar ies and wages and professional fees incurred in 2019 and 2018. Accruals are m ade

based on the prior m onth’s billings and/ or cont racts and are normally set t led within twelve

(12)  months from the end of the report ing period.

Governm ent  payables include expanded withholding taxes, withholding taxes on

com pensat ion, final taxes, social securit y,  governm ent  health and other fund prem ium s

which are paid within 12 m onths from  the end of the report ing period.

All other payables are noninterest -bearing.

16. Loans Payable and Redeem able Convert ible Loan

Details of this account  follow:

2 0 1 9 2018

Long- term :

Foreign Currency

Bank 1 P= 4 2 ,6 3 8 ,4 9 9 P= 66,024,336

Bank 2 5 1 ,4 7 4 ,2 2 3 75,406,981

Bank 9 1 0 7 ,6 8 8 ,1 6 1 124,372,268

Peso Currency

Bank 3 2 1 3 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 226,300,000

Bank 4 5 ,6 5 0 ,0 0 0 13,150,000

Others 2 6 ,0 0 9 ,1 9 3 13,340,492

4 4 6 ,4 6 0 ,0 7 6 518,594,077

Less current  port ion 1 4 1 ,9 8 2 ,1 3 2 193,469,697

3 0 4 ,4 7 7 ,9 4 4 325,124,380

Short - term :

Foreign Currency

Bank 8 1 6 2 ,4 3 6 ,5 2 0 160,455,570

Peso Currency

Bank 5 3 1 5 ,6 0 0 ,0 0 0 327,600,000

Bank 6 – –

Bank 7 2 4 ,4 3 9 ,8 1 5 27,668,836

Others 3 7 ,9 4 1 ,2 3 4 37,941,234

P= 5 4 0 ,4 1 7 ,5 6 9 P= 553,665,640

The rollforward analysis of loans payable follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 1 ,0 7 2 ,2 5 9 ,7 1 7 P= 1,288,930,962

Payments during the year ( 1 0 4 ,6 6 8 ,0 1 8 ) (229,270,796)

Foreign exchange loss adjustm ent 6 ,6 1 7 ,2 4 5 9,219,059

Availm ents during the year 1 2 ,6 6 8 ,7 0 1 3,380,492

Balance at  end of year P= 9 8 6 ,8 7 7 ,6 4 5 P= 1,072,259,717
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Loan features are sum marized below:

Foreign Currency Loans

Bank 1

A USD loan from Bank 1, bearing an interest  rate of 3.5%  per annum, with the interest

payable on a m onthly basis.   I n 2015, the payments term s were renegot iated.  Principal

paym ents of US$55,000 plus interests are due m onthly for thir ty - f ive (35)  m onths start ing

August  1, 2015 with the rem aining balance payable by the end of the 35 th month.

Bank 2

A USD loan availed using the Group’s current  loan facilit y  from  Bank 2, bearing an interest

rate with rates ranging from 5.8%  to 6.3%  per annum , with the interest  payable on a

m onthly basis.   The loan is secured with a Surety Agreement  in the amount  of P= 150.0

m illion by a major stockholder in case of default  by the Group.

The Group’s outstanding loan balance from Banks 1 and 2 had been restated at  a rate of

P= 51.358 to 1US$ in 2019 and P= 52.724 to 1US$ in 2018 (see Note 27) .

Bank 8

The Group has an outstanding Renm inbi (RMB) short - term loan from Bank 8, which are due

within 360 days with an interest  rate of 5% per annum .

Bank 9

A 5-year RMB loan with an interest  rate of 8% . The loan is guaranteed by a real estate

m ortgage on the property and equipm ent  current ly under const ruct ion which am ounted to

P= 359.34 m illion as at  June 30, 2019 (see Note 12) . Addit ional guarantee to the loan is

provided by Shenzhen Zhonghui I nvestment  Managem ent  Co, Ltd.,  an affiliated com pany .

The Group’s outstanding loan balance from Banks 8 and 9 had been restated at  a rate of

P= 7.47 to 1RMB and P= 7.677 to 1RMB as at  June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018,

respect ively (see Note 27) .

Peso Currency Loans

Bank 3

Various loans from Bank 3, which pertain to it s Short - term  Loan Line (STLL), Export

Packing Credit  Line (EPCL) , Trust  Receipt  Lines (TR Lines)  and other bank loans that  are

current ly m aturing as of the end of the report ing period.  The loans bear interest  rate of 6%

per annum, with the interest  payable on a m onthly basis.

The loans are secured by an exist ing real estate mortgage over it s land and building located

in Pulilan, Bulacan.  The aggregate am ount  of net  book values of the land and building

m ortgage amounted to P= 175.7 m illion and P= 177.4 m illion as of June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018, respect ively (see Note 12) .

The rollforward analysis of loans from Bank 3 follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 2 2 6 ,3 0 0 ,0 0 0 P= 236,000,000

Payments ( 1 3 ,3 0 0 ,0 0 0 ) (9,700,000)

Assum ed from subsidiary – –

I nterest  t ransferred to pr incipal – –

Balance at  end of year P= 2 1 3 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 P= 226,300,000

I n 2018, the loan was renegot iated with Bank 3 and no gain or loss was recognized

therefrom .
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Bank 4

The Group has a current  loan facilit y from Bank 4 with loans bearing interest  rate of 8.5%

per annum, and payable on a m onthly basis.  The loan has a term  of thir t y - two (32)

m onths, and is payable v ia twenty - four (24) monthly am ort izat ion of pr incipal and interest ,

payable from  January 2016 to Decem ber 2017, inclusive of a grace period of eight  (8)

m onths on the payment  of the principal from  May 2015 to Decem ber 2015. On January

2017 the loan was renegot iated with an adjusted interest  rate of 6.5%  payable m onthly.

The loan has a remaining term  of eighteen (18)  months as at  June 30, 2019, principal

payable every m onth.

Bank 5

Various short - term loans from  Bank 5, bearing interest  rates ranging from 3%  to 4%  per

annum , with the interest  payable on a monthly basis.   The loan is to be repriced every

thir t y (30)  to one hundred eight  (180)  days upon m utual agreem ent  of both part ies.

Bank 6

The Group has an exist ing credit  facilit y from Bank 5 com posed of STLL, ECPL, and TR

Lines, bearing interest  rate of 5.0%  per annum, with interest  payable on a monthly basis

and subject  to a m onthly repricing based on prevailing rate as determ ined by the lender.

The loan has term s ranging from  ninety (90)  to one hundred eight  (180)  days. The loan

was fully paid in 2018.

Bank 7

The Group has a current  loan facilit y from Bank 7 with loans bearing interest  rate of 5.5%

per annum, with interest  payable on a monthly basis.   The loans have term s ranging from

thirty (30)  to ninety (90)  days and is under a Joint  Surety Security (JSS) with a major

stockholder and a corporate guaranty from  the Group. Upon m aturity of the loans in

January 2016, a renewal agreem ent  was entered into by the Group to avail m edium  term

loan with the sam e interest  rate with m onthly repaym ent  of pr incipal unt il Decem ber 2018.

I n 2018 the loan was renewed and becam e payable unt il 2022.

Other loans include the following:

• I n 2018, TBC availed a loan from  a local bank, am ount ing to P= 3,022,800 for acquisit ion

of three units of delivery t rucks, with an interest  rate of 9.4%  per annum, payable in

five years. Outstanding balance of loan as at  June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2019

am ounted to P= 2,660,859 and P= 2,880,493 which are secured by a chat tel m ortgage

(see Note 12) .

• I n May 2004, FCI  obtained a noninterest -bearing loan am ount ing to P= 13,650,000 from

the Agricultural Compet it iveness Enhancem ent  Fund (ACEF)  of the Departm ent  of

Agriculture (DA)  through the chosen conduit  bank, Land Bank of the Philippines for the

addit ional working capital and expansion of fruit  processing facilit ies. The loan is

payable quarter ly within f ive (5)  years start ing Septem ber 2005 to June 2009.

• ANI  availed short - term  loans from  indiv iduals which bear interest  ranging from 1% to

2% and have term s of 1-6 m onths.

• FFCI  availed short  term  loans which bear interest  rate of 1%  per m onth, payable on a

m onthly basis and have m axim um  term s of three (3)  to six (6)  m onths. Outstanding

balance of these loans amounted to P= 3.5 m illion as at June 30, 2019 and December 31,

2018.
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I nterest  expense incurred on the above loans am ounted to P= 27.41 m illion in 2019 and

P= 22.97 m illion in 2018.

Maturit y Profile 2 0 1 9 2018

Due within one year P= 6 6 1 ,7 5 3 ,2 6 5 P= 747,135,337

Due beyond one year but  not  m ore than five

years 3 2 5 ,1 2 4 ,3 8 0 325,124,380

P= 9 8 6 ,8 7 7 ,6 4 5 P= 1,072,259,717

17. Revenue

The table below shows the analysis of revenues of the Group by major sources for the
period ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2 0 1 9 2018

Sale of goods P= 1 ,7 3 2 ,2 4 9 ,1 0 4 P= 313,641,947

Sale of real property 6 6 8 ,2 8 8 ,1 9 8 532,670,965

P= 2 ,4 0 0 ,5 3 7 ,3 0 2 P= 846,312,912

18. Equity

On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the

Parent  Com pany from  one billion ( P= 1,000,000,000)  div ided into one billion shares with a

par value of one peso per share to two billion ( P= 2,000,000,000)  div ided into two billion

shares com m on shares with the sam e par value of one peso ( P= 1) per share.

The m ovem ent  in the Parent  Company’s authorized num ber of shares with a par value of

P= 1 per share is shown below:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year 2 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 1,000,000,000

I ncrease during the year − 1,000,000,000

Balance at  end of year 2 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 2,000,000,000

The movem ent  in the Parent  Com pany’s com mon capital stock is shown below:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 P= 668,003,586

Subscript ions during the year − 162,770,502

Balance at  end of year P= 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 P= 830,774,088

Rollforward analysis of subscribed capital at  par value is shown below:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 1 ,0 1 8 ,2 7 4 ,0 8 8 P= 668,003,586

Subscript ions during the year − 162,770,502

Subscript ions receivable at  par value − 187,500,000

Balance at  end of year P= 1 ,0 1 8 ,2 7 4 ,0 8 8 P= 1,018,274,088
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The movem ent  in the Parent  Com pany’s addit ional paid- in capital is shown below:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 3 ,5 1 6 ,8 4 1 ,7 6 1 P= 2,504,341,713

Addit ions during the year (net  of subscript ions

receivable of P= 307,481,882 in 2019 and

2018)* 5 0 ,2 3 0 ,0 0 0 1,012,500,048

Balance at  end of year P= 3 ,5 6 7 ,0 7 1 ,7 6 1 P= 3,516,841,761

* Subscr ipt ions receivable will be credited to addit ional paid – in capital upon collect ion.

The total num ber of shareholders of the Parent  Com pany is 43 as at June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018.

The principal m arket  for the Group’s capital stock is the PSE.  The high and low t rading

prices of the Group’s shares as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 are as follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

High Low High Low

First P= 1 4 .9 4 P= 1 4 .7 0 P= 14.00 P= 13.78

Second 1 4 .5 0 1 4 .4 0 15.72 15.40

Third − − − −

Fourth − − − −

19. Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by div iding the net  loss at t r ibutable to stockholders of

the Group by the weighted average num ber of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Earnings per share at t r ibutable to the equity holders of the Group

June 3 0 , 2 0 1 9 June 30, 2018

Net income from cont inuing operat ions

at t r ibutable to equity holders of the Parent

Company 3 2 ,2 8 0 ,4 8 5 P= 9,080,712

Net loss from discont inued operat ions

at t r ibutable to equity holders of the Parent

Company ‒ ‒

3 2 ,2 8 0 ,4 8 5 P= 9,080,712

Weighted average number of com mon shares 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 652,364,139

Basic and diluted earnings per share 0 .0 4 P= 0.01
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20. Related Party Transact ions

The Group has the following t ransact ions with related part ies:

a. Unsecured and noninterest -bearing cash advances to/ from  it s related part ies for the

acquisit ion of operat ing machinery and equipm ent and other invest ing act iv it ies and for

working capital purposes. These are payable on dem and and usually set t led in cash or

other form  of assets by way of liquidat ion.

b. Details of the related party balances follow:

2 0 1 9 2018

Due from :

Stockholder P= 2 9 7 ,2 7 4 ,9 7 6 P= 453,975,621

Affiliates/ Ent ity under comm on ownership 2 5 5 ,8 9 8 ,2 8 8 258,781,766

P= 5 5 3 ,1 7 3 ,2 6 4 P= 712,757,387

Due to:

Affiliates/ Ent ity under comm on ownership P= 6 0 ,0 1 8 ,9 0 8 P= 67,357,588

The rollforward analysis of related party accounts follow:

2 0 1 9 2018

Due from  related part ies:

Balance at  beginning of year P= 7 1 2 ,7 5 7 ,3 8 7 P= 869,822,714

Collect ions ( 1 6 6 ,0 8 4 ,1 2 3 ) (1,196,809,827)

Advances 6 ,5 0 0 ,0 0 0 1,039,744,500

Balance at  end of year P= 5 5 3 ,1 7 3 ,2 6 4 P= 712,757,387

Due to related part ies:

Balance at  beginning of year P= 6 7 ,3 5 7 ,5 8 8 P= 72,402,905

Payments ( 3 9 ,6 7 0 ,9 8 0 ) (1,167,581,007)

Advances 3 2 ,3 3 2 ,3 0 0 1,162,535,690

Balance at  end of year P= 6 0 ,0 1 8 ,9 0 8 P= 67,357,588

The sum mary of the above related party t ransact ions follows:

2 0 1 9

Category

Amount/

Volume

Balance -

Asset  (Liability)

Terms and

Condit ion/ Set t lem ent Guaranty/  Provision

Stockholders

1. Receivables

• Advances

made

• Collect ions

P= -

(156,700,645)

P= 297,274,976 Noninterest -bear ing;

collect ible on dem and;

to be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants; no

impairment

Affiliates

1. Receivables

• Collect ions

• Advances

made

(9,383,478)

6,500,000

255,898,288 Noninterest -bear ing;

collect ible on dem and;

to be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants; no

impairment

2. Payables

• Advances

received

• Payments

(32,332,300)

39,670,980

(60,018,908) Noninterest -bear ing;

payable on demand;  to

be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants
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2018

Category

Amount/

Volume

Balance -

Asset  (Liability)

Terms and

Condit ion/ Set t lem ent Guaranty/  Provision

Stockholders

1. Receivables

• Advances

made

• Collect ions

P= 52,550,250

(20,801,135)

P= 453,975,621 Noninterest -bear ing;

collect ible on dem and;

to be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants; no

impairment

Affiliates

1. Receivables

• Collect ions

• Advances

made

(1,176,008,692)

987,193,980

258,781,766 Noninterest -bear ing;

collect ible on dem and;

to be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants; no

impairment

2. Payables

• Advances

received

• Payments

(1,162,535,690)

1,167,581,007

(67,357,588) Noninterest -bear ing;

payable on demand;  to

be set t led in cash or

other assets

Unsecured;  no

signif icant  warrant ies

and covenants

Due from Stockholder

Due from stockholder is noninterest -bearing advances, unsecured, not  guaranteed and no

im pairm ent and are generally collect ible in cash and other assets through liquidat ion or

offset t ing with corresponding payable. I n 2019 and 2018, the balances due from the

stockholder are all current .

Com pensat ion of Key Managem ent  Personnel

The Group considers its President , Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Vice President  as key

m anagem ent personnel. Total remunerat ion of key management  personnel, composed mainly

of short - term employee benefits and provision for ret irement  benefits for execut ive officers,

were included under “Personnel costs”  in the statement  of comprehensive income amounted

to P= 2.3 million and P= 2.21 million in 2019 and 2018, respect ively. There were no other

benefits aside from the salaries and other short - term benefits.

There are no other related party t ransact ions in 2019 and 2018.

21. Cost  of Sales

Cost  of goods and services sold Note 2 0 1 9 2018

I nventories, beginning P= 1 4 5 ,7 5 5 ,2 5 9 P= 61,431,239

Purchases and conversion cost 1 ,5 5 0 ,4 2 0 ,8 6 3 251,385,841

Cost  of goods available for sale 1 ,6 9 6 ,1 7 6 ,1 2 2 312,817,080

I nventories, end 8 1 1 0 ,6 3 3 ,1 8 1 49,669,777

Cost  of sales and services P= 1 ,5 8 5 ,5 4 2 ,9 4 1 P= 263,147,303

Cost  of goods sold of real property 4 0 9 ,1 6 4 ,5 7 9 327,450,513

P= 1 ,9 9 4 ,7 0 7 ,5 2 0 P= 590,597,816

Others include product ion supplies, freight  and handling costs, repairs and maintenance,

tolling, sales com m ission and ut ilit ies.
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22. General and Adm inist rat ive Expenses

This account  consists of:

Notes 2 0 1 9 2018

Taxes and licenses P= 1 1 7 ,9 6 7 ,9 5 3 P= 85,770,568

Advert ising 3 9 ,1 8 9 ,0 5 7 1,041,295

Personnel costs 3 6 ,1 1 9 ,2 0 6 36,302,360

Depreciat ion and amort izat ion 12, 13 3 1 ,3 8 0 .2 7 6 32,461,462

Representat ion and enter tainm ent 2 4 ,2 2 5 ,6 9 6 18,190,719

Com m unicat ion, light  and water 7 ,9 8 5 ,2 4 6 4,118,824

Professional fees 5 ,4 0 1 ,7 4 2 1,058,252

Rentals 26 3 ,6 5 1 ,1 9 6 19,231,082

Freight  and handling cost 3 ,2 5 0 ,3 6 0 4,651,307

Transportat ion and t ravel 3 ,0 1 8 ,7 7 9 1,672,904

Supplies 1 ,4 3 3 ,2 4 2 893,840

Repairs and maintenance 1 ,0 9 6 ,0 5 9 1,285,206

Contracted serv ices 3 8 7 ,0 7 7 574,350

I nsurance 1 5 6 ,1 5 2 188,350

Bank charges 1 2 2 ,8 9 1 48,421

Com m issions 4 1 ,5 3 2 80,431

Others 9 ,1 6 1 ,0 7 1 3,363,396

P= 2 8 4 ,5 8 7 ,5 3 5 P= 210,932,767

Other employee benefit s include SSS, HDMF, Philhealth em ployer cont r ibut ions and
13 th m onth bonus.

Others pertains to t rainings and sem inars, pest  cont rols,  mails and postages and print ing.

23. Deposit for Future Stock  Subscript ions

On October 23, 2017, the Board of Directors of Group approved the issuance and list ing of

22,780,028 primary shares with aggregate considerat ion of P= 242,835,098 in favor of

GOONI ES Co. Ltd.,  a Company incorporated in Japan.  The issuance shall be effect ive upon

execut ion of the subscript ion agreement  and the applicat ion for list ing com m ence after full

paym ent  of the subscript ion price.  Full payment  was received on October 25, 2017, while

subscript ion agreem ent  was executed on February 9, 2018, hence it  was recorded as

deposit  for future stock subscript ion as at  Decem ber 31, 2017. I n 2018, the applicat ion for

list ing has been approved hence, it  was reclassif ied into capital stock.

24. Ret irem ent Liability

The Group has unfunded, noncont r ibutory defined benefit  ret irem ent  plan covering

substant ially all of it s em ployees.  Benefit s are based on the em ployee’s years of service

and final plan salary.

Under the exist ing regulatory fram ework, Republic Act  7641 requires provision for

ret irem ent  pay to qualif ied private sector employees in the absence of any ret irem ent  plan

in the ent ity,  provided however that  the em ployee’s ret irem ent  benefit s under any

collect ive bargaining and other agreem ents shall not  be less than those provided under the

law.  The law does not  require m inim um funding of the plan.
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Ret irem ent  benefit s are based on em ployees’ years of service and com pensat ion levels

during their employm ent  per iod.  Actuarial valuat ions are made with sufficient  regularity.

The last  actuarial valuat ion was made as at and for the year ended Decem ber 31, 2018.

Movement of ret irem ent liabilit y  recognized in the consolidated statem ents of f inancial

posit ion are as follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 5 ,8 8 3 ,0 5 5 P= 7,188,984

Benefit s paid – –

Ret irem ent  benefit s expense – 1,605,716

Rem easurement  loss (gain) – (2,911,645)

Balance at  end of year P= 5 ,8 8 3 ,0 5 5 P= 5,883,055

The reconciliat ion of remeasurem ent gain as at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018

follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

Balance at  beginning of year P= 6 ,9 3 1 ,4 8 0 P= 4,019,835

Rem easurement gain ( loss) – 2,911,645

Balance at  end of year P= 6 ,9 3 1 ,4 8 0 P= 6,931,480

The cost  of defined benefit  pension plans and other post -em ploym ent  m edical benefit s as

well as the present  value of the pension obligat ion are determ ined using actuarial

valuat ions.  The actuarial valuat ion involves m aking various assum pt ions.  The principal

assumpt ions used in determ ining pension and post -em ployment  benefit  obligat ions for the

defined benefit  plans are shown below:

2 0 1 9 2018

Discount  rate 7 .7 0 % 7.70%

Projected salary increase rate 5 .0 0 % 5.00%

The est imated average rem aining working lives of em ployees is 14 years for the period

ended June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018.

25. I ncom e Taxes

a. The Parent  Com pany and local subsidiar ies are subject  to RCI T or MCI T whichever is

higher. Foreign subsidiar ies are subject  to corporate incom e tax at  statutory tax rate

applicable to their respect ive count r ies. I ncom e tax expense amounted to P= 23.25

m illion and P= 17.06 m illion in 2019 and 2018, respect ively.

The Group reviews deferred tax assets at  each financial report ing date and recognized

these to the extent  that  it  is probable that  sufficient  taxable profit  will be available to

allow all or part  of the deferred incom e tax assets to be ut ilized.
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b. The Group incurred NOLCO which can be claim ed as deduct ion against  future taxable

incom e as follows:

Year incurred Expirat ion Expired / Applied Unapplied Tax Effect

2015 2018 P= 190,368,493 P= − P= −

2016 2019 288,638 178,046,102 53,413,831

2017 2020 11,024,764 3,307,429

2018 2021 29,558,918 8,867,675

P= 190,657,131 P= 218,629,784 P= 65,588,935

c. The Group incurred MCI T which can be claim ed as deduct ion against  future tax due as

follows:

Year incurred Expirat ion Expired/ Applied Unapplied

2015 2018 P= 2,306,373 P= −

2016 2019 − 871,959

2017 2020 − 5,513,117

2018 2021 − 5,060,715

P= 2,306,373 P= 11,445,791

d. The Group opted for the item ized deduct ion schem e for it s incom e tax report ing in 2019

and 2018.

26. Lease Agreem ents

Operat ing Lease Com m itments Operat ing Lease Comm itm ents

The Group leases the office spaces and store branches under lease agreements covering

one year to three years, renewable every end of the lease term.  Renewals are subject  to

the m utual consent  of the lessor and lessee.  The Group agreed to pay m onthly f ixed

paym ent  addit ional payment  for ut ilit ies and intercom m unicat ion service.  As at June 30,

2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, there are 42 and 31 store out lets,  respect ively, being held

under operat ing lease agreem ents.

Operat ing Lease Com m itments – Group as Lessor

The Group has an operat ing lease agreement  of it s property, to Huayou Const ruct ion

Developm ent  Philippines Corporat ion.

The lease has a term  of one year com mencing from January 1, 2018 subject  to an annual

review and renewable upon mutual agreement  of the part ies. The lease cont ract  was

renewed for another year.

Finance Lease Com m itm ents

Vehicles

I n 2012, the Group has entered into ten finance lease agreem ents for the acquisit ion of

various vehicles for logist ics and adm inist rat ive purposes. The agreement  bears an interest

ranging from 4%  to 7%  for a lease term  ranging from  four to six years.  I n 2016, two

finance lease agreements were renegot iated. The renegot iat ion includes revised m onthly

paym ents and extension of the term up to 2019.

Machineries

I n 2012, the Group has entered into a finance lease agreem ent  with Tet ra Pak Philippines,

I nc. for the acquisit ion of machinery for the beverage processing equipm ent .   The

m achineries were acquired and will be paid on a quarter ly basis for a period of 84 m onths

with interest  rate of 3.5% .  The Group init ially  recognized this f inance lease at  its

t ransact ion price and subsequent ly carr ied at  am ort ized costs less payment s.
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Rice m ill and various m illing equipm ent

I n April 2013, the Group entered into a lease agreem ent  covering a r ice m ill and various

agricultural equipm ent  with a monthly rate of P= 514,361 for the use in operat ions.  The

lease will be for 48 m onths from  the date of acceptance unless sooner t erm inated by the

cont ract ing part ies.  I n 2016, a rest ructuring agreem ent  was entered by the Group to

renegot iate the term s of the outstanding obligat ion. The renegot iat ion called for an interest

rate of 10%  per annum  with revised m onthly paym ents to be set t led for 36 m onths. I n

addit ion, the agreem ent  includes extension of the term  up to 2019.

I n March 28, 2016, the Group entered to another lease agreement  covering a r ice m ill and

various agricultural equipm ent  with a m onthly rate of P= 90,000 for the 12 m onths,

P= 260,000 for the next  twelve (12)  months and P= 518,000 for the next  11 months and the

balance at  the last  m onth of lease for use in operat ions. The lease will be for 36 months

from the date of acceptance unless sooner term inated by both part ies.

The com ponents of the lease obligat ions as of June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 are

as follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

Gross finance lease obligat ion

Less than one year P= 1 4 ,3 4 4 ,6 5 9 P= 31,537,227

Between one and five years – –

1 4 ,3 4 4 ,6 5 9 31,537,227

Less interest 7 4 3 ,1 0 5 1,744,142

Present  value of future m inim um  lease paym ents 1 3 ,6 0 1 ,5 5 4 29,793,085

Less current  port ion 1 3 ,6 0 1 ,5 5 4 29,793,085

P= – P= –

27. Financial Risk Managem ent  and Capital Managem ent Object ives and Policies

Financial Risk Managem ent  Object ives and Policies

The Group’s pr incipal f inancial inst ruments consist  of cash, due to and from  related part ies

and stockholder, loans and lease payable. The main purpose of these financial inst rum ents

is to f inance the Group’s normal course of it s operat ing act iv it ies.  The Group has various

other f inancial assets and financial liabilit ies such as t rade and other receivables, refundable

deposits under “Other noncurrent  assets”  and t rade and other payables which arise direct ly

from it s operat ions.

The m ain r isks arising from  the Group’s f inancial inst rum ents are credit  r isk, liquidit y r isk ,

interest  r isk and foreign currency r isk.  The BOD reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these r isks and they are sum marized below:

• Credit  Risk

Credit  r isk refers to the potent ial loss arising from  any failure by counterpart ies to fulf ill

t heir obligat ions, as and when they fall due.  I t  is inherent  to the business as potent ial

losses m ay arise due to the failure of it s customers and counterpart ies to fulf ill their

obligat ions on maturit y periods or due to adverse market  condit ions.

a. Credit  r isk exposure

The table below shows the maxim um  exposure to credit  r isk for the Group’s

financial assets, without  taking into account  any collateral and other credit

enhancem ents as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018:
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Note 2 0 1 9 2018

Cash in banks 6 P= 4 6 ,6 0 6 ,6 2 6 P= 58,123,151

Trade and other receivables – net 7 6 1 4 ,0 9 1 ,0 9 3 494,276,724

Due from related part ies 20 2 5 5 ,8 9 8 ,2 8 8 258,781,766

Due from  a stockholder 20 2 9 7 ,2 7 4 ,9 7 6 453,975,621

Refundable deposits 14 7 ,5 1 1 ,6 2 3 6,871,752

P= 1 ,2 2 1 ,3 8 2 ,6 0 6 P= 1,272,029,014

b. Credit  qualit y per class of financial assets

The credit  qualit y of f inancial assets is m anaged by the Group using internal credit

rat ings and is classif ied into three:  (a)  high grade which has no history of default ;

(b)  standard grade which pertains to accounts with history of one (1)  or two (2)

defaults,  and (c)  substandard grade, which pertains to accounts with history of at

least  3 paym ent  defaults.

The table below sum marizes the credit  qualit y of the Group’s f inancial assets based

on it s histor ical experience with the corresponding part ies as at June 30, 2019 and

Decem ber 31, 2018:

2 0 1 9

Neither past  due nor

impaired

Past  due but

not  impaired Im paired Total

High grade Standard grade

Cash in banks P= 45,840,735 P= 765,891 P= ‒ P= ‒ P= 46,606,626

Trade and other

receivables 276,312,191 311,949,012 25,829,789 106,790,146 720,881,138

Due from related part ies ‒ 255,898,288 ‒ ‒ 255,898,288

Due from a stockholder ‒ 297,274,976 ‒ ‒ 297,274,976

Refundable deposits 140,752 7,370,871 ‒ ‒ 7,511,623

Total P= 322,293,678 P= 873,259,038 P= 25,829,789 P= 106,790,146 P= 1,328,172,651

2018

Neither past  due nor

impaired

Past  due but

not  impaired Im paired Total

High grade Standard grade

Cash in banks P= 57,668,833 P= 454,318 P= ‒ P= ‒ P= 58,123,151

Trade and other

receivables* 156,497,922 311,949,012 25,829,789 106,790,146 601,066,869

Due from related part ies ‒ 258,781,766 ‒ ‒ 258,781,766

Due from a stockholder ‒ 453,975,621 ‒ ‒ 453,975,621

Refundable deposits 140,752 6,731,000 ‒ ‒ 6,871,752

Total P= 214,307,507 P= 1,031,891,717 P= 25,829,789 P= 106,790,146 P= 1,378,819,159

• Cash in banks classif ied as high grade are deposited and invested with banks

with good credit  t raining and can be withdrawn anyt im e.

• High grade receivables pertain to receivables from  third party buyers of real

estate of the Group and program  partners who consistent ly pay before the

m aturit y date.  Standard grade receivables are receivables that  are collected on

their due dates even without  an effort  from  the Group to follow them  up.  Both

high grade and standard grade receivables current ly have no to m inim al history

of default .

• Advances to related part ies and stockholder are assessed as standard grade

since the Group pract ices offset t ing of receivables and payables.

• High-grade refundable deposits are accounts considered to be high value. The

counterpart ies have a very rem ote likelihood of default . Refundable security

deposits assessed as standard grade are refunded upon term inat ion or

fulf ilm ent  of agreem ent .
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Below is the aging analysis of past  due but  not  im paired t rade and other

receivables:

Trade

30 to

60 days

61 to

90 days

More than

90 days Total

2019 P= – P= – P= 25,829,789 P= 25,829,789

2018 P= – P= – P= 25,829,789 P= 25,829,789

c. Risk concent rat ions of the m axim um  exposure to credit  r isk

Concent rat ions arise when a num ber of counterpart ies are engaged in sim ila r

business act iv it ies or act iv it ies in the sam e geographic region or have sim ilar

econom ic features that  would cause their abilit y  to m eet  cont ractual obligat ions to

be sim ilar ly affected by changes in econom ic, polit ical or other condit ions.

Concent rat ions indicate the relat ive sensit iv it y of the Group’s performance to

developm ents affect ing a part icular indust ry or geographical locat ion.  Such credit

r isk concent rat ions, if not  properly managed, may cause signif icant  losses that

could threaten the Group’s f inancial st rength and underm ine public confidence.  The

Group is not  exposed to large concent rat ion of credit  r isks.

d. I mpairm ent  assessm ent

The Group was required to revise it s im pairm ent  m ethodology under PFRS 9 for

each of class of f inancial assets and has determ ined that  there has been no

signif icant  im pact  of the change in im pairm ent  methodology on the Group’s retained

earnings and equity.

Upon adopt ion of PFRS 9, the Group applies general approach for determ ining the

expected credit  losses of cash in banks, non- t rade receivables and due from  related

part ies.  A credit  loss is the difference between the cash flows that  are expected to

be received discounted at  the original effect ive interest  rate and cont ractual cash

flows in accordance with the cont ract .   The loss allowance for f inancial assets are

based on the assum pt ions about  r isk of default  and expected loss rates.  I n

addit ion, managem ent ’s assessm ent  of the credit  r isk on cash in bank and due from

related part ies as at  the report ing date is low.

The Group applies the PFRS 9 sim plif ied approach to m easuring expected credit

losses which uses a lifet im e expected loss allowance for t rade receivables.  To

m easure expected credit  loss, receivables were grouped based on days past  due

and grouped the custom ers according to their profile.   The expected loss rates are

based on the histor ical credit  losses within the period of t im e.  The histor ical loss

rates are adjusted to reflect  current  and forward- looking informat ion affect ing the

abilit y  of the custom ers to set t le the receivables.

The Group has ident if ied GDP of Asia Pacif ic cont inent  to which the principal ent it ies

of the Group’s custom ers are based as the most  relevant  factor, and accordingly

adjust  histor ical loss rate based on the changes on GDP growth rates.

Aside from the ECL com putat ion the m anagem ent  provided addit ional allowance for the

year amounted to P= 6.0 m illion for the t rade receivables m anagem ent  has assessed to

be uncollect ible.

As at  January 1, 2018, the Group provides allowance on balances of t rade and

receivables that  are assessed to be uncollect ible.  As a result  of adopt ion of PFRS 9

im pairm ent  of f inancial asset  policy, addit ional im pairm ent  loss on t rade results only to

P= 43.5 m illion (see Notes 3 and 7) .

Prior to adopt ion of PFRS 9, the Group applies specif ic/ indiv idual assessm ent  in

assessing and measuring im pairm ent .
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• Liquidity Risk

Liquidity r isk is the r isk that  the Group will be unable to m eet  it s payment  obligat ions

when they fall due under normal and st ress circum stances.  To lim it  the r isk, the Group

m aintains sufficient  cash to m eet  operat ing capital requirem ents.  The Group also

m onitors the maturit ies of it s f inancial assets and financial liabilit ies and ensures that  it

has sufficient  current  assets to set t le the current  liabilit ies.

The tables below sum marize the m aturity profile of the Group’s f inancial liabilit ies and

assets as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018 based on undiscounted paym ents:

2 0 1 9

Note On demand

Due within

one year

Due beyond

one year Total

Financial assets

Cash in banks 6 P= 46,606,626 P= ‒ P= ‒ P= 46,606,626

Trade and other receivables –

net 7 272,180,117 341,910,976 ‒ 614,091,093

Due from related part ies 20 255,898,288 ‒ ‒ 255,898,288

Due from a stockholder 20 297,274,976 ‒ ‒ 297,274,976

Refundable deposits 14 ‒ ‒ 7,511,752 7,511,752

P= 871,960,007 P= 341,910,976 P= 7,511,752 P= 1,221,382,735

Other financial liabilit ies

Trade and other payables 15 P= 113,641,551 P= 612,377,362 P= ‒ P= 726,018,913

Due to related part ies 20 50,018,908 ‒ ‒ 50,018,908

Loans payable 16 ‒ 661,753,265 325,124,380 986,877,645

Lease payable 27 ‒ 13,601,554 ‒ 13,601,554

P= 163,660,459 P= 1,287,732,181 P= 325,124,380 P= 1,776,517,020

2018

Note On demand

Due within

one year

Due beyond

one year Total

Financial assets

Cash in banks 6 P= 58,123,151 P= ‒ P= ‒ P= 58,123,151

Trade and other receivables –

net* 7 152,365,748 341,910,976 ‒ 494,276,724

Due from related part ies 20 258,781,766 ‒ ‒ 258,781,766

Due from a stockholder 20 453,975,621 ‒ ‒ 453,975,621

Refundable deposits 14 ‒ ‒ 6,871,752 6,871,752

P= 923,246,286 P= 341,910,976 P= 6,781,572 P= 1,272,029,014

Other financial liabilit ies

Trade and other payables* * 15 P= 123,596,332 P= 612,377,362 P= ‒ P= 735,973,694

Due to related part ies 20 67,357,588 ‒ ‒ 67,357,588

Loans payable 16 ‒ 747,135,337 325,124,380 1,072,259,717

Lease payable 27 ‒ 29,793,085 ‒ 29,793,085

P= 190,953,920 P= 1,389,305,784 P= 325,124,380 P= 1,905,384,084

• Market  Risk

Market  r isk is the r isk of loss to future earnings, to fair  values or to future cash flows

that  may result  from  changes in the price of a f inancial inst rum ent .   The value of a

financial inst rum ent  may change as a result  of changes in foreign currency exchanges

rates and interest  rates.

Foreign currency r isk

Foreign currency r isk is the r isk to earnings or capital ar ising from  changes in for eign

exchange rates.  The Group takes on exposure to effects of f luctuat ions in the

prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on it s consolidated financial statem ents and

cash flows.
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The Group has t ransact ional currency exposures.  Such exposure generally ar ises from

cash in banks, t rade receivable and payables and loans payable in Renm inbi (RMB),

Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) , United States Dollar (US$) and Aust ralian Dollar (AU$) . The

Group did not  seek to hedge the exposure on the change in foreign exchange rates

between the RMB, US$, HK$, AU$ and the Philippine Pesos.  The Group does not

generally believe that  act ive currency hedging would provide long- term  benefit s to

stockholders.

The Group’s policy is to m aintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable lim its and

within exist ing regulatory guidelines.  The Group believes that  it s profile of foreign

currency exposure on it s assets and liabilit ies is within conservat ive lim its for an

inst itut ion engaged in the type of business in which the Group is involved.
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2 0 1 9

RMB

Peso

Equivalent HKD

Peso

Equivalent US$

Peso

Equivalent AU$

Peso

Equivalent

Financial assets:

Cash in banks RMB2,603,450 P= 19,440,482 HK$133,744 P= 878,927 US$342,494 P= 17,589,846 AU$‒ P= ‒

Trade and other receivables 28,693,357 214,179,838 1,617,900 10,632,355 ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒

Deposit s ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ 500,056 17,997,880

31,296,807 233,620,320 1,751,644 11,511,282 342,494 17,589,846 500,056 17,997,880

Financial liabilit ies:

Trade and other payables 57,565,571 429,853,632 491,517 3,230,104 ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒

Loans payable 37,100,001 277,033,127 ‒ ‒ 1,832,485 94,112,739 ‒ ‒

Lease liabilit y ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒

94,665,572 706,886,759 491,517 3,230,104 1,832,485 94,112,739 ‒ ‒

Net  financial assets (RMB63,368,765) ( P= 473,266,439) HK$1,260,127 P= 8,281,178 (US$1,489,991) ( P= 76,522,893) AU$500,056 P= 17,997,880

2018

RMB

Peso

Equivalent HKD

Peso

Equivalent US$

Peso

Equivalent AU$

Peso

Equivalent

Financial assets:

Cash in banks RMB3,554,395 P= 27,288,160 HK$83,064 P= 559,386 US$46,725 P= 2,463,529 AU$‒ P= ‒

Trade and other receivables 40,767,609 312,985,165 2,707,662 18,234,479 ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒

Deposit s ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ 172,000 6,376,074

44,322,004 340,273,325 2,790,726 18,793,865 46,725 2,463,529 172,000 6,376,074

Financial liabilit ies:

Trade and other payables 77,877,490 597,888,854 267,872 1,803,957 ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒

Loans payable 37,100,001 284,827,838 ‒ ‒ 2,682,485 141,431,339 ‒ ‒

Lease liabilit y ‒ ‒ ‒ ‒ 341,000 17,978,884 ‒ ‒

114,977,491 882,716,692 267,872 1,803,957 3,023,485 159,410,223 ‒ ‒

Net  financial assets (RMB70,655,487) ( P= 542,443,367) HK$2,522,854 P= 16,989,908 (US$2,976,760) ( P= 156,946,694) AU$172,000 P= 6,376,074
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The equivalent  exchange rates of one foreign currency in Philippine peso as at

June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as follows:

2 0 1 9 2018

RMB P= 7 .4 7 P= 8.079

HK$ 6 .5 7 6.820

US$ 5 1 .3 6 53.522

AU$ 3 5 .9 9 -

I nterest  Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest  rate f luctuat ions on their cash in banks, loans and

lease payable. Other f inancial assets and liabilit ies which principally ar ise in the ordinary

course of it s operat ions are generally short - term  and noninterest–bearing.

Histor ically,  the rate f luctuat ions relat ive to it s cash in banks are m inim al.

As at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group’s loans payable is at  interest

rates that  is subject  for evaluat ion regularly. I nterest  r isk is m anaged through regular

m onitor ing.

Capital Managem ent

The prim ary object ive of the Group’s capital m anagem ent  is to ensure that  the Group has

sufficient  funds in order to support  their business, pay exist ing obligat ions and m axim ize

shareholder value.  The Group considers advances from  related part ies as capital.

The Group’s policy is to m aintain sufficient  capital to cover working capital requirem ents.

The Group obtains advances from related part ies to cover inadequacy in working capital.

As at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018, the Group considers the following accounts as

capital:

2 0 1 9 2018

Capital stock P= 8 3 0 ,7 7 4 ,0 8 8 P= 830,774,088

Addit ional paid- in capital 3 ,5 6 7 ,0 7 1 ,7 6 1 3,516,841,760

Due to related part ies 6 0 ,0 1 8 ,9 0 8 67,357,588

Loans payable 9 8 6 ,8 7 7 ,6 4 5 1,072,259,717

Total capital P= 5 ,4 4 4 ,7 4 2 ,4 0 2 P= 5,487,233,153

The Group has no externally im posed capital requirem ent . No changes were m ade in the

object ives, policies or processes during the period ended June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31,

2018.

28. Fair  Value Measurem ent

Set  out  below is a comparison by category of carry ing values and est im ated fair  values of

Group’s f inancial inst rum ents as at June 30, 2019 and Decem ber 31, 2018:
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2 0 1 9

Note Carry ing value Fair value

Significant observable

inputs (Level 2)

PFRS 9 m easurem ent  category:

Financial assets at  am ort ized cost

Cash in banks 6 P= 46,606,626 P= 46,606,626 P= 46,606,626

Trade and other receivables – net* 7 614,091,093 614,091,093 614,091,093

Due from related part ies 20 255,898,288 255,898,288 255,898,288

Due from stockholder 20 297,274,976 297,274,976 297,274,976

Refundable deposits 14 7,511,623 7,511,623 7,511,623

P= 1,221,382,606 P= 1,221,382,606 P= 1,221,382,606

PFRS 9 m easurem ent  category:

Financial liabilit ies at  am ort ized cost :

Trade payables and other payables 15 723,481,453 723,481,453 723,481,453

Due to related part ies 20 60,018,908 60,018,908 60,018,908

Loans payable 16 986,877,645 986,877,645 986,877,645

Lease liabilit y 26 13,601,554 13,601,554 13,601,554

P= 1,783,979,560 P= 1,783,979,560 P= 1,783,979,560

2018

Note Carry ing value Fair value

Significant observable

inputs (Level 2)

PFRS 9 m easurem ent  category:

Financial assets at  am ort ized cost

Cash in banks 6 P= 58,123,151 P= 58,123,151 P= 58,123,151

Trade and other receivables – net* 7 494,276,724 494,276,724 494,276,724

Due from related part ies 20 258,781,766 258,781,766 258,781,766

Due from stockholder 20 463,857,477 463,857,477 463,857,477

Refundable deposits 14 6,871,752 6,871,752 6,871,752

P= 1,281,910,870 P= 1,281,910,870 P= 1,281,910,870

PFRS 9 m easurem ent  category:

Financial liabilit ies at  am ort ized cost :

Trade payables and other

payables* * 15 735,973,694 718,646,095 718,646,095

Due to related part ies 20 67,357,588 67,357,588 67,357,588

Loans payable 16 1,072,259,717 1,072,259,717 1,072,259,717

Lease liabilit y 26 29,793,085 29,793,085 29,793,085

P= 1,905,384,084 P= 1,888,056,484 P= 1,888,056,484

Methods and Assum pt ions Used to Est im ate Fair Value

The managem ent  assessed that  the following financial inst ruments approxim ate their

carry ing amounts based on the m ethods and assumpt ions used to est im ate the fair  values:

Cash in banks, t rade and other receivables, due to/ from related part ies and t rade and other

payables

The carry ing am ounts of cash in banks, t rade and other receivables, due to/ from related

part ies and t rade and other payables approximate their fair  values due to the short - term

nature of these financial inst rum ents.

Refundable deposits

The fair  value of the refundable deposits on lease cont racts cannot  be readily determ ined

and reliably m easured because the actual t im ing of receipt  cannot  be reasonably predicted

as these deposits are generally re-deposited every renewal of lease cont ract ,  the new term s

and condit ions thereof are not  yet  known. The amount  of refundable deposits that  will be

actually received by the Group is also at tached to a condit ional repaym ent  provision that  is,

the faithful performance by the Group of it s obligat ions under the lease

cont racts. Accordingly,  the refundable deposits are carr ied at  costs less any im pairm ent .
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Loans and borrowings

The carry ing value of loans and borrowings approxim ate their fair  values as their interest

rates are based on market  rates for debt  with the sam e m aturity profiles at  the end of the

report ing period.

Lease payable

The fair  values of lease payable are based on the present  value of future cash flows

discounted using the current  rates available for debt  with the sam e maturit y profile as at

the end of the report ing period.

29. Segm ent  I nform at ion

The Group has ident if ied its operat ing segm ents based on internal reports that  are reviewed

and used by the Chief Execut ive Officer ( the chief operat ing decision maker)  in assessing

performance and in determ ining the allocat ion of resources. The operat ing segm ents

ident if ied by the management  are as follows:

Exports

The Export  segm ent  is in charge of looking for m arkets abroad as well as sourcing the best

qualit y produce possible to sat isfy it s growing number of clients abroad. I t s m ain export

products are fresh banana, fresh mango, and coco-water.

Dist r ibut ion

The Dist r ibut ion segm ent  is responsible for the local sales and dist r ibut ion of various

produce that the Group offers to a num ber of supermarkets around Luzon.

Retail

The Retail segm ent  is responsible for the management  and operat ion of the Group’s retail

businesses.

Foreign Trading

The Foreign Trading segment  is charge of the internat ional dist r ibut ion operat ions of the

Group in Hong Kong and China.

The Group’s operat ing businesses are organized and m anaged separately according to the

nature of the products and services provided, with each segment  represent ing a st rategic

business unit  that  offers different  products and serves different  m arkets.  I n addit ion, the

Group’s reportable segments also include geographical areas for local and foreign

operat ions.  Foreign operat ions are included under “Foreign Trading”  and local operat ions

are included under the rem aining reported segm ents.

REVENUE

( Philippine Pesos) June 3 0 , 2 0 1 9 June 30, 2018

Philippine Operat ions

Export 1 ,0 0 5 ,7 9 5 ,4 7 3 58,785,423

Local Dist r ibut ion and Others 6 2 ,1 5 3 ,2 4 7 48,012,594

Retail & Franchising 5 5 ,5 5 4 ,2 7 5 50,758,329

Sub- total 1 ,1 2 3 ,5 0 2 ,9 9 5 157,556,436

Foreign Operat ions

Hong Kong /  China 1 ,2 7 7 ,0 3 4 ,3 0 7 688,756,566

Total 2 ,4 0 0 ,5 3 7 ,3 0 2 846,312,912


